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Unitrin Business Overview

The Unitrin family of insurance and finance companies serves clients in markets across the United

States. More than 6 million policyholders and consumer finance customers have their basic insur-

ance and financial needs met by a nationwide network of career agents and independent agents

and loan representatives. As one of America’s leading financial services providers, the Unitrin

family specializes in property and casualty, life, health and accident insurance as well as consumer

finance products. With over $8 billion in assets, we employ nearly 8,500 associates.

Associates on the front cover, clockwise from top left:
Gary Braden, Kemper Auto and Home.

Jennifer Hurley, United Insurance Company of America.

Angela Mitchell, Unitrin Specialty.
Farzan Komeili, Fireside Bank.
Curt Haag, Unitrin Business Insurance.

Unitrin Property and Casualty Insurance

The Property and Casualty Insurance Group is made up of the Unitrin
Business Insurance, Unitrin Specialty, Kemper Auto and Home and
Unitrin Direct segments. Ranking among the 65 largest property and
casualty groups in the nation, this group markets a variety of personal
and commercial insurance products through thousands of independent

agents and direct distribution channels.

Unitrin Life and Health insurance

Unitrin’s Life and Health Insurance Group offers life, health and accident
insurance to customers through a national network of over 2,500
company-employed career agents and approximately 250 exclusive inde-
pendent agents. Based on premiums, this group is one of the 100 largest

life insurance providers in the country.

Consumer Finance

One of the oldest and most highly regarded companies of its kind in the
western United States, Fireside Bank provides consumer finance services.
Based in Pleasanton, California, and with 28 branches in California and
loan production offices in 6 other states to serve customers, Fireside
specializes in automobile loans, primarily for the purchase of pre-owned
vehicles, and is one of the largest non-prime automobile finance

sources in California.
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Financial Highlights

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

FOR THE YEAR

Earned Premiums $ 2,4852 | $§ 2,457.2 $ 1,878.0 $ 1,561.2 $ 1,442.1
Consumer Finance Revenues 202.8 195.7 171.8 159.1 141.7
Net Investment Income 261.2 231.9 221.9 236.5 220.9
Other Income 13.1 25.1 39.8 8.8 8.0
Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) 78.5 33.9 (13.3) 568.2 140.5
Total Revenues $  3,040.8 $ 29438 $  2,298.2 $ 2,533.8 $ 1,953.2
Net Income (Loss) $ 240.2 | § 1236 | § (8.2)| $ 3809 | $ 91.0
Net Income (Loss) Per Share $ 351 | § 183 | $ (0.12) | $ 5.64 | $ 1.32
Net Income (Loss) Per Share Assuming Dilution $ 348 | § 1.82 | $ 012) 1 % 5.60 $ 1.32
Repurchases of Unitrin Common Stock $ - 1% 14 | $ 94 | § 266 | $ 1223
Dividends to Shareholders:

Cash 113.5 112.2 112.4 108.0 103.1

Spin-off of Curtiss-Wright at Fair Value - - - 196.1 -
Total Capital Returned to Shareholders $ 1135 | $ 113.6 | $ 121.8 | § 3307 | § 2254

Dividends to Shareholders (per share):

Cash $ 1.66 | § 1.66 | $ 1.66 | $ 1.60 | § 1.50

Spin-off of Curtiss-Wright at Fair Value - - - 291 -
AT YEAR END
Investments $ 6,007.5 $ 5,782.9 $ 5,303.8 $ 5,127.5 $  4,2335
Total Assets 8,790.3 8,536.8 7,705.6 7,133.7 6,165.8
Insurance Reserves 3,844.0 3,691.4 3,191.4 2,857.6 2,642.8
Notes Payable 502.8 495.7 377.1 254.8 180.0
Shareholders’ Equity 2,038.7 1,818.9 1,802.4 1,916.8 1,701.2
Book Value Per Share $ 29.62 | $ 2684 | $ 26.66 | $ 2838 | $ 25.15
Fair Value Per Share of Investments in Investees

in Excess of Carrying Value 2.34 2.16 0.11 0.08 6.00
Adjusted Book Value Per Share $ 3196 | $ 2900 | $ 2677 | $ 2846 | $ 31.15
Shares of Unitrin Common Stock Outstanding (in millions of shares) 68.3 - 673 67.6 67.5 67.6

Number of Associates Employed 8,480 8,796 8,739 7,664 7,425




To Our
Shareholders

FEBRUARY 2, 2005

Your Company recorded net income of $240.2 million, or $3.51 per share,
for the year ended December 31, 2004, nearly double the net income of
$123.6 million, or $1.83 per share, recorded in 2003. Operating results
improved in all six of our operating segments. Our Kemper Auto and
Home, Multi Lines Insurance and Life and Health Insurance segments in
particular improved substantially. Our Consumer Finance and Unitrin

Specialty businesses again posted record earnings.

OPERATING RESULTS

Our Multi Lines insurance segment posted net income of $47.0 million
and a combined ratio of 95.0% in 2004, a significant improvement from
net income of $20.7 million after-tax and a combined ratio of 101.8%
posted in 2003.

We have completed the task of re-underwriting our commercial lines
business, non-renewing those classes of business where we do not believe
that we could have achieved an adequate return. The results of the com-
mercial lines re-underwrite project have been encouraging — the operating
results posted by our commercial lines business improved from a loss of
$72.4 million before-tax in 2002, to a profit of $13.2 million before-tax in
2003, and to a profit of $19.1 million before-tax in 2004. Our commercial
lines earned premiums, not surprisingly, shrunk from $308.4 million in
2002 to $250.8 million in 2003 and to $196.0 million in 2004, despite the
significant rate increases taken on our remaining commercial lines busi-
ness. We believe that this smaller block of business gives us a good starting
point to launch our new, stand-alone business unit — Unitrin Business
Insurance (“UBI”). UBI is dedicated to serving the commercial lines
agents previously served by our Multi Lines segment. The UBI challenge
is to provide these agents with state-of-the-art commercial lines automa-
tion and insurance products and to grow the business profitably while
achieving efficient economies of scale.

Along with the launch of UBI on January 1, 2005, we began combining
the personal lines operations of the former Multi Lines segment into
our Kemper Auto and Home segment. This was not an easy decision.
Our dedicated Multi Lines associates worked hard to turn around their
personal lines business and, indeed, recorded an operating profit of
$42.3 million before-tax in 2004, a substantial improvement from the
$11.3 million of operating profit recorded in 2003. However, the combina-
tion of our two independent agency-distributed, personal lines units is
necessary to achieve the economies of scale required to compete in the
insurance marketplace and to produce an adequate return for our share-
holders. We expect to record additional transition costs related to

the combination ranging from $8 million to $11 million over the next
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24 months. The combination will likely not have a positive impact on the
bottom line until 2006. Revenues for the combined personal lines opera-
tions should exceed $1 billion in 2005. -

Unitrin’s Kemper Auto and Home (*KAH”) business passed several
significant milestones in 2004. As you know, we acquired the Kemper
Insurance Companies’ (“KIC”) personal lines business in 2002. That entire
book of business has now been written on Unitrin paper. Our continued
concerns over KIC’s financial health led us to contact KIC to discuss our
remaining affairs. In August of 2004, we reached an agreement and settled
all of the remaining affairs between Unitrin and KIC. We recorded a one-
time after-tax charge of $9.7 million, which primarily represents perform-
ance-based bonus payments that would in all likelihood have been paid to
KIC in future years. We no longer are concerned about the effect that
KIC’s financial condition could have had on our business.

KAH posted net income of $26.7 million in 2004 and a combined ratio
of 100.0%, a substantial improvement from the net loss of $18.9 million
KAH reported in 2003. We expected our KAH results to improve as earned
premiums now reflect the entire book of business. KAH’s incurred loss
ratio improved from 79.2% in 2003, down to 70.6% in 2004, as rate
increases taken on the acquired block of business began to take hold.
KAH recorded $7.9 million of after-tax losses from the four hurricanes
that hit Florida in 2004.

The Unitrin Specialty segment recorded record net income of $31.9 mil-
lion and a combined ratio of 94.5% in 2004. Earned premiums, however,
declined as rate increases were more than offset by a decline in the
number of policies in force as competitors and new entrants have begun
to reduce price. We are focused on maintaining the profitability of the
Unitrin Specialty segment and have made the strategic decision not to
sacrifice margin for growth. The challenge for 2005 remains to maintain,
if not grow, the number of our Unitrin Specialty policies in force while
maintaining the same level of profitability.

We are pleased to report that our Unitrin Direct business posted its first
discrete period operating profit in the fourth quarter of 2004, well ahead
of our original business model. Congratulations to our Unitrin Direct
associates are in order. The net loss recorded by our Unitrin Direct
segment for the full year narrowed from $11.3 million in 2003 down to
$1.6 million in 2004. We fully expect that Unitrin Direct will record posi-
tive net income for the full year in 200s. Qur return targets should be met
in 2007, if not in 2006. We believe that our shareholders will benefit from
this alternative distribution channel in the years to come.

Our Life and Health Insurance segment recorded net income of
$63.0 million in 2004, well above the $46.1 million recorded in 2003.
Life and Health Insurance expenses fell by over $17 million as we largely
completed the combination of our three career agency back-room opera-
tions into one new facility in St. Louis. The vast majority of this business
is centered on a traditional whole life insurance product that depends on
investment income to meet its return objectives. The low interest rate
environment has had an impact on this business. We made the strategic
call to invest a portion of the shorter-term investments that we
maintained in our Life and Health Insurance segment into longer-term

investments, which contributed to the $15.1 million pre-tax increase in
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Life and Health Insurance investment income in 2004. We would again be
remiss if we did not mention the fine performance turned in by our
Reserve National health insurance unit that again reported record profits
in 2004 as part of our Life and Health Insurance segment.

Interest rates have the opposite effect on our Consumer Finance
business — Fireside Bank. As an FDIC insured institution, Fireside funds
its operations largely through certificates of deposits that have recently
been issued at historically low rates. Our Consumer Finance segment
again posted record net income of $27.4 million in 2004 due to the favor-
able interest rate environment and the growth in loans outstanding.
Fireside’s expenses increased by $11.2 million in 2004 as we added head-

count to our collection department to reduce net charge-off.

RCOUNR

INVESTMENT RESULTS

We continue to strive to manage our investment portfolio prudently,
balancing the risk associated with our concentrated equity holdings
in Northrop and UNOVA with a conservative fixed income portfolio
comprised primarily of high grade-corporate and municipal bonds,
agencies and treasuries. Consolidated net investment income increased by
$29.3 million, primarily the result of a higher base of fixed maturity invest-
ments as cash flows from operations and the sale of a portion of our
short-term investments were invested in longer-term fixed maturity
investments. The yield on our fixed income portfolio continued to
decline, albeit slightly, in 2004 as the proceeds from securities that
matured or were called continued to be reinvested at lower rates. At the
end of 2004, we still kept nearly s700 million in relatively short-term
investments — over 10% of our investment portfolio — positioning us to
take advantage of any future rising interest rate environment.

The market value of our equity holdings increased by $148.0 million
during 2004 after taking into account securities that were sold or
purchased. In particular the value of our common stock investment
in UNOVA increased from $290 million at the end of 2003 to $320 million
at the end of 2004. Our net income included positive net income for our
proportionate share of UNOVA’s results for the first time since 1999.
We remain impressed with the technology at UNOVA's Intermec business
and, in fact, in January 2005, we agreed to hire Intermec to develop the
software for the next generation of handheld computers for our Life and
Health Insurance business. Our investment in UNOVA is the only com-
mon stock that we own that is not marked to market through sharehold-
ers’ equity. The fair value of our investment in UNOVA exceeded the
carrying value by $248 million at the end of 2004.

We continued to sell a portion of our sizable equity investment in
Northrop in 2004. We sold 5.3 million shares of Northrop common stock
in 2004, generating pre-tax proceeds of approximately $274 million.
Combined with Northrop sales in 2003, we have now sold 7.4 million out
of the 15.3 million shares of Northrop common stock that we received
when Northrop purchased Litton in 2001. We have in no way lost
confidence in the management of Northrop. Indeed, we still hold a
combination of Northrop common stock, preferred stock and bonds with

a market value of over $650 million. Qur sales were made to reduce the

risk of our asset concentration in Northrop, and to take advantage of
a relatively higher Northrop stock price. We may continue to sell down
our Northrop holdings depending on future market prices and other

capital needs.

__JEpEE |

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
We completed the capitalization of our Property and Casualty group in

2003, largely through redeploying cash and other assets from our Life and
Health Insurance subsidiaries into our Property and Casualty Insurance
subsidiaries. We believe that our Property and Casualty Insurance sub-
sidiaries are now sufficiently capitalized to support future premium
growth and to pay dividends to the Unitrin parent company out of future
earnings. In fact, our Property and Casualty group paid dividends totaling
$50 million in the form of Northrop common stock to the Unitrin parent
company in the second half of 2004.

We do not anticipate substantial changes to our capital structure in
2005. Debt to total capitalization was a modest 19.8% at the end of 2004 —
that ratio falls to 18.6% if the market value of our holdings in UNOVA is
taken into consideration. We plan to replace our $360 miilion undrawn
revolving credit agreement, which expires later this year, with a new
facility some time around the middle of the year.

We believe that we have sufficient resources to maintain, or perhaps
increase in the future, the amount of dividends paid to our shareholders.
Operating company results are expected to more than cover future
dividend payments for the foreseeable future.

We are pleased to take the opportunity in this report to highlight
a few of our nearly 8,500 associates who practice what we preach -
Getting it Right.

ez

Richard C. Vie
Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer

oot £ S-S

Donald G. Southwell
President
and Chief Operating Officer




Getting It Right

Preparation is the key

Striving to get it right is at the core of Unitrin.

The right preparation, the right response, the
right opportunity, the right people, the right
company. Each year, our aim is steady because
our purpose is clear.

No single factor has been as important to the
success of our business as the efforts and ethics
of the nearly 8,500 associates we employ.
Throughout each business unit, in offices across
the country and in the field, they have con-
tributed to a corporate culture of getting it
right. You can recognize someone from the
Unitrin family anywhere — it’s the attitude of
can-do, the willingness to help and the determi-
nation to get it right.

In 2004, as much as in any year of our history,
we saw our associates meet the needs of cus-
tomers and business partners, including the
challenges brought forth by nature. We talked to
some of them and heard firsthand how they are

working to get it right every day.

Right Preparation

“We know how far we have come,” says Gary
Braden, National Catastrophe Claim Office
Manager. Several years ago he was assigned the
responsibility for developing a central catastro-
phe office for what today is Unitrin’s Kemper
Auto and Home (*KAH”). “Our goal in having
a national center was to streamline our
approach to catastrophes and to enable us to

apply critical resources quickly.”
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in an industry where natural disasters are inevitable.

THE

wenr PTEpAration

The KAH catastrophe center, which Braden
manages in Charlotte, North Carolina, allows
his team to assess potential damage to KAH
policyholders’ homes and automobiles from
hurricanes and other catastrophes.

“Other weather events, tornadoes, floods and
storms just happen,” says Braden. “Actually,
hurricanes give us some time for planning.”
That planning has never been so needed or so
valuable as in 2004 when the fury of four hurri-
cane-force storms hit Florida and surrounding
states in short succession.

As Hurricane Charley relentlessly gathered
strength in tropical waters, the KAH catastrophe

team planned and watched.
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Braden and property line manager Wayne
Gray huddled at the KAH catastrophe center,
agreed on a number of assumptions and
assembled their team. They recruited property
specialists and large claims adjusters from KAH
offices as far away as Syracuse, New York, and
Scranton, Pennsylvania, to augment the team of
contract adjusters.

When Hurricane Charley made landfall,
KAH was ready, dispatching a team of adjusters
from a staging area in southern Georgia.

Little did Gray and Braden know that they
would regroup and redeploy their teams three
more times over the next six weeks, coping
with mandatory evacuations that added to the

challenge of reaching customers quickly.
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“Our goal is to provide the best possible
service to our policyholders,” Gray says. “That
means making contact with our customers
ASAP, evaluating the damage and making them
whole. We work hard to provide top quality
service. And we get some great feedback from
our customers.”

“We do the right preparation before going
in,” agrees Dewayne Souders, a Home Office
Property Specialist in the KAH catastrophe
center. “Our number one priority is to get to
our customer. That isn’t always easy in a storm’s
aftermath when there’s no power or phones and

the houses are not habitable.”
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THE

wens People

Even with their intensive preparation and
broad claims experience, the team found a
rapid-fire series of hurricanes, hitting some
areas for a second, third and fourth time,
to be extraordinary.

" Due to their careful planning and intense
preparation, Dave Sheahen, Regional Claims
Manager, found the catastrophe team to be well
prepared for the onslaught of hurricanes
Charley, Frances, Ivan and Jeanne. KAH
consistently displayed the right level of commu-
nication with its agents in the course of the

storms and received positive feedback.

THE

wenr COMpany

“I manage the agency relationships during a
catastrophe, and the feedback I was getting was
inspiring,” reports Sheahen. “When we would
call to reassure customers, answer any
questions, and give them 24-hour contact infor-
mation, our agents told us good-naturedly,
you've really had a chance to train us during

this hurricane season.”



-

Del
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ivering the Right Response

Informed planning and a well-briefed team made the difference

after hurricanes hit Florida and the southeast.

“I was excited to be picked for the KAH rapid
response team,” says Bob Cashier, a specialist in
large property losses out of Syracuse, explaining
that KAH is deliberate in applying the right
resources to any catastrophe. “We want to be
sure that we are evaluating the damage
according to our standards.”

Yet customers also appreciated the sensitivity
shown to their loss. “To be there and to see the
devastation was overwhelming,” recalls Cashier.
“There was so much hardship. Not only did
customers lose their homes and sometimes
everything inside, but they were without power
for three to four weeks. And they were so

grateful to see us. That really touched me”

For the claims adjuster, the intensity of catas-
trophe work can be grueling, says Wayne Gray.
“There are no normal days. Our adjusters
worked from morning to night seven days a
week for six to seven weeks.”

Hard work and timely response won KAH
adjusters the gratitude of their customers.
Gray says, “Our customers were bragging on us,
the way we got to them quickly while home-
owners were queuing up at the big companies’
mobile claim centers. Because we are smaller,
we're more nimble. We seem to move faster.

At least, that’s what our customers tell us.”

3 million Floridians

$20 billion in damage

2004 Hurricane Season a Record-Breaker
0 17,000 utility repairmen struggled to restore power to over

0 During the peak six weeks, more than 15,000 adjusters
industry-wide worked to evaluate over one million claims

o Claims exceeded the 700,000 claims filed for “storm of
the century,” Hurricane Andrew, in 1992

o Hurricanes Charley, Frances, Ivan and Jeanne combined
to exceed Andrew’s $15 billion price tag with more than
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Responding When

It Hits Home

Three of the four hurricanes bore down on
areas around Orlando and Tampa. Among
the hardest hit were rural communities such as
Lake Wales and Haines City, where power
was off more than on during the six-week
siege. Among the residents suffering losses
was John Harrison, a career agent in the
Tampa office of Unitrin’s United Insurance
Company of America (“UICA”) that distributes
property insurance of its sister company,
United Casualty.

“Haines City shut down for eight days,” says
Harrison. “We moved in with my mother.
We were sleeping on her couch, me, my wife,
my four-year-old, my 22-month-old and
my newborn daughter.”

Nevertheless, he was out making service calls
the next day. “What kind of relationship is it
if my customers can’t count on me during
these tough times,” he says. As a career agent
who makes monthly visits to his customers’
homes, he knew each one’s circumstance.
“I'm part of their extended family,” he explains.
“Some custorners wouldn’t have filed a claim if
I had not stopped by

Another UICA career agent is Jennifer
Hurley. She remembers, “Everybody seems to

have lost something, maybe only food, but

something because of the problems with

UNITRIN, INC. & SUBSIDIARIES

power.” Hurley found herself pitching in
to assist beyond the scope of her regular
responsibilities. She transitioned from collect-
ing premiums to helping customers inventory
their losses and file their claims.

“Initially when I told my customers that an
adjuster would come, they wondered why I
couldn’t do it for them,” says Hurley. “They
were more comfortable with me, but I hadn’t
filed claims like this before. My goal was to help
my people, so I took down the information, I
measured and took pictures. It felt good to help
move things ahead.”

A month after the storms, she was still catch-

ing up. “I had customers who were hit hard

three times. Just being there with them was
really important. My customers always thought
I was responsive but being able to do the right
things at this tough time makes all the

difference. It’s what I love about my job.”

Opposite page: Jennifer Hurley, United Insurance Company
of America (above).
Bob Cashier, Kemper Auto and Home (below).

This page, clockwise from top: Dewayne Souders (left),
Dave Sheahen and Gary Braden, Kemper Auto and Home,
Hurricane damage outside Tampa, Florida.

John Harrison, United Insurance Company of America.
Wayne Gray, Kemper Auto and Home.
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Recognizing the Right Opportunity

Unitrin provides motivated individuals the chance to move ahead
and stir up success for themselves, their team and their customers.

Armed with a bachelor’s degree and looking for

the right opportunity, Cory Six joined Unitrin
Specialty several years ago. It was the right
choice. Now, as Senior Product Manager, he has
assumed responsibility for product develop-
ment in several states along with managing
several direct reports.

Collaboration and communication are
among Six’s strengths. As he says, “It’s impor-
tant when you are making or even considering
any product changes that you consult with most
of the people who will be affected — the sales
staff in the field, the systems guys, my colleagues
here. By doing that, T get the full perspective

when I'm making a decision.”

Jim Welch brought his background as an
independent agent to his underwriting job at
Unitrin Specialty. Welch grew up in his father’s
insurance agency business. His broad knowl-
edge and agent background gives him a strong
customer focus. “When [ am working with an
agent, it’s my job to represent all that Unitrin
Specialty has to offer.”

With her finely honed customer service skills,
Gina Horton sees every encounter as an oppor-
tunity to strengthen customer relationships
with Unitrin Specialty. “I know what it’s like to
be a customer, and I will do what I can to make

that experience positive.”
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Opposite page: Tina Robinson, Fireside Bank (above left).
Cory Six, Unitrin Specialty (above right).
Eric De Leon, Fireside Bank (below).

This page: Gina Horton, Unitrin Specialty (left).
Jim Welch, Unitrin Specialty (right).

Angela Mitchell, Unitrin Specialty, and Farzan Komeili,
Fireside Bank, are pictured on the front cover.

Not many employees earn a law degree at
night, work full-time and raise a young family,
but for Angela Mitchell, Director of Claims
Training and Compliance at Unitrin Specialty,
that is the goal. She believes the right training
helps employees deliver the right results, “It’s an
investment in our people. Unitrin Specialty
gives me the opportunity to develop and

execute the right claims training.”

Creating Opportunity

Juleen Rohrbacker, Operations Manager of
Collections for Fireside Bank, gets job satisfac-
tion by creating opportunity for customer
service representatives and for customers.
Fireside Bank has a successful niche in the non-
prime credit market, assisting individuals with
challenging credit needs to purchase pre-owned
automobiles vital for transportation to employ-
ment. “We have been successful through
regular, respectful contact, working with our
right paying
habits and an improved financial life,”

customers to develop the

explains Rohrbacker.

Eric De Leon, a credit review officer with
Fireside Bank, also served as a branch manager.
“What I love about Fireside is that we are good
at what we do. We have the right focus and
the right procedures to support our efforts.
‘We invest in training and coaching our people.
It makes a difference. The quality of the

staff drives our results.”

Sandy Henderson’s three-person marketing
group supports Fireside Bank’s 28 California
branches and 6 loan production offices in other
states with marketing material and research
to identify the right market opportunities
for Fireside Bank’s growth. “We have been
expanding from our base in California into
markets like Kansas City and Phoenix where we
have determined there was a brisk automobile
market. Our expansion plans are conservative
because we understand that we need the right
resources to support our customers.”

Farzan Komeili is branch manager of Fireside
Bank’s fourth largest branch, based in Concord,
California. Overseeing 21 people, including his
own collection department, Komeili says,
“I appreciate the opportunity to run a business.
I have the capability and the team to know
where we stand every day. Fireside Bank treats
employees very well, and that matters in today’s
business environment.”

As senior assistant manager at the Concord
branch, Tina Robinson says, “The culture here
is to enable people to grow and develop.”
She worked for another non-prime lender
before coming to Fireside Bank and notes, “This
is a very clean operation — it stands out because
we are so rigorous in following the right proce-
dures and taking steps to ensure compliance.
We also have the right dedication to our

customers. Customers recognize us for our

respectful manner in conducting our business.”




UNITRIN, INC, & SUBSIDIARIES 1 2004 ANNUAL REPORT
UNITRIN GETS IT RIGHT

It’s All About the Right People

Jeff Zacek was an actuary with Valley Insurance

when Unitrin acquired the company in 1999.
Jeff has filled some critical assignments in
financial and claims, and has been the institu-
tional memory of Valley Insurance as its opera-
tions were integrated with Unitrin’s Multi
Lines. Then in 2003, he was presented the right
opportunity to return to his core expertise and
serve as Chief Actuary with Unitrin Direct.

He agrees that his previous assignments
broadened and stretched him. “Now, with one
product I can dig into the details to really see
how the product is performing.” Since Unitrin
Direct is sold directly to consumers, he’s

contributed to a rapid quote process. “We have

Delivering the right service, creating the right value -
when you have the right people aboard, it's a natural progression.

to minimize the time it takes to complete an
application, while still making an informed
decision to get the right price. It’s all about
maximizing the transaction process.”

Brian Crumbaker, Senior Vice President with
Unitrin Direct, coaches his direct reports to
grow and develop as he leads Unitrin Direct in
the right direction. “I want my team to see me
as a tool for their success.” He’s proud of the
phenomenal year that Unitrin Direct has had —
30% growth while achieving profitability in the
fourth quarter of 2004, three years ahead of the
initial long-term business plan.

To Crumbaker, the right employees drive

results, “That’s the management challenge, to

Putting themselves in
the customer’s shoes,
our associates build

valuable relationships,

one call at a time.
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create an environment where people want to
do their best work. It means hiring the most
talented people, getting them aboard properly,
and giving them the right tools and training.
Ideally, we can help to instill a sense of owner-
ship in our company and our success.
We achieve our results through our people.
When they feel a sense of ownership in our

success, it’s quite contagious.”

Determined to Hear

the Right Ring

When a Vista call center agent gets up to post a
new policy, other agents nearby may pause and

briefly look up to acknowledge the agent’s con-

tribution to the team. At the same time, they
remain focused and determined to achieve the
team’s goals along with their personal goals.
Steve Tom is on a call, building rapport with
a potential customer named Roger. He is quot-
ing against another affordable insurer. “Should
we write this policy for you?” Tom asks. He goes
on, “Yes, I realize it's a few dollars more,
but youll be backed by a financially strong
company.” The caller demurs and Steve
responds, “Well Roger, you have a heck of a deal

there. I'm not sure if the other company has

quoted your vehicle for business use. But you're

right, you have a good deal.” Disappointed, Tom

picks up another call, as if it was the first

UNITRIN, INC. & SUBSIDIARIES

customer he had talked to that day. He’s smiling
as he describes the coverage and help he
can provide.

Michelle Patacsil, customer service manager,
is just three days back from maternity leave,
glancing at her picture of four-month-old Tyler.
“It’s hard being back but I missed my people.”
Then she is on her feet, talking to her
colleagues. “Our customer scores on satisfac-
tion and quality are above the goth percentile
and we did it together as a team.”

Customer service representative Fran Rugari
is on the phone explaining a rate increase.
“You're right,” she says, tabbing through

screens. “You have not had any at-fault acci-

dents. That increase is a rate increase. I know
that’s disheartening. What we’re finding is that
we are still competitive even with this increase.”
The customer thanks her for checking and
decides to stay with Unitrin Direct.

“I think it’s the right way to think about my
job, to put myself in the customer’s shoes,” says
Rugari. “I buy insurance too. Yes, occasionally
you get someone who is really upset. In that
situation, I take deep breaths, remain really
calm and try to be even nicer. It usually

turns out all right.”

Unitrin Direct Associates
Opposite page: Brian Crumbaker (left) and Steve Tom (right).

This page: Jeff Zacek (above) and Fran Rugari (below).
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In the Right Company

At Reserve National, in Oklahoma City,

Oklahoma, the right way of doing things was
a business tradition. So the company fit in
seamlessly when it became part of the Unitrin
family in 1998. “The autonomy that Unitrin
encourages in its business segments is impor-
tant to a division like ours because we’re small
enough to be an extended family,” comments
Teresa Piper, who knows how to treat customers
like family, too.

She began work 24 years ago in policy service
where she answered customer questions over
the telephone. She also worked in the agency
department before taking her current job as
executive assistant to Roger Cole, president of
Reserve National.

Jeff Reeves, assistant underwriting manager
at Reserve National, knows the importance of
carefully tended relationships. “Because our
agents have access to underwriting while they
are with customers in their homes, we can ask
questions and get the underwriting right from
the start,” Reeves says. He knows the business
thoroughly, having joined as an agent in 1986
before joining underwriting. “We think nothing
of calling a customer when we have a question.

Our customers like the individual attention.”

Building the right organization
takes thoughtful strategy and determined action.

Responding to Challenges
While Implementing Strategies
In July 2004, Unitrin announced that it would
consolidate the personal lines insurance opera-
tions of the Multi Lines Insurance segment with
the operations of its KAH segment. Personal
lines customers will be serviced by KAH, and
commercial customers will be serviced by the
newly-formed Unitrin Business Insurance.
Unitrin Business Insurance will build on a
strong agency base, the right infrastructure and
a distinct commercial-only market focus.
“I see the new, stand-alone operation as a
great opportunity to move forward,” says Curt

Haag, Underwriting Product Manager with
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Opposite page: Curt Haag, Unitrin Business Insurance (left).
Teresa Piper, Reserve National Insurance (right).

This page: Jeff Reeves, Reserve National Insurance (left).
Barbara Webb, Unitrin Business Insurance (right).

Unitrin Business Insurance in Dallas. “We're
in the spotlight. We can step up and put on
our own show. It’s a challenge but the team is
up to it.”

A former independent agent, Haag joined
Valley Insurance in Oregon in 1994. Following
Unitrin’s acquisition of Valley Insurance, Haag
went on to be the regional underwriting
manager in Milwaukee before taking on his
present responsibilities in the new operation.
“I'm excited to have a larger view of the
business with oversight of three regions.”

Betty Wheatley, Commiercial Lines Business
Analyst, has been on the policy administration

side of the insurance business for more than

25 years, starting with a competitor before join-
ing Unitrin in 1993. She’s impressed by the pro-
fessionalism of people who remain committed
to their work in spite of the significant changes
taking place within her organization. “While it’s
personally painful, P'm impressed with both the
company’s advance notice of changes and the
way employees have remained committed. to
doing their jobs. I think it speaks to the caliber
of both the people and the company.”
Wheatley commutes from Nashville to Dallas
to work on the new policy administration
system. “It’s going to be a challenge with the

new commercial operation but [ am convinced

we have the right team to meet the challenge.”

-
x

Unitrin Associates are getting it right, serving over 6 million

policyholders and consumer finance customers nationwide.

® Property and Casualty Insurance

# Life and Health Insurance
# Consumer Finance

» Corporate and Other

Nationwide

3,229
4,210

335
206

8,480

Barbara Webb applauds Unitrin’s dramatic
move and sees it as dictated by the market.
“Such changes are necessary if we are going to
prosper and survive,” she observes, Webb has
worked in underwriting since 1980 and joined
Unitrin almost three years ago. She will be a
production underwriter for the stand-alone
commercial business.

Webb loves her work as an underwriter for a
host of reasons. “I like the people contact with
the agents and the creativity it takes to put
together the right package of coverage for the
customer. We excel at finding a need that’s
not being met and providing the solution.

That’s why we're here.”
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A Family of the Right Companies

Each endeavors to get it right

by focusing on what they know best.

N

Unitrin Property

and Casualty Insurance

Unitrin’s Property and Casualty Insurance
Group connects a network of regional insur-
ance carriers that provide a range of personal
and commercial insurance products to millions
of customers across the nation. The group is
comprised of Kemper Auto and Home, Unitrin
Business Insurance, Unitrin Specialty and
Unitrin Direct. The Unitrin companies operat-
ing in these segments provide automobile,
homeowners, commercial multi-peril, fire,
casualty, workers compensation, and other
types of property and casualty insurance to
individuals and businesses. Kemper Auto
and Home, Unitrin Business Insurance and
Unitrin Specialty are supported by a sales force
of independent agents whose experience,
knowledge, and respected standing in their
communities have made them invaluable
partners in growing the business and providing
outstanding service to customers.
ECCAN

Kemper Auto and Home

Kemper Auto and Home provides personal
automobile, homeowners, inland marine, boat
owners, dwelling fire and personal umbrella
insurance to preferred and standard-risk
customers. Kemper Auto and Home’s premier
product, the Package Plus, is a combined auto-

mobile and homeowners insurance policy that

provides the convenience of one transaction
and billing process to fulfill individual insur-
ance needs. Kemper Auto and Home operates in
39 states and has over 2,500 independent agents
as its sales force.

RLCENR

Unitrin Specialty

Unitrin Specialty provides personal and comm-
ercial, non-standard auto insurance to individ-
uals and businesses through more than 8,500
independent agents/brokers in 22 states. Unitrin
Specialty has over 750 employees in three offices
(Dallas, Texas; Woodland Hills, California;
and Salem, Oregon).

Unitrin Specialty is committed to becoming
the friendly, people-focused auto insurance
company, while growing profitably through
strong relationships with our agents/brokers.
Unitrin Specialty’s primary emphasis is on
becoming the most valued auto insurance com-
pany in the independent agent/broker market.
ROCHEE
Unitrin Business Insurance
Unitrin Business Insurance, our newly formed
business unit to service commercial customers,
conducts business in 30 states, with a geograph-
ic emphasis in the south, northwest, and
midwest. This Dallas-based unit primarily sells

commercial auto, general liability, commercial
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fire, commercial multi-peril and workers
compensation insurance. Products are market-
ed by more than 1,200 independent insurance
agencies. These commercial products are
designed and priced for those businesses that
have demonstrated favorable risk characteris-
tics and loss history.

| JEpEY |

Unitrin Direct

Unitrin Direct markets auto insurance primarily
through direct mail, Web insurance portals,
click-thrus and its own Web site. Unitrin Direct
actively sells auto insurance in 18 states
geographically dispersed throughout the
United States.

Unitrin Direct writes a broad spectrum of
auto insurance risks ranging from preferred to
non-standard private passenger auto customers.
The overall business strategy of Unitrin Direct
places great emphasis on competitive pricing
and quality customer service.

Unitrin Direct insurance products accounted
for approximately 10% of the aggregate insur-
ance premium revenues of Unitrin’s property

and casualty insurance business in 2004.

UNITRIN, INC. & SUBSIDIARIES

Unitrin Life and Health Insurance
The Unitrin Life & Health Insurance Group is
one of the top 100 life insurance providers in
the nation. Utilizing a family of career agents,
our Career Agency Companies offer primarily
life and health insurance products to customers
seeking basic protection for themselves and
their families. The Company’s Reserve National
Insurance Company distributes its products in
31 states throughout the south, southwest
and Midwest, through a network of approxi-
mately 250 exclusive independent agents.

| JERE

Career Agency

United

Insurance, Union National, and Reliable Life,

The career agency companies,
employ a field force of over 2,500 career agents
to provide service to customers in their homes
and offer personalized, affordable insurance
products developed for individuals and families
in the lower and moderate income market with
household incomes of less than $25,000 in
25 states. Qur family of career agents offers
primarily life and health insurance products to
customers seeking basic protection for them-
selves and their families. The home office staff
of over 500 supports the efforts of the agents

and field management.

gy § |

Reserve National

Reserve National is our Oklahoma City-based
independent agency company that provides
accident and health insurance coverage to indi-
viduals and small business owners primarily in
rural areas with limited access to the benefits
plans of larger markets. Reserve National offers
products such as scheduled benefit hospitaliza-
tion and surgical plans, critical illness,
home health care, first-occurrence cancer
and heart-attack policies and Medicare supple-

ment insurance.

Consumer Finance

L JEpEy |

Fireside Bank

One of the oldest and most highly regarded
companies of its kind in the western United
States, Fireside Bank provides consumer
finance services. Based in Pleasanton,
California, and with 28 branches and 6 loan
production offices to serve customers, Fireside
specializes in automobile loans, primarily for

the purchase of pre-owned vehicles.
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Built on the Right Foundation

Unitrin's Foundation Principles guide us in all our business

actions and focus our efforts on getting it right.

At Unitrin, we recognize that the manner
in which we conduct our business, and the
perception of such conduct by our customers,
shareholders and the general public, is of para-
mount importance to the long-term success of
our organization. To that end, it is the policy
of Unitrin, Inc. and all the entities comprising
the Unitrin group of companies to conduct
business on an ethical basis in full accordance

with the law.

Unitrin’s Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics, which is summarized below, provides a
basic framework of our values and priorities in
the way our employees conduct business and
interact with their various constituencies. Our
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is not
intended to cover every issue or situation, nor is
it meant to replace our detailed policies.
Rather, it is a statement of our principles in a
number of important areas and is used in
conjunction with our policies and guidelines,
including employee handbooks and operating
guidelines. A complete copy of the Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics is posted in the
Corporate Governance materials on the

Company’s Web site at unitrin.com.

.
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B We Avoid Conflicts of Interest — By that we
mean each employee is expected to act in
the best interests of Unitrin, not for
personal advantage.

@ We Maintain Accurate Financial Books
and Records — The accounting and auditing
functions are integral components which help
to ensure that Unitrin’s financial books and
records are accurate.

We Retain Records Properly — Unitrin will
keep and maintain business records, both
written and electronic, based on relevance and
in accordance with our guidelines.

We Compete Fairly — Unitrin competes fairly
and honestly for its business, and all employees
should endeavor to deal fairly with customers,
agents, vendors, competitors and colleagues.

® We Strive to Comply with All Laws and
Regulations — Unitrin employees are responsi-
ble for understanding the laws and regulations
as they apply to the Company’s businesses and
for preventing, detecting, and reporting
instances of non-compliance.

® We Provide a Positive Work Environment —
In order to recruit, hire and retain the kind of
people we need to deliver high quality service to
our customers, the Company strives to build a
workplace that is based on fair hiring practices
and an environment free of harassment.

® We Properly Use and Safeguard Company
Assets — Unitrin assets and property are to be
used exclusively for the Company’s business or
purposes authorized by the Company.

® We Maintain the Confidences Entrusted
to Us — Employees are expected to maintain the
confidentiality of private information about
customers, vendors, and all other parties.

8 We Want to Know When Something is
Wrong — We offer confidential means for
employees to raise issues and report violations.
® We Are In This Together — Every employee’s
actions count. All employees attend ethics

training and sign a statement of compliance.
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Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers

Unitrin’s Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers applies to Unitrin,
Inc’s Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Accounting
Officer, or persons performing similar functions, and recognizes the
important and unique leadership role that those officers hold with
regard to Unitrin’s corporate governance. Unitrin’s Code of Ethics for
Senior Financial Officers provides principles to which those officers are
expected to adhere and advocate, thereby ensuring that shareholders’
interests are appropriately protected and preserved. The provisions of
this code consist of the principles listed below which supplement, but do
not replace, the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics applicable to all
employees. The officers covered by this Code of Ethics for Senior Finan-

cial Officers are required to:

0 Act with honesty and integrity, avoiding actual or apparent conflicts
of interest between personal and professional relationships.

O Proactively promote ethical behavior as a responsible partner among
peers in the work environment.

0 Provide full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable disclosure in
reports and documents filed with the Securities and Exchange Commis-
sion and in other public communications by Unitrin.

0 Comply with applicable rules and regulations of federal, state
and local governments, and other appropriate private and public
regulatory agencies.

O Act in good faith, responsibly, with due care, competence and
diligence, without misrepresenting material facts or allowing one’s
independent judgment to be subordinated.

O Respect the confidentiality of information acquired in the course of
one’s work except when authorized or legally obligated to disclose; such
confidential information will not be used for personal advantage.

o Understand one’s responsibility to promptly report violations of this
code to the Chief Legal Officer or other appropriate individuals in
accordance with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

O Acknowledge accountability for adherence to this code, and that any
material violation of the code may subject one to disciplinary action up

to and including termination.

Management Report on Internal Control

We, as management of Unitrin, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“Unitrin”),
are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission, internal control over financial
reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons
performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s board
of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the prepara-
tion of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and

procedures that:

O Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company;

0 Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as neces-
sary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

O Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets

that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Management has evaluated the effectiveness of its internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on the control criteria
established in a report entitled Internal Control—Integrated Framework,
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Based on such evaluation, we have concluded that Unitrin’s
internal control over financial reporting is effective as of December 31, 2004.

The independent registered public accounting firm of Deloitte &
Touche LLP, as auditors of Unitrin’s consolidated financial statements, has
issued an attestation report on management’s assessment of Unitrin’s

internal control over financial reporting.

iz

Richard C. Vie
Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer

SISEDE

Eric J. Draut
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer
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SUMMARY OF RESULTS

Net Income was $240.2 million ($3.51 per common share) for the year
ended December 31, 2004, compared to $123.6 million ($1.83 per common
share) for the same period in 2003. Net Income increased for the year
ended December 31, 2004, due primarily to improved segment operating
results in each of the Company’s business segments and higher realized
investment gains as discussed throughout this Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition.

Earned Premiums for the year ended December 31, 2004 increased by
$28.0 million, compared to the same period in 2003, due primarily to a
$73.6 million increase in earned premiums in the Kemper Auto and Home
segment and a $38.7 million increase in earned premiums in the Unitrin
Direct segment, partially offset by a $65.6 million decrease in earned pre-
miums in the Multi Lines Insurance segment and a $25.2 million decrease
in earned premiums in the Unitrin Specialty segment.

Consumer Finance Revenues increased by $71 million for the year
ended December 31, 2004, compared to the same period in 2003, due
primarily to a higher level of loans outstanding.

Net Investment Income increased by $29.3 million for the year ended
December 31,2004, compared to the same period in 2003, due primarily to
higher levels of investments. Other Income decreased by s12.0 million for
the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the same period in 2003,
due primarily to lower administration fees earned to administer certain
run-off business.

Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) was $78.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2004, compared to $33.9 million for the same period
in 2003. Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) for the year ended
December 31, 2004 included pre-tax gains of $82.2 million from sales of
equity securities and pre-tax losses of $5.9 million to write-down certain
securities. Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) for the year ended
December 31, 2003 included pre-tax gains from sales of fixed maturities of
$13.6 million, pre-tax gains of $45.8 million from sales of equity securities,
and pre-tax losses of $20.5 million to write-down certain securities. The
Company cannot anticipate when or if similar investment gains and losses
may occur in the future.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The Company’s subsidiaries conduct their businesses in three industries:
property and casualty insurance, life and health insurance and consumer
finance. Accordingly, the Company is subject to several industry-specific
accounting principles under accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (“GAAP”). The preparation of financial
statements in accordance with GAAP requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. The process of estimation is inherently uncertain.
Accordingly, actual results could ultimately differ materially from the esti-
mated amounts reported in a company’s financial statements. Different
assumptions are likely to result in different estimates of reported amounts.
The Company’s critical accounting policies most sensitive to estimates
include the valuation of investments, the valuation of property and casu-
alty insurance reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses (“LAE”),
the valuation of the reserve for loan losses, the assessment of recoverabil-
ity of goodwill, and the valuation of postretirement benefit obligations.

Valuation of Investments

Except for the Company’s investment in the common stock of UNOVA,
Inc. (“UNOVA”), which is accounted for under the equity method of
accounting, the Company’s investments in fixed maturities, preferred
stocks and common stocks are classified as available for sale and are

recorded at fair value under GAAP. Fair values of these investments are
estimated using quoted market prices where available. For securities not
actively traded, fair values are estimated using values obtained from inde-
pendent pricing services or broker dealers. To estimate the value of these
investments, independent pricing services and broker dealers employ
various models that take into consideration such factors, among others, as
the credit rating of the issuer, duration of the security, yields on compara-
bly rated publicly-traded securities and risk-free yield curves. The actual
value at which such securities could actually be sold or settled with a will-
ing buyer or seller may differ from such estimated fair values depending
on a number of factors including, but not limited to, current and future
economic conditions, the quantity sold or settled, the presence of an active
market and the availability of a willing buyer or seller.

Except for investments accounted for under the equity method of
accounting, based on the Company’s intent with respect to a particular
investment at the time of investment, the Company is generally required
to classify its investments in fixed maturities, preferred stocks and
common stocks into one of three investment categories under GAAP:

a) Trading;

b) Held to maturity; or

¢) Available for sale.

The classification of the investment may affect the Company’s reported
results. For investments classified as trading, the Company is required to
record changes in the fair values into income for the period reported. For
investments in fixed maturities classified as held to maturity, the Company




2004 ANNUAL REPORT | UNITRIN, INC. & SUBSIDIARIES

19 ] MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES [CONTINUED]

Valuation of Investments [continued)

is required to carry the investment at amortized cost, with only the amor-
tization occurring during the period recorded into income. Changes in the
fair value of investments classified as available for sale are not recorded
into income during the period, but rather are recorded as a separate com-
ponent of equity until realized. Investments accounted for under the
equity method of accounting are valued at cost plus cumulative undistrib-
uted earnings and not at fair value. Had the Company reported all the
changes in the fair values of its investments in fixed maturities, preferred
stock and common stock, including its investment in UNOVA, into
income, the Company’s reported net income for the year ended December
31, 2004 would have increased by $69.6 million.

The Company regularly reviews its investments for factors that may indi-
cate that a decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost or amor-
tized cost is other than temporary. Some factors considered in evaluating
whether or not a decline in fair value is other than temporary include:

a) The Company’s ability and intent to retain the investment for a

period of time sufficient to allow for a recovery in value;

b) The duration and extent to which the fair value has been less than

cost; and

¢) The financial condition and prospects of the issuer.

Such reviews are inherently uncertain in that the value of the investment
may not fully recover or may decline further in future periods resulting in
realized losses.

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and

Loss Adjustment Expenses

Property and casualty insurance reserves for losses and LAE are reported
using the Company’s estimate of its ultimate liability for losses and LAE for

claims that occurred prior to the end of any given accounting period but
have not yet been paid. At December 31, 2004, the Company had $1,510.7
million of gross loss and LAE reserves. In estimating reserves, the Com-
pany’s actuaries exercise professional judgment and must consider and, are
influenced by, many variables that are difficult to quantify. Accordingly,
the process of estimating and establishing reserves for losses and LAE for
property and casualty insurance is inherently uncertain and the actual
ultimate net cost of a claim may vary materially from the estimated
amount reserved. The reserving process is particularly imprecise for
claims involving asbestos, environmental matters, construction defect and
other emerging and/or long-tailed exposures which may not be discovered
or reported until years after the insurance policy period has ended.

The Company’s actuaries generally review the results of at least four dif-
ferent estimation rr{ethodologies, two based on paid data and two based
on incurred data to initially estimate loss and LAE reserves. In some cases,
the methodologies produce a cluster of estimates with a tight band of indi-
cated possible outcomes. In other cases, however, the methodologies pro-
duce conflicting results and wider bands of indicated outcomes. However,
such bands do not necessarily constitute a range of outcomes, nor does
management or the Company’s actuaries calculate a range of outcomes.
The Company does not perform additional analysis on the variability of
its estimate of Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves. The Company
believes that its historical loss and LAE reserve development recognized
into income provides an understanding of the potential variability in the
Company’s estimate of Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves. Loss
and LAE reserve development, net of reinsurance and indemnification,
recognized into net income or net loss for each of the calendar years pre-
sented below was:

DEVELOPMENT AS A PERCENTAGE OF

GROSS RESERVES
AT BECINNING

NET RESERVES

FAVORABLE AT BEGINNING

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (ADVERSE) OF YEAR (IY_Eﬁf

Calendar Year ended December 31,
1995 $ 29.6 9.8% " 10.0%
1996 40.4 9.2 10.2
1997 15.9 3.5 3.8
1998 16.8 3.6 37
1999 12.1 2.7 . 2.8
2000 1.4 0.3 0.3
2001 (58.8) (16.9) (11.6)
2002 (82.3) (11.8) (12.9)
2003 (2.8) (0.3) (0.3)
2004 39.0 2.7 4.4
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES [CONTINUED]

Property and Casualty insurance Reserves for Losses and

Loss Adjustment Expenses [continued]

The Company’s goal is to ensure total reserves for losses and LAE are
adequate to cover all costs while sustaining minimal variation from the
time reserves for losses and LAE are initially established until losses and
LAE are fully developed. The amount of such development may be material.

Favorable development would result in an increase in net income in the
year recognized, whereas adverse development would result in a decrease
in net income.

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves by business segment at
December 31, 2004 and 2003 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003
Multi Lines Insurance $ 601.6 | $ 640.2
Unitrin Specialty 270.7 236.8
Kemper Auto and Home 358.1 235.1
Unitrin Direct 93.7 74.9
Life and Health Insurance 5.7 49
Unallocated - 180.9 2344
Total Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves $ 15107 | § 11,4263

The Company does not allocate reserves from its 2002 acquisition of General
Security Insurance Company and General Security Property and Casualty
Company to its business segments—see Note 3 to the Consolidated Finan-
cial Statements— Acquisitions of Businesses and Note 7 to the Consoli-
dated Financial Statements— Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves.
The Multi Lines Insurance segment has exposure to construction defect
losses through general liability and commercial multiperil coverages it
provided to contractors. Construction defect claims arise from alleged
defective work performed in the construction of buildings and the alleged
resulting loss of economic value of those structures. The majority of the
Multi Lines Insurance segment’s construction defect losses is concentrated
in a limited number of western states, including California, and was
primarily written by the Company’s Valley Insurance Company and Valley
Property & Casualty Insurance Company subsidiaries {the “Valley Com-
panies”). The Company acquired the Valley Companies in 1999, at which

time the Valley Companies substantially limited their exposure to contrac-
tors on a going-forward basis in the western United States. As a result, the
Company is tracking construction defect activity throughout the United
States to forecast any emerging trends. There can be no assurance that
such a trend will not emerge in non-western states in which the Company
may have significant general liability insurance risks. The process of esti-
mating reserves for these claims is particularly difficult due to the poten-
tially long period of time between the loss date and the date the loss is
actually reported, changes in the regulatory and legal environment and
involvement of multiple plaintiffs, defendants and insurers.

Loss and LAE reserves for the Valley Companies’ construction defect
losses were $38.2 million and $46.1 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Claim activity for the Valley Companies’ construction defect
claims in the western United States for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002 were:

2004 2003 2002
Number of Claims:
Pending at Beginning of Year 903 621 439
Reported During the Year 329 469 420
Closed During the Year (507) (187) (238)
Pending at End of Year 725 903 621
Cumulative Amount Paid for Claims Closed During the Year (in millions) $ 96 | $ 63 | $ 7.2
Average Cumulative Amount Paid per Claim Closed During the Year (in thousands) $ 189 | § 338 | § 30.1
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES [CONTINUED]

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and

Loss Adjustment Expenses [continued]

The Company’s commercial lines business is focused on the smaller com-
mercial market. The Company has typically not written policies insuring
large manufacturers. Accordingly, the Company’s exposure to asbestos and
environmental losses is limited. Total asbestos and environmental reserves
were approximately $20 million and $22 million at December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

Additional information pertaining to the estimation of and develop-
ment of the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for
Losses and LAE is contained in Item 1 of Part 1 of the Company’s 2004
Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading “Property and Casualty
Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves.”

Reserve for Loan Losses

The Reserve for Loan Losses is estimated using the Company’s estimate
of ultimate charge-offs and recoveries of loans based on past experience
adjusted for current economic conditions. Such charge-offs and recoveries
emerge over a period of years. Accordingly, the Company’s actual ultimate
net charge-off could differ from the Company’s estimate due to a variety
of factors including, but not limited to, future economic conditions, the
timing of charge-offs and recoveries, the value of collateral and changes
in the overall credit quality of the loan portfolio. Actual net charge-off
patterns may also differ materially from historical net charge-off patterns
if there is a change in collection practices, the mix of loans or the credit
quality of borrowers. For example, net charge-off patterns may differ in
the Consumer Finance segment’s expansion states from the Company’s his-
torical experience. A 100 basis point increase in the Company’s estimated
ultimate rate of net charge-off would increase the Company’s Reserve for
Loan Losses at December 31, 2004 by approximately $20 million.

Goodwill Recoverability

The process of determining whether or not an asset, such as Goodwill, is
impaired or recoverable relies on projections of future cash flows, operat-
ing results and market conditions. Such projections are inherently uncer-
tain and, accordingly, actual future cash flows may differ materially from

projected cash flows. In evaluating the recoverability of Goodwill, the Com-
pany performs a discounted cash flow analysis of the Company’s business
segments. The discounted cash value may be different from the fair value
that would result from an actual transaction between a willing buyer and
a willing seller. Such analyses are particularly sensitive to changes in dis-
count rates and investment rates. Changes to these rates might result in
material changes in the valuation and determination of the recoverability
of Goodwill. For example, an increase in the interest rate used to discount
cash flows will decrease the discounted cash value. There is likely to be a
similar, but not necessarily as large as, increase in the investment rate used
to project the cash flows resulting from investment income earned on the
Company’s investments. Accordingly, an increase in the investment rate
would increase the discounted cash value.

Postretirement Obligations
The process of estimating the Company’s postretirement benefit obli-
gations and postretirement benefit costs is inherently uncertain and the
actual cost of benefits may vary materially from the estimates recorded.
These liabilities are particularly volatile due to their long-term nature and
are based on several assumptions. The main assumptions used in the
valuation of the Company’s postretirement pension benefit obligations are:

a) Estimated mortality of the employees and retirees eligible for benefits;

b) Estimated expected long-term rates of returns on investments;

¢) Estimated compensation increases;

d) Estimated employee turnover; and

e) Estimated rate used to discount the ultimate estimated liability to a

present value.

The main assumptions used in the valuation of the Company’s postretire-
ment medical benefit obligations are:

a) Estimated mortality of the employees and retirees eligible for benefits;

b) Estimated morbidity of the employees and retirees eligible for

benefits;
¢) Estimated medical cost trend rates; and
d) The estimated discount rate,
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES [CONTINUED]

Postretirement Obligations [continued]

A change in any one or more of these assumptions is likely to result in
an ultimate liability different from the original actuarial estimate.
Such changes in estimates may be material. For example, 2 one percentage
point decrease in the Company’s estimated discount rate would increase
the pension obligation and the postretirement medical benefit obligation
at December 31, 2004 by approximately $46.9 million and $4.0 million,
respectively, while a one percentage point increase in the rate would
decrease the pension obligation and the postretirement medical benefit
obligation at December 31, 2004 by approximately $38.3 million and $3.5
million, respectively. A one percentage point increase in the Company’s

estimated health care cost trend rate for each year would increase the
postretirement medical benefit obligation at December 31, 2004 by approx-
imately $4.4 million. A one percentage point decrease in the Company’s
estimated health care cost trend rate for each year would decrease the
postretirement medical benefit obligation at December 31, 2004 by approx-
imately $4.0 million. A one percentage point decrease in the Company’s
estimated long-term rate of return on plan assets would increase the pen-
sion expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 by approximately $2.9
million, while a one percentage point increase in the rate would decrease
pension expense by approximately $2.9 million for the same period.

CATASTROPHES

Catastrophes and storms are inherent risks of the property and casualty
insurance business. These catastrophic events include hurricanes, torna-
does, earthquakes, hailstorms, wildfires, high winds and winter storms.
Such events result in insured losses that are, and will continue to be, a mate-
rial factor in the results of operations and financial position of the Com-
pany’s property and casualty insurance companies. Further, because the
level of these insured losses occurring in any one year cannot be accurately
predicted, these losses may contribute to material year-to-year fluctuations
in the results of the operations and financial position of these companies.
Specific types of catastrophic events are more likely to occur at certain
times within the year than others. This adds an element of seasonality to
property and casualty insurance claims. The Company has adopted the
industry-wide catastrophe classifications of a storm and other events
promulgated by Insurance Services Office, Inc. (“ISO”) to track-and report
losses related to catastrophes. ISO classifies a disaster as a catastrophe
when the event causes $25.0 million or more in direct losses to property
and affects a significant number of policyholders and insurers. ISO-classified

catastrophes are assigned a unique serial number recognized throughout
the insurance industry. The segment discussions that follow utilize ISO’s
definition of catastrophes for all periods presented.

Total catastrophe losses and LAE were $31.2 million before-tax, $49.6
million before-tax and $26.9 million before-tax for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Total catastrophe losses
and LAE decreased for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the
same period in 2003, despite catastrophe losses and LAE from Hurricanes
Charley, Frances, Ivan and Jeanne, due primarily to lower catastrophe
losses and LAE in the Multi Lines Insurance segment.

During the third quarter of 2004, four hurricanes (Charley, Frances,
Ivan and Jeanne) made landfall in several states along the Gulf Coast and
the eastern United States. All four hurricanes made landfall in the state of
Florida, the first time in over 100 years that four hurricanes have made land-
fall in the same state in the same hurricane season. The Company’s esti-
mated catastrophe losses and LAE before-tax from these hurricanes, net of
estimated recoveries from the Florida Hurricane Catastrophe Fund, were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS CHARLEY FRANCES IVAN JEANNE TOTAL
Multi Lines Insurance $ - % 01 $ 04 3 -1 8 0.5
Unitrin Specialty - - - - -
Kemper Auto and Home 3.0 3.7 3.8 1.6 12.1
Unitrin Direct 0.6 0.4 04 0.3 1.7
Life and Health Insurance 1.2 1.3 2.1 1.9 6.5
Total Losses and LAE $ 48 $ 55 $ 67 $ 38 | § 20.8
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KIC SETTLEMENT

In June 2002, the Company acquired the personal lines property and casu-
alty insurance business of Kemper Insurance Companies (“KIC”). Pur-
suant to the agreements among the parties, KIC retained all liabilities for
policies issued by Kemper Auto and Home (“KAH”) prior to the closing,
while Trinity Universal Insurance Company (“Trinity”), a subsidiary of
Unitrin, is entitled to premiums written for substantially all policies issued
or renewed by the Kemper Auto and Home segment after the closing and
is liable for losses and expenses incurred thereon. The purchase price was
$42.3 million (the “Determinable Purchase Price Component”), plus 1% of
premiums written over a three-year period beginning January 1, 2003 (the
“Variable Purchase Price Component”). Due to the nature of the Variable
Purchase Price Component, at the acquisition date the Company could
not reasonably determine the contingent consideration that would be
paid. Pursuant to the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”™) No. 141, Business Combinations, the Variable Purchase
Price Component was not recorded as a cost of the acquisition until such
determination was reasonably made. As further consideration under the
agreements, KIC was eligible for performance bonuses if the business met
certain loss ratio criteria over the same three years. Such performance
bonuses were subject to expense as incurred.

In connection with the acquisition, the Company also acquired the stock
of KIC’s direct distribution personal lines subsidiaries (“Kemper Direct”),
which sold personal automobile insurance to consumers over the Internet.
Pursuant to the provisions of the stock acquisition agreement between the
Company and KIC, KIC agreed to indemnify the Company for 90% of any
adverse loss and loss adjustment expense reserve development for policy
losses incurred by Kemper Direct prior to the acquisition date, while KIC
was entitled to 90% of any favorable development on such policy losses.

On August 20, 2004, the Company and KIC agreed to settle and extin-

guish certain liabilities and obligations arising under the acquisition

including, but not limited to, the Variable Purchase Price Component and
the performance bonus (the “KIC Settlement”). On August 31, 2004, the
Company paid to KIC $13.0 million to settle the Variable Purchase Price
Component for the period of July 1, 2004 to December 31, 2005, $18.4 mil-
lion to settle the performance bonus for all years in the three-year period
ending December 31, 2005, and $5.0 million for premium taxes and certain
other accrued costs. At the same time, KIC paid to the Company $3.6 mil-
lion to settle its obligation to reimburse the Company for the cost of
administering certain business of KIC which was excluded from the acqui-
sition (the “KIC Run-off”) and $0.9 million to settle KIC’s obligation
under the loss indemnification described above.

During the third quarter of 2004, the Company recorded a consolidated
charge of $14.9 million before-tax in connection with the KIC Settlement
due primarily to the performance bonus, partially offset by certain service
fee adjustments. The Variable Purchase Price Component paid in connec-
tion with the KIC Settlement was capitalized and is recorded in Other
Assets. The performance bonus paid in connection with the KIC Settle-
ment was recorded in expense for the year ended December 31, 2004. For
management reporting purposes, the Company has not allocated such
expense to the Kemper Auto and Home segment, and accordingly, such
expense is included in Other Expense, Net in Note 18 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements—Business Segments. The net impact of the KIC Set-
tlement included in the Kemper Auto and Home segment for year ended
December 31, 2004 was income of $3.5 million before-tax. Prior to the KIC
Settlement the Company had paid to KIC and capitalized $11.9 million for
the Variable Purchase Price Component covering the period January 1,
2003 through June 30, 2004. Also, the loss ratio criteria had not been met
and, accordingly, a performance bonus had not been recorded in the Com-
pany’s Financial Statements.

PERSONAL LINES COMBINATION

The Company intends to combine the personal lines insurance operations
of its Multi Lines Insurance segment with the operations of its Kemper
Auto and Home segment in 2005. The Company expects that the combi-
nation will help it achieve greater economies of scale, reduce expenses and
provide more options for its independent agents. The Company is unable
to predict the effect that the combination will have on written and earned
premiums. The Company estimates that it will incur certain restructuring
costs including, but not limited to, severance and other employee related
costs, office closing costs, and certain computer system costs, in connection
with the combination. The Company recognized expense of $5.2 million
before-tax for restructuring costs for the year ended December 31, 2004 in

connection with the combination. The Company estimates that it will rec-
ognize additional expense in the range between $8 million before-tax to
$11 million before-tax for these costs over the next 24 months. The results
for the Multi Lines Insurance segment presented in the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition
include results from the personal lines operations of the Multi Lines Insur-
ance segment. Beginning in 2005, such personal lines results will be
included in the Kemper Auto and Home segment and results for all prior
periods will be conformed to the 2005 presentation. The remaining com-
mercial lines operations of the Multi Lines Insurance segment will be

reported in 2005 in a separate segment called Unitrin Business Insurance.
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DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002
Earned Premiums:
Personal Lines:
Automobile $ 1947 201.2 194.0
Homeowners 68.2 71.1 71.3
Other Personal 8.9 10.3 10.5
Total Personal Lines 271.8 282.6 275.8
Commercial Lines:
Automobile 71.5 93.5 114.5
Property and Commercial Liability 100.5 123.4 139.8
Other Commercial 24.0 33.9 54.1
Total Commercial Lines 196.0 250.8 308.4
Total Earned Premiums 467.8 533.4 584.2
Net Investment Income 38.1 34.2 31.6
Total Revenues 505.9 567.6 615.8
Incurred Losses and LAE 289.3 373.8 524.8
Insurance Expenses 155.2 169.3 184.2
Operating Profit (Loss) 61.4 24.5 (93.2)
Income Tax Benefit (Expense) (14.4) (3.8) 36.9
Net Income (Loss) $ 47.0 20.7 (56.3)
RATIO BASED ON EARNED PREMIUMS
Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio (excluding Catastrophes) 60.9% 66.5% 87.1%
Incurred Catastrophe Loss and LAE Ratio 0.9 3.6 2.7
Total Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio 61.8 70.1 89.8
Incurred Expense Ratio 33.2 31.7 31.6
Combined Ratio 95.0% 101.8% 121.4%
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MULTI LINES INSURANCE [CONTINUED)

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS

DEC. 31, 2004 DEC. 31, 2003

Insurance Reserves:
Personal Lines:
Automobile
Homeowners
Other Personal
Total Personal Lines
Commercial Lines:
Automobile
Property and Commercial Liability
Other Commercial
Total Commercial Lines

Insurance Reserves

$ 1146 | $ 120.9
28.3 32.6

2.5 "~ 5.8

145.4 159.3

90.7 101.6

256.8 265.5
108.7 113.8
456.2 480.9

$ 6016 | $ 640.2

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS

DEC. 31, 2004 DEC. 31, 2003

Loss Reserves:
Case
Incurred but Not Reported
Total Loss Reserves
LAE Reserves
Total Insurance Reserves

FOR THE YEAR ENDED

Favorable Loss and LAE Reserve Development, Net (excluding Catastrophes)
Favorable Catastrophe Loss and LAE Reserve Development, Net

Total Favorable Loss and LAE Reserve Development, Net

Loss and LAE Reserve Development as a Percentage
of Insurance Reserves at Beginning of Year

$ 2488 | § 300.3

230.6 210.0
479.4 510.3
122.2 129.9

$ 6016 | §$ 640.2

$ 189 | § 16.3
3.0 44
$ 219 | $ 20.7

3.4% | 3.1%

Earned Premiums in the Multi Lines Insurance segment decreased by $65.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the same period
in 2003. Personal lines earned premiums decreased by $10.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the same period in 2003, due
primarily to lower premium volume, partially offset by higher premium
rates, most notably in Homeowners Insurance. The Company anticipates
that premium rates on personal lines will remain relatively flat next year.
Commercial lines earned premiums decreased by $54.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2004, compared to the same period in 2003, due
primarily to lower premium volume, partially offset by higher premium
rates. The Company attributes the lower commercial lines volume largely
to its efforts to re-underwrite that book of business, which resulted in a
significant reduction in policies in force. The Company substantially com-
pleted such re-underwriting activities during the first quarter of 2004,
but continued to experience its impact on earned premiums throughout
the year. The Company anticipates that premium rates on commercial
lines will increase moderately next year. The Company is unable to predict
what impact the Company’s combination of the personal lines insurance

operations of its Multi Lines Insurance segment with the operations of
its Kemper Auto and Home segment will have on written and earned pre-
miums. Net Investment Income in the Multi Lines Insurance segment
increased by $3.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared
to the same period in 2003, due primarily to higher levels of investments.

Operating Profit in the Multi Lines Insurance segment increased by
$36.9 million before-tax for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared
to the same period in 2003, due primarily to improved results in personal
lines. The improved results in personal lines was due primarily to
improved premium rate adequacy, lower catastrophe losses and LAE and
favorable loss and LAE reserve development (which recognizes changes in
estimates of prior year reserves in the current period, including develop-
ment on catastrophe losses and LAE). Catastrophe losses and LAE (includ-
ing development) in personal lines were $2.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004, compared to $12.6 million in 2003. Reserve develop-
ment in personal lines was approximately $15 million favorable for the year
ended December 31, 2004, compared to approximately $9 million favorable
for the same period in 2003.
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MULTI LINES INSURANCE [CONTINUED]

Commercial lines results also improved, but to a lesser degree, due primar-
ily to improved premium rate adequacy and lower catastrophe losses and
LAE, partially offset by higher fixed insurance expenses as a percentage of
earned premiums and lower favorable loss and LAE reserve development
for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the same period in
2003. Insurance expenses increased as a percentage of earned premiums
due primarily to the lower earned premiums. Catastrophe losses and LAE
in commercial lines were $1.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2004, compared to $6.6 million for the same period in 2003. Reserve devel-
opment in commercial lines was approximately $7 million favorable for
the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to approximately $12 million
favorable for the same period in 2003.

Net Income in the Multi Lines Insurance segment increased by $26.3
million after-tax for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the
same period in 2003, due primarily to the improved operating profit. The
Multi Lines Insurance segment’s effective income tax rate differs from the
federal statutory income tax rate due primarily to tax exempt investment
income. Tax exempt investment income in the Multi Lines Insurance seg-
ment was $19.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to
$14.9 million for the same period in 2003.

Earned Premiums in the Multi Lines Insurance segment decreased by
$50.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to the same
period in 2002. Personal lines earned premiums increased by $6.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to the same period in
2002, due primarily to higher premium rates, partially offset by lower
premium volume. Commercial lines earned premiums decreased by

$57.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to the same
period in 2002, due primarily to lower premium volume, partially offset by
higher premium rates. Net Investment Income increased by $2.6 million
for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to the same period in
2002, due primarily to higher levels of investments, partially offset by
lower yields on investments. Investment levels in the Multi Lines Insur-
ance segment increased due primarily to capital contributions received
from its parent, Unitrin, Inc. (see discussion under “Liquidity and Capital
Resources”).

Operating results in the Multi Lines Insurance segment improved by
$117.7 million before-tax for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared
to the same period in 2002. Total loss and LAE reserve development had a
favorable effect of approximately $21 million for the year ended December
31, 2003, compared to an adverse effect of approximately $58 million for
the same period in 2002. Catastrophe losses and LAE (including develop-
ment) were $19.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, an increase
of $3.4 million compared to the same period in 2002. Excluding reserve
development and catastrophe losses and LAE, operating results improved
due primarily to improved premium rate adequacy in both personal and
commercial lines, the Company’s efforts to re-underwrite its commercial
lines products and lower personal lines expenses as a percentage of earned
premiums, partially offset by higher commercial lines expenses as a per-
centage of earned premiums.

Net Income in the Multi Lines Insurance segment improved by $77.0
million after-tax for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to the
same period in 2002, due primarily to the improved operating results.

UNITRIN SPECIALTY

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002
Earned Premiums:

Personal Automobile $ 3766 | $ 426.2 | $ 405.4

Commercial Automobile 109.9 85.0 46.5

Other 0.3 0.8 1.0
Total Earned Premiums 486.8 512.0 452.9
Net Investment Income 18.0 15.9 14.8
Total Revenues 504.8 527.9 467.7
Incurred Losses and LAE 356.4 380.7 366.0
Insurance Expenses 103.6 108.3 102.3
Operating Profit (Loss) 44.8 38.9 (0.6)
Income Tax Benefit (Expense) (12.9) (11.4) 1.8
Net Income $ 319 | $ 275 | $ 1.2
RATIO BASED ON EARNED PREMIUMS
Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio (excluding Catastrophes) 73.1% 74.0% 80.5%
Incurred Catastrophe Loss and LAE Ratio 0.1 0.3 0.3
Total Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio 73.2 74.3 80.8
Incurred Expense Ratio 21.3 21.2 22.6
Combined Ratio 94,5% 95.5% 103.4%
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UNITRIN SPECIALTY [CONTINUED]

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS DEC. 31, 2004 DEC. 31, 2603
Insurance Reserves:

Personal Automobile $ 168.1 | § 172.3

Commercial Automobile 83.3 51.3

Other 19.3 13.2
Insurance Reserves $ 270.7 | $ 236.8
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS DEC. 31, 2004 DEC. 31, 2003
Loss Reserves:

Case $ 1372 | $ 115.2

Incurred but Not Reported 82.8 70.5
Total Loss Reserves 220.0 185.7
LAE Reserves 50.7 51.1
Total Insurance Reserves $ 270.7 $ 236.8
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
Favorable (Adverse) Loss and LAE Reserve Development, Net (excluding Catastrophes) $ 14 | $ (19.0)
Favorable (Adverse) Catastrophe Loss and LAE Reserve Development, Net - (0.1)
Total Favorable (Adverse) Loss and LAE Reserve Development, Net $ 14 | $ (19.1)
Loss and LAE Reserve Development as a Percentage

of Insurance Reserves at Beginning of Year 0.6% | (9.9)%

Earned Premiums in the Unitrin Specialty segment decreased by $25.2 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the same period
in 2003, due primarily to lower premium volume in personal automobile,
partially offset by higher premium volume in commercial automobile
and higher premium rates in both personal automobile and commercial
automobile. The lower personal automobile premium volume was due
primarily to increased competition, most notably in Texas, California and
Missouri. The higher commercial automobile premium volume was due
primarily to increases in heavier weight class vehicles and higher policy
limits in Texas and increases in medium and heavier weight classes in
California. Net Investment Income increased by s2.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2004, compared to the same period in 2003, due
primarily to higher levels of investments.

Operating Profit in the Unitrin Specialty segment increased by $5.9 mil-
lion before-tax for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the same
period in 2003. Operating Profit in personal automobile increased due
primarily to lower losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums,
partially offset by the effects of lower volume. Net loss and LAE reserve
development (which recognizes changes in estimates of prior year loss and
LAE reserves in the current period) in personal automobile had an adverse
effect of $1.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to
an adverse effect of $16.6 million for the same period in 2003. Catastrophe
losses and LAE in personal automobile were $0.3 million in 2004, com-
pared to catastrophe losses and LAE of $1.9 million for the same period in

2003. Operating Profit in commercial automobile increased due primarily
to the higher premium volume, partially offset by higher losses and LAE as
a percentage of earned premiums. Losses and LAE increased as a percent-
age of earned premiums, due primarily to inadequate premium rates in
commercial automobile heavier weight classes, and higher policy limits in
Texas. The Unitrin Specialty segment has experienced higher frequency
and severity of losses than expected in these classes in Texas. In the third
quarter of 2004, Unitrin Specialty began increasing premium rates signif-
icantly in these classes of business in Texas to take this recent experience
into consideration. Net loss and LAE reserve development in commercial
automobile had a favorable effect of s1.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004, compared to an adverse effect of $4.0 million for the
same period in 2003.

The Company intends to exit its motorcycle insurance business
beginning in 2005. Earned premiums from motorcycle insurance were
$16.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Unitrin Specialty’s
motorcycle insurance business had an operating loss of $3.6 million
before-tax for the year ended December 31, 2004. Unitrin Specialty
includes its motorcycle insurance line of business in its personal automo-
bile insurance product line.

Net Income in the Unitrin Specialty segment increased by $4.4 million
after-tax for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the same
period in 2003, due primarily to the higher operating profit. The Unitrin
Specialty segment’s effective income tax rate differs from the federal statutory
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UNITRIN SPECIALTY [CONTINUED]

income tax rate due primarily to tax exempt investment income. Tax exempt
investment income in the Unitrin Specialty segment was $8.4 million and
$6.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Earned Premiums in the Unitrin Specialty segment increased by $59.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to the same
period in 2002, due primarily to higher premium volume in commercial
automobile and higher premium rates in both personal automobile and
commercial automobile, partially offset by lower premium volume in
personal automobile. Net Investment Income in the Unitrin Specialty
segment increased by $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003,
compared to the same period in 2002, due primarily to higher levels of
investments, partially offset by lower yields on investments.

Operating Profit in the Unitrin Specialty segment increased by $39.5
million before-tax for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to the
same period in 2002, due primarily to lower losses and LAE and expenses
as a percentage of earned premiums. Losses decreased as a percentage of
earned premiums due primarily to improved premium rate adequacy. Net
loss and LAE reserve development had an adverse effect of $19.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to an adverse effect of
$22.6 million for the same period in 2002. Insurance Expenses decreased
as a percentage of earned premiums due primarily to improved premium
rate adequacy.

Net Income in the Unitrin Specialty segment increased by $26.3 million
after-tax for the year er}ded December 31, 2003, compared to the same
period in 2002, due primarily to the higher operating profit.

XEMPER AUTO AND HOME

On June 28, 2002, Unitrin closed its acquisition of the personal lines prop-
erty and casualty insurance business of KIC in a cash transaction. The
business unit acquired from KIC, referred to herein as “Kemper Auto and
Home” or “KAH,” specializes in the sale of personal automobile and
homeowners insurance through independent agents. The acquisition is

more fully described in Note 3 to the Company’s Consolidated Financial
Statements— Acquisitions of Businesses. The results of the Kemper Auto
and Home segment are included in the Company’s results of operations
from the date of acquisition and were as follows:

EEL.LARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002
Earned Premiums:

Automobile $ 4415 | $ 4169 | $ 86.6

Homeowners 196.2 158.4 24.4

Other Personal 36.3 25.1 3.1
Total Earned Premiums 674.0 600.4 114.1
Net Investment Income 27.2 16.2 2.8
Other Income 7.0 17.8 319
Total Revenues 708.2 634.4 148.8
Incurred Losses and LAE 475.8 475.4 88.4
Insurance Expenses 198.2 192.3 79.4
Operating Profit (Loss) 34.2 (33.3) (19.0)
Income Tax Benefit (Expense) (7.5) 14.4 6.6
Net Income (Loss) $ 26.7 | $ (189) | $ (12.4)
RATIO BASED ON EARNED PREMIUMS
Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio (excluding Catastrophes) 67.4% 74.4% 74.4%
Incurred Catastrophe Loss and LAE Ratio 3.2 4.8 3.1
Total Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio 70.6 79.2 77.5
Incurred Expense Ratio 29.4 32.0 69.6
Combined Ratio 100.0% 111.2% 147.1%
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KEMPER AUTO AND HOME [CONTINUED]

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS DEC. 31, 2004 D[i 31, 2003
Insurance Reserves:
Personal Automobile $ 2814 | $ 178.3
Homeowners 58.8 45.1
Other 17.9 11.7
Insurance Reserves $ 3581 | 3 235.1
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS DEC. 31, 2004 DJEEL?,E?OE

Loss Reserves:

Case $ 135.7 | $ 91.5

Incurred but Not Reported 191.6 126.5
Total Loss Reserves 327.3 218.0
LAE Reserves 30.8 17.1
Total Insurance Reserves $ 3581 | $ 235.1
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
Favorable (Adverse) Loss and LAE Reserve Development, Net (excluding Catastrophes) $ 133 | § (3.7)
Favorable (Adverse) Catastrophe Loss and LAE Reserve Development, Net 0.3 (1.8)
Total Favorable (Adverse) Loss and LAE Reserve Development, Net $ 13.6 $ (5.5)
Loss and LAE Reserve Development as a Percentage

of Insurance Reserves at Beginning of Year 5.8% | (10.5)%

Earned Premiums in the Kemper Auto and Home segment increased by
$73.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the same
period in 2003, due primarily to the completion of a full annual cycle of
writing and issuing policies following the acquisition. The Kemper Auto
and Home segment is administering on behalf of KIC all policies issued
prior to the closing and certain policies issued or renewed after the clos-
ing, but excluded from the acquisition. Other Income decreased by $10.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the same
period in 2003, due to lower volume of administered policies and related
claims, partially offset by certain adjustments in connection with the KIC
Settlement. Net Investment Income increased by $11.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2004, compared to the same period in 2003, due
primarily to higher levels of investments.

The Kemper Auto and Home segment recorded Operating Profit of $34.2
million before-tax for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to an
Operating Loss of $33.3 million before-tax for the same period in 2003.
Operating results for the year ended December 31, 2004 improved in the
Kemper Auto and Home segment due primarily to lower incurred losses and
LAE, excluding catastrophes, as a percentage of earned premiums and lower
catastrophe losses and LAE. Incurred losses and LAE, excluding catastro-

phes, as a percentage of earned premiums in the Kemper Auto and Home

segment decreased for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the ’
same period in 2003, due primarily to improved premium rate adequacy
and the impact of favorable loss and LAE reserve development. The Com-
pany’s loss and LAE reserve development in the Kemper Auto and Home
segment was favorable by $13.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2004, compared to adverse development of $5.5 million for the same
period in 2003. The Kemper Auto and Home segment incurred catastrophe
losses and LAE of $12.1 million from Hurricanes Charley, Frances, Ivan and
Jeanne in 2004. Including losses and LAE from these hurricanes, catastro-
phe losses and LAE in the Kemper Auto and Home segment, for the year
ended December 31, 2004 were $21.5 million, compared to catastrophe losses
and LAE of $28.6 million for the same period in 2003. Insurance expenses
in 2004 and 2003 include expenses related to administering the KIC Run-off.
The Company estimates that Other Income approximated the cost of admin-
istering the KIC Run-off. Excluding the cost of administering the KIC Run-
off, insurance expense as a percentage of earned premiums were 28.4% and
29.1% for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The net impact of the KIC Settlement included in the Kemper Auto
and Home segment for the year ended December 31, 2004 was income of
$3.5 million before-tax.
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KEMPER AUTO AND HOME [CONTINUED]

The Kemper Auto and Home segment recorded Net Income of $26.7 mil-
lion after-tax for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to a Net
Loss of $18.9 million after-tax for the same period in 2003. Net Income in
the Kemper Auto and Home segment increased for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2004 due primarily to the increase in pre-tax operating results.
The effective income tax rate in the Kemper Auto and Home segment
differs from the federal statutory income tax rate due primarily to net
investment income from tax exempt investments. Tax exempt investment
income in the Kemper Auto and Home segment was $12.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2004, compared to $7.0 million for the same
period in 2003.

Pursuant to the agreements among the parties, KIC retained all liabili-
ties for policies issued by Kemper Auto and Home prior to the closing,
while Trinity, a subsidiary of Unitrin, is entitled to premiums written for
substantially all policies issued or renewed by the Kemper Auto and Home
segment after the closing and is liable for losses and expenses incurred
thereon. Accordingly, the results for the Kemper Auto and Home segment
presented for 2003 and 2002 are not necessarily indicative of a full year on
a going-forward-basis. Premiums are recognized as revenues in the Com-
pany’s consolidated financial statements not when written, but rather as
earned over the life of the policy. Accordingly, earned premiums, which
relate to the elapsed portion of each policy’s term, are recognized as rev-
enues over several quarters. As a result, until the Kemper Auto and Home
segment completed a full annual underwriting cycle from the acquisition
date, earned premiums increased on a quarter-to-quarter basis, while

premiums written were more level over the same period.

Earned Premiums in the Kemper Auto and Home segment increased by
$486.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to the
same period in 2002, due primarily to the aforementioned effects of the
annual writing cycle. The Kemper Auto and Home segment recorded an
Operating Loss of $33.3 million after-tax for the year ended December 21,
2003. The Operating Loss in the Kemper Auto and Home segment
decreased in each quarter of 2003 due primarily to improved premium
rate adequacy and the increase in Earned Premiums.

At the acquisition date, Unitrin’s property and casualty insurance
subsidiaries were not licensed in all the states where the KAH business
is written nor were certain computer and data processing modifications
completed to allow for the migration of the KAH business to the Company’s
property and casualty insurance subsidiaries. Accordingly, to facilitate the
transition of such business to Unitrin’s property and casualty insurance sub-
sidiaries, KIC and Trinity entered into a quota share reinsurance agreement
whereby Trinity reinsured, on a 100% indemnity basis, substantially all of
the KAH business written or renewed by KIC after the acquisition date.
KIC’s financial condition deteriorated rapidly after the acquisition, and
accordingly, Unitrin accelerated its transition of the business directly to its
property and casualty insurance subsidiaries. Unitrin’s property and casualty
insurance subsidiaries have obtained all necessary licenses and have
completed all necessary computer and data processing modifications.
The transition of the business directly to Unitrin’s property and casualty
insurance companies is complete.

UNITRIN DIRECT

Unitrin Direct, the Company’s direct marketing automobile insurance unit,
markets personal automobile insurance directly to customers primarily
through direct mail and the Internet using web insurance portals, click-
thrus and its own website, “Unitrindirect.com.” Unitrin Direct began
actively marketing personal automobile insurance in 2001. On June 28,
2002, the Company acquired the insurance companies comprising KIC’s
direct marketing automobile insurance business, Kemper Direct, in a cash

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS

transaction. The results of its operations are included in the Company’s
and the Unitrin Direct segment’s results of operations from the date of
acquisition. The acquisition is more fully described in Note 3 to the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements-—Acquisitions of Businesses.

The Unitrin Direct segment continues to build economies of scale as
shown by its growth in premiums written in the table below:

2004 2003 2002

Premiums Written:
New Business
Renewal Business

Total Premiums Written

$ 950 | § 64.1 $ 54.9
118.2 100.8 43.1
$ 2132 | § 1649 | $ 98.0
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UNITRIN DIRECT [CONTINUED]

Premiums Written, which report the total amount of premiums to be
received over the policy term, in the Unitrin Direct segment increased
by $48.3 million in 2004, compared to the same period in 2003, primarily
due to higher volume of insurance.

Premiums are recognized as revenues in the Company’s financial state-
ments not when written, but rather as earned over the life of the policy.
Earned premiums relate to the elapsed portion of each policy’s term. The

difference between Premiums Written and Earned Premiums relating to
the remaining portion of each policy’s term is reflected as a deferred rev-
enue liability referred to as Unearned Premiums in the Company’s Con-
solidated Balance Sheets. Results of the Unitrin Direct segment recognized
in the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002
Premiums Written $ 2132 | % 1649 | $ 98.0
Increase in Unearned Premiums (24.6) (15.0) (24.4)
Earned Premiums 188.6 149.9 73.6
Net Investment Income 6.9 33 0.9
Total Revenues 195.5 153.2 74.5
Incurred Losses and LAE 149.8 123.9 65.8
Insurance Expenses 50.8 48.7 43.8
Operating Loss (5.1) (19.4) (35.1)
Income Tax Benefit 35 8.1 12.1
Net Loss $ (1.6) | $ (11.3) | $ (23.0)
RATIO BASED ON EARNED PREMIUMS

Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio (excluding Catastrophes) 78.3% 82.7% 89.4%
Incurred Catastrophe Loss and LAE Ratio 1.1 - -
Total Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio 79.4 82.7 89.4
Incurred Expense Ratio 26.9 32.5 59.3
Combined Ratio 106.3% 115.2% 148.7%
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS DEC. 31, 2004 DEC. 31, 2003

Loss Reserves:
Case
Incurred but Not Reported
Total Loss Reserves
LAE Reserves
Total Insurance Reserves

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
Favorable Loss and LAE Reserve Development, Net

Loss and LAE Reserve Development as a Percentage
of Insurance Reserves at Beginning of Year

$ 595 | $ 42.6

17.5 19.6
77.0 62.2
16.7 12.7

$ 937 | § 74.9

$ 21 | % 19

2.8% | 3.8%
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UNITRIN DIRECT [CONTINUED]

Earned Premiums for the year ended December 31, 2004 were $188.6 million,
compared to $149.9 million for the same period in 2003. Earned Premiums
increased due to higher volume and higher premium rates. Net Investment
Income in the Unitrin Direct segment increased by $3.6 million in 2004, com-
pared to the same period in 2003, due primarily to higher levels of investments.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, the Unitrin Direct segment
recorded an Operating Loss of $5.1 million before-tax, compared to an
Operating Loss of $19.4 million before-tax for the same period in 2003.
The Unitrin Direct segment’s Operating Loss in 2004 decreased due
primarily to lower insurance expenses as a percentage of earned premiums
and lower non-catastrophe incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of
earned premiums, partially offset by higher incurred losses and LAE from
catastrophes. Non-catastrophe incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of
earned premiums reflect increased premium rate adequacy. Insurance
expenses as a percentage of earned premiums decreased due primarily to
improved economies of scale. Losses and LAE from catastrophes, includ-
ing Hurricanes Charley, Frances, Ivan and Jeanne, in the Unitrin Direct
segment were $2.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The
Unitrin Direct segment did not record any losses and LAE from catastro-
phes for the year ended December 31, 2003.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, the Unitrin Direct segment
recorded a Net Loss of $1.6 million after-tax, compared to a Net Loss of
$11.3 million after-tax for the same period in 2003, due primarily to the
corresponding decreases in the Unitrin Direct segment’s pre-tax Operating

Loss. The effective income tax rate in the Unitrin Direct segment differs
from the federal statutory income tax rate due primarily to net investment
income from tax exempt investments. Tax exempt investment income in
the Unitrin Direct segment was $3.6 million for the year ended December
31, 2004, compared to $1.8 million for the same period in 2003. For the
three months ended December 31, 2004, Unitrin Direct recorded positive
Operating Profit and Net Income for the first time on a discrete quarter
basis. The Company anticipates that the Unitrin Direct segment will reach
profitability on a full year basis in 2005.

Earned Premiums for the year ended December 31, 2003 were $149.9 mil-
lion, compared to $73.6 million for the same period in 2002. Earned Premi-
ums increased due to the inclusion of Kemper Direct for a full year, higher
volume of insurance and higher premium rates. Net Investment Income in
the Unitrin Direct segment increased by $2.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003, compared to the same period in 2002, due to higher
levels of investments partially offset by lower vields on investments.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, the Unitrin Direct segment
recorded an Operating Loss of $19.4 million before-tax, compared to an
Operating Loss of $15.1 million before-tax for the same period in 2002. The
Unitrin Direct segment’s Operating Loss decreased in 2003 due primarily
to lower incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums
reflecting increased premium rate adequacy and lower insurance expenses
as a percentage of earned premiums reflecting the segment’s progress
toward achieving economies of scale.

LIFE AND HEALTH INSURANCE

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002
Earned Premiums:

Life $ 401.7 $ 402.3 $ 403.3

Accident and Health 161.3 158.9 155.6

Property 105.0 100.3 94.3
Total Earned Premiums 668.0 661.5 653.2
Net Investment Income 150.0 134.9 151.6
Other Income 3.6 4.4 43
Total Revenues 821.6 800.8 809.1
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE 396.9 387.1 387.3
Insurance Expenses 3274 344.8 334.0
Operating Profit 97.3 68.9 87.8
Income Tax Expense 34.3 22.8 30.5
Net Income $ 630 | $ 46.1 | $ 57.3
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Earned Premiums in the Life and Health Insurance segment increased by
$6.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the same
period in 2003, due primarily to higher accident and health insurance pre-
mium rates and higher volume of property insurance sold by the Life and
Health Insurance segment’s career agents, partially offset by lower volume of
accident and health insurance. The higher accident and health insurance
premium rates earned in 2004 contributed approximately $9 million to the
increase in Earned Premiums, while a decrease in volume on those same
products accounted for a decrease in Earned Premiums of approximately
$6 million. The increase in Earned Premiums for property insurance sold
by the Life and Health Insurance segment’s career agents was almost
entirely due to volume. Net Investment Income in the Life and Health
Insurance segment increased by $15.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2004, compared to the same period in 2003, due to higher levels of fixed
maturity investments and higher yields on investments. The Life and Health
Insurance segment reduced its short-term investments during 2004 and rein-
vested those funds in higher yielding fixed maturities with longer durations.

Operating Profit in the Life and Health Insurance segment increased by
"$28.4 million before-tax for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared
to the same perjod in 2003, due primarily to the higher net investment
income, lower life insurance expenses, improved results from accident and
health insurance products and improved results, excluding catastrophe
losses and LAE, on property insurance sold by the Life and Health Insur-
ance segment’s career agents, partially offset by higher life insurance
policyholders” benefits and the higher catastrophe losses and LAE. Life
insurance expenses decreased by approximately $13 million due primarily
to lower salaries and fringe benefits, partially the result of the Company’s
efforts to consolidate back office operations and a change in the Com-
pany’s estimate of the cost to resolve certain legal matters. Accident and
health insurance results, excluding net investment income, improved by
approximately $7 million as a result of lower incurred losses and LAE and
lower insurance expenses as a percentage of earned premiums. Excluding
catastrophe losses and LAE and net investment income, results from prop-
erty insurance sold by the Life and Health Insurance segment’s career
agents improved approximately $4 million for the year ended December 31,
2004, compared to the same period in 2003. Life insurance policyholders’
benefits increased approximately $10 million due primarily to higher mor-
tality and a change in the actuarial estimate of reserves resulting from the
conversion of certain business to a new computer system. Catastrophe
losses and LAE, including losses and LAE of $6.5 million from Hurricanes
Charley, Frances, Ivan and Jeanne, on property insurance sold by the Life
and Health Insurance segment’s career agents were approximately $8 mil-

lion for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to approximately

$3 million for the same period in 2003. Net Income in the Life and Health
Insurance segment increased by $16.9 million after-tax for the year ended
December 31, 2004, compared to the same period in 2003, due primarily to
the higher pre-tax Operating Profit.

Earned Premiums in the Life and Health Insurance segment increased
by $8.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to the
same period in 2002, due primarily to higher accident and health insur-
ance premium rates and higher volume of property insurance sold by the
Life and Health Insurance segment’s career agents, partially offset by lower
volume of accident and health insurance and lower volume of life insur-
ance. The higher accident and health insurance premium rates earned in
2003 contributed approximately $8 million to the increase in Earned Pre-
miums, while a decrease in volume on those same products accounted for
a decrease in Earned Premiums of approximately $5 million. The increase
in Earned Premiums for property insurance sold by the Life and Health
Insurance segment’s career agents was almost entirely due to volume in
2003. Net Investment Income in the Life and Health Insurance segment
decreased by $16.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, com-
pared to the same period in 2002, due to lower levels of investments and
lower yields on investments. Investment levels in the Life and Health
Insurance segment decreased due primarily to intercompany dividends in
the form of cash and other investments paid by the segment in June and
December of 2002 to its parent, Unitrin, Inc.

Operating Profit in the Life and Health Insurance segment decreased by
$18.9 million before-tax for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared
to the same period in 2002. Operating Profit decreased due primarily to
the lower investment income and the effects of a change in the Company’s
actuarial estimate of certain reserves in 2002, partially offset by improved
results on property insurance sold by the Life and Health Insurance seg-
ment’s career agents, including lower catastrophe losses and LAE. In 2002,
the Company recorded a benefit of $9.6 million resulting from a change in
the Company’s actuarial estimate of certain reserves. Excluding catastrophe
losses and LAE and net investment income, results on property insurance
sold by the Life and Health Insurance segment’s career agents improved by
approximately $3 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared
to the same period in 2002. Catastrophe losses and LAE on property insur-
ance sold by the Life and Health Insurance segment’s career agents were
approximately $3 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared
to approximately $5 million for the same period in 2002. Net Income in the
Life and Health Insurance segment decreased by $11.2 million after-tax for
the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to the same period in 2002,
due primarily to the lower pre-tax Operating Profit.
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CONSUMER FINANCE

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002
Interest, Loan Fees and Earned Discounts $ 1929 | $ 1843 | $ 159.9
Net Investment Income 4.3 5.6 7.2
Other Revenues 5.6 5.8 4.7
Total Revenues 202.8 195.7 171.8
Provision for Loan Losses 45.8 54.4 39.1
Interest Expense on Certificates of Deposits and Savings Accounts 32.7 34.2 35.9
General and Administrative Expenses 77.2 66.0 57.9
Operating Profit 47.1 41.1 38.9
Income Tax Expense 19.7 17.2 15.6
Net Income $ 274 | $ 239 | 8 233
Consumer Finance Loan Originations $ 6391 | 9 5945 | § 572.7

DEC. 31, 2004 DEC. 31, 2003

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS

Percentage of Consumer Finance Receivables:
30 Days to 59 Days Past Due
60 Days to 89 Days Past Due
90 Days and Greater Past Due

Ratio of Reserve for Loan Losses to Gross Consumer Finance Receivables
Weighted-Average Yield on Certificates of Deposits and Savings Accounts

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
Reserve for Loan Losses—Beginning of Year
Provision for Loan Losses
Net Charge-off:
Consumer Finance Receivables Charged-off
Consumer Finance Receivables Recovered
Net Charge-off
Reserve for Loan Losses—End of Year

7.1% 7.3%
2.5 2.5
1.0 0.9
5.5% 5.4%
3.5% 3.5%
$ 518 | $ 45.1
45.8 54.4
(77.9) (74.7)
36.9 27.0
(41.0) (47.7)
$ 56.6 | $ 51.8

Interest, Loan Fees and Earned Discounts in the Consumer Finance seg-
ment increased by $8.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2004,
compared to the same period in 2003, due primarily to higher levels of
loans outstanding, partially offset by lower interest rates. Net Investment
Income in the Consumer Finance segment decreased by $1.3 million for
the vear ended December 31, 2004, compared to the same period in 2003,
due to lower levels of investments and lower yields on investments.
Operating Profit in the Consumer Finance segment increased by $6.0
million before-tax for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the
same period in 2003. Provision for Loan Losses decreased by $8.6 million
for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the same period in
2003, due primarily to a lower estimated rate of ultimate loan losses as a
result of higher recoveries and lower net charge-off. Interest Expense on
Certificates of Deposits and Savings Accounts decreased by s1.5 million for
the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the same period in 2003,
due primarily to lower interest rates on Certificates of Deposits and Sav-
ings Accounts, partially offset by higher levels of deposits. General and

Administrative Expenses, as a percentage of Interest, Loan Fees and
Earned Discounts, increased from 35.8% for the year ended December 31,
2003, t0 40.0% for the year ended December 31, 2004, due primarily to an
increase in the size of the collection department and higher collection
incentive pay, which resulted in increased recoveries of charged-off loans.
Net Income in the Consumer Finance segment increased by $3.5 million
after-tax for the year ended December 31, 2004 due primarily to the higher
operating profit.

Interest, Loan Fees and Earned Discounts in the Consumer Finance seg-
ment increased by $24.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, com-
pared to the same period in 2002, due primarily to a higher level of loans
outstanding. Net Investment Income in the Consumer Finance segment
decreased by $1.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared
to the same period in 2002, due primarily to lower yields on investments.

Operating Profit in the Consumer Finance segment increased by $2.2
million before-tax for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to the

same period in 2002. Provision for Loan Losses increased by $15.3 million
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for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to the same period in
2002, due primarily to a higher estimated rate of ultimate losses and the
higher level of loans outstanding. Interest Expense on Certificates of
Deposits and Savings Accounts decreased by 1.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003, compared to the same period in 2002, due primarily

to lower interest rates on Certificates of Deposits and Savings Accounts,

partially offset by higher levels of deposits to support the growth in loans
outstanding. General and Administrative Expenses, as a percentage of
Interest, Loan Fees and Earned Discount, decreased from 36.2% for the
year ended December 31, 2002, to 35.8% for the year ended December 31,
2003, due primarily to the higher levels of loans outstanding.

INVESTEE

The Company accounts for its investment in the common stock of
UNOVA under the equity method of accounting. UNOVA is listed on the
New York Stock Exchange and is subject to the reporting requirements of
the federal securities laws. UNOVA is held for investment purposes. The
fair value of the Company’s Investment in Investee was $320.1 million at
December 31, 2004, compared to an asset carrying value of $71.9 million
under the equity method of accounting.

At December 31, 2004, the Company owned approximately 20.8% of
UNOVA’s common stock. UNOVA stated in its December 31, 2003 annual
report on Form 10-K that it is “an industrial technologies company pro-
viding global customers with solutions for improving their efficiency and
productivity” and that its industrial automation systems business segment
(“IAS”) is “a leading producer of value-added manufacturing technologies,
products and services that span the production cycle from process engi-
neering and design to systems integration, including comprehensive life
cycle support.” IAS “serves primarily the global automotive, off-road vehi-
cle and diesel engine industries,” as well as, the “aerospace, industrial com-
ponents, heavy equipment and general job shop markets.” Products in its
automated data systems business segment include “rugged mobile comput-
ing solutions and automated data collection systems for field, on-premises
and site-based workers as well as wireless network systems for untethered
enablement of an enterprise, and barcode label and printing solutions.”

The Company accounts for its Investment in Investee under the equity
method of accounting using the most recent and sufficiently timely pub-
licly-available financial reports and other publicly-available information
which generally results in a three-month-delay basis (see Note 2 to the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements—Summary of Accounting
Policies). Equity in Net Income (Loss) of Investee was income of $3.6 mil-
lion, a loss of $1.2 million and a loss of s1.9 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Prior to the periods presented in the Company’s Consolidated Financial
Statements, the Company determined that a decline in the fair value of its
investment in UNOVA was other than temporary under applicable
accounting standards. Accordingly, the Company reduced the carrying
value of its investment in UNOVA to its then current estimated realizable
value and allocated the reduction to the Company’s proportionate share of
UNOVA’s non-current assets. Accordingly, the Company’s reported equity
in the net income of UNOVA differs from the Company’s proportionate
share of UNOVAs reported results to the extent that such results include
depreciation, amortization or other charges related to such non-current
assets. The fair value of the Company’s investment in UNOVA subse-
quently recovered such that the fair value exceeded the carrying value of
the Company’s investment in UNOVA by $248.2 million and $225.8 mil-
lion at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. In accordance with appli-
cable accounting standards, such excess is not recorded in the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements. '

Three of Unitrin’s subsidiaries participated in a financing agreement
whereby the subsidiaries and other unrelated parties became participants
in a s75 million three-year term loan agreement with UNOVA. Under the
agreement, the subsidiaries initially, in July 2001, provided $31.5 million in
funding to UNOVA. During 2003, UNOVA paid the remaining unpaid
principal balance of $6.8 million to Unitrin’s subsidiaries. During 2002,
UNOVA paid $23.9 million to Unitrin’s subsidiaries.

Two of Unitrin’s subsidiaries own a portion of UNOVAs outstanding
publicly-traded notes maturing in March 2005 with a total par value of
$5.0 million. Unitrin’s subsidiaries’ investments in UNOVA’s publicly-
traded notes are included in Investments in Fixed Maturities at December
31, 2004 and 2003.
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INVESTMENT RESULTS

Net Investment Income was $261.2 million, $231.9 million and $221.9 million
in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Net Investment Income increased by
$29.3 million in 2004, compared to the same period in 2003, due primarily
to higher levels of fixed maturity investments. Net Investment Income
increased by $10.0 million in 2003, compared to the same period in 2002,

due primarily to higher levels of fixed maturity investments, partially off-
set by lower yields on investments.

The components of Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002
Fixed Maturities:

Gains on Dispositions $ 1.8 | $ 136 | $ 5.5

Losses on Dispositions (0.6) (0.7) (1.3)

Losses from Write-downs (0.1) (2.5) (10.9)
Northrop Common Stock:

Gains on Dispositions 43.2 7.2 -
Other Equity Securities:

Gains on Dispositions 39.0 38.6 2.7

Losses on Dispositions (0.9) (2.5) (0.7)

Losses from Write-downs (5.8) (18.0) (16.5)
Other Investments:

Gains on Dispositions 2.3 0.3 8.4

Losses on Dispositions (0.4) (0.3) (0.5)

Losses from Write-downs - (1.8) -
Net Realized Investment Gains {Losses) $ 78.5 3 33.9 3 (13.3)

Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) for the year ended December 31,
2004 includes pre-tax gains of $43.2 million from sales of a portion of the
Company’s investment in Northrop Grumman Corporation (“Northrop”)
common stock, pre-tax gains of $27.0 million resulting from sales of a por-
tion of the Company’s investment in Baker Hughes, Inc. (“Baker Hughes”)
common stock, and pre-tax gains of $3.9 million from sales of a portion of
the Company’s investment in Hartford Financial Services Group, Inc.
(“Hartford”) common stock. The fair values of the Company’s remaining
investments in Northrop’s common stock, Baker Hughes’ common stock
and Hartford’s common stock were $430.3 million, $48.4 million and $20.6
million, respectively, at December 31, 2004. The other gains and losses
from sales of equity securities included in Net Realized Investment Gains
(Losses) were due to sales of investments in 32 different issuers.

Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) for the year ended December 31,
2003 includes Gains on Dispositions of Fixed Maturities of $13.6 million,
including recoveries from sales on fixed maturities written down in prior
years. Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2003 includes pre-tax gains of s12.0 million resulting from the sale
of the Company’s investment in ITT Industries, Inc. common stock, pre-
tax gains of 7.2 million from sales of a portion of the Compahy’s invest-
ment in Northrop common stock, pre-tax gains of $6.6 million from sales
of the Company’s investment in ISO common stock, pre-tax gains of

$5.7 million from sales of a portion of the Company’s investment in Hart-

* ford common stock, and pre-tax gains of $4.4 million resulting from sales

of a portion of the Company’s investment in Baker Hughes common
stock. The other gains and losses from sales of equity securities included
in Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) were due to sales of investments
in 54 different issuers. Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) for the year
ended December 31, 2003 includes a pre-tax loss of $1.8 million to write
down investment real estate.

Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) for the year ended December 31,
2002 includes a pre-tax gain of $8.1 million due to the sale of certain invest-
ment real estate and pre-tax gains of $1.5 million resulting from sales of a
portion of the Company’s investment in Baker Hughes common stock.

The Company regularly reviews its investment portfolio for factors that
may indicate that a decline in the fair value of an investment is other than
temporary. Some of the factors considered in evaluating whether or not a
decline in fair value is other than temporary include:

1) The Company’s ability and intent to retain the investment for a

period of time sufficient to allow for a recovery in value;

2) The duration and extent to which the fair value has been less than

cost; and

3) The financial condition and prospects of the issuer.
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CORPORATE INVESTMENTS

The Company considers the management of certain investments, includ-
ing Northrop preferred and common stock, Baker Hughes common stock
and its investee, UNOVA, to be a corporate responsibility and excludes

income from these investments from its Operating Segments. Dividend
income from these Corporate Investments for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002
Northrop Preferred Stock $ 124 | $ 124 | $ 12.8
Northrop Common Stock 8.7 12.3 12.3
Baker Hughes Common Stock 0.8 1.2 1.4
Total Unallocated Dividend Income $ 219 | $ 259 | § 26.5

The changes in fair values of Unitrin’s Corporate Investments for the year
ended December 31, 2004 were:

HOLDING

FAIR VALUE GAIN ARISING FAIR VALUE
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS DEC. 31, 2003 DISPOSITIONS DURING PERIOD DEC. 31, 2004
Equity Securities: )
Northrop Preferred Stock $ 2209 | 8 - 8 134 | § 2343
Northrop Common Stock 633.9 (273.9) 70.3 430.3
Baker Hughes Common Stock 82.2 (56.4) 22.6 48.4
Investee:
UNOVA Common Stock 290.5 - 29.6 320.1
Total Corporate Investments $ 1,2275 $ (3303) § 135.9 $ 1,033.1

Dividend income from the Company’s investments in Northrop common
stock and Baker Hughes common stock has decreased due to sales of a

portion of the Company’s investment in these companies (see discussion
above under heading “Investment Results”).

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At December 31, 2004, there are approximately 3.5 million shares of the
Company’s outstanding common stock that can be repurchased under
the Company’s Board of Directors outstanding repurchase authorization.
Common stock can be repurchased in open market or in privately nego-
tiated transactions from time to time subject to market conditions and
other factors. The Company did not repurchase shares of its common
stock in 2004. The Company has repurchased and retired approximately
54.7 million shares of its common stock in open market transactions at
an aggregate cost of approximately $1.5 billion since 1990. The Company
may from time to time repurchase shares of its common stock subject to
market conditions and other factors.

On August 30, 2002, the Company entered into a $360 million unse-
cured revolving credit agreement, expiring August 30, 2005, with a group
of banks. Proceeds from advances under the agreement may be used for
general corporate purposes, including repurchases of the Company’s com-
mon stock. There were no borrowings outstanding under the Company’s
revolving credit agreement at December 31, 2004 and 2003. The Company
plans to replace the agreement with a new unsecured revolving credit
agreement prior to the expiration of the existing agreement.

On July 1, 2002, the Company issued $300 million of its 5.75% senior
notes due July 1, 2007 (the “5.75% Senior Notes”) in exchange for proceeds
of $296.8 million, net of transaction costs, for an effective yield of 5.99%.
Proceeds were used to repay borrowings under the Company’s former
revolving credit agreement. The 5.75% Senior Notes are unsecured and

may be redeemed in whole at any time or in part from time to time at the
Company’s option at specified redemption prices. Interest expense under
the 5.75% Senior Notes was $17.9 million, $17.8 million and $8.¢9 million for
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively,

On October 30, 2003, the Company utilized the remaining capacity
under its shelf registration statement and issued $200 million of its 4.875%
senior notes due November 1, 2010 (the “4.875% Senior Notes”). The
4.875% Senior Notes are unsecured and may be redeemed in whole at any
time or in part from time to time at the Company’s option at specified
redemption prices. The Company issued the 4.875% Senior Notes in
exchange for proceeds of $198.0 million, net of transaction costs, for an
effective yield of 5.04%. The Unitrin parent company used the proceeds
from the notes to fund the purchase of Northrop common stock from one
of its subsidiaries as discussed below and to repay borrowings outstanding
under its revolving credit agreement. Interest expense under the 4.875%
Senior Notes was $10.0 million and s1.7 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Company does not antici-
pate significant additional changes in its capital structure during 2005.

At December 31, 2002, the Unitrin parent company held 1,144,689 shares
of Northrop common stock and also held 1,774,812 shares of Northrop
preferred stock. In June 2003, the Unitrin parent company sold 207,564
shares of common stock to its subsidiary, Union National Life Insurance
Company. On December 26, 2003, the Unitrin parent company purchased
all 1,936,092 shares of Northrop common stock held by its subsidiary, United
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES [CONTINUED]

Insurance Company of America (“United”). During December 2003, the
Unitrin parent company sold 1,034,700 shares of Northrop common stock
in the open market, generating gross proceeds of approximately $97 million.
Following these transactions, at the end of 2003, the Unitrin parent com-
pany held 1,838,517 shares of Northrop common stock and also continued to
hold 1,774,812 shares of Northrop preferred stock. During the first two quar-
ters of 2004, the Unitrin parent company sold 1,838,517 million shares of
Northrop common stock in the open market, generating gross proceeds of
approximately $184 million. During the last two quarters of 2004, Trinity
paid dividends to the Unitrin parent company, which included 916,751
shares of Northrop common stock with a market value of approximately
$s0 million. Following these transactions, at December 31, 2004, the
Unitrin parent company held 916,751 shares of Northrop common stock
with a market value of approximately sso million and also continued to
hold 1,774,812 shares of Northrop preferred stock with a market value of
approximately $234 million. In addition, Trinity also held 6,998,549 shares
of Northrop common stock with a market value of approximately $380
million at December 31, 2004.

During 2004, three of Unitrin’s subsidiaries (Trinity, Fireside Securities
Corporatidn and Southern States General Agency) paid $51.6 million, $16.7
million and $0.5 million, respectively, in dividends to Unitrin. As a result of
the KIC acquisition and premium growth in the Unitrin Specialty segment
and in the Unitrin Direct segment, Unitrin made capital contributions total-
ing $192.8 million to its property and casualty insurance subsidiaries in 2003.
The Company believes that its property and casualty insurance subsidiaries
are sufficiently capitalized at December 31, 2004 to fund future premium
growth and to pay dividends to Unitrin out of future operating earnings.

The primary sources of funds for the Company’s insurance subsidiaries
are premiums and investment income. The primary uses of funds are the
payment of policyholder benefits under life insurance contracts and claims
under property and casualty insurance contracts and accident and health
insurance contracts, the payment of commissions and general expenses and
the purchase of investments. Generally, there is a time lag between when
premiums are collected and when policyholder benefits and insurance
claims are paid. Accordingly, during periods of growth, insurance compa-
nies typically experience positive operating cash flows and are able to
invest a portion of their operating cash flows to fund future policyholder
benefits and claims. During periods in which premium revenues decline,
insurance companies may experience negative cash flow from operations
and may need to sell investments to fund payments to policyholders and
claimants. In addition, if the Company’s property and casualty insurance
subsidiaries experience several significant catastrophic events over a rela-
tively short period of time, investments may have to be sold in advance of
their maturity dates to fund payments which could either result in invest-
ment gains or losses. Management believes that its insurance subsidiaries
maintain adequate levels of liquidity and surplus capacity to manage the
risks inherent with any differences between the duration of their liabilities
and invested assets and to provide adequate liquidity in the event that
its property and casualty insurance subsidiaries experience several cata-
strophic events over a relatively short period of time.

The primary sources of funds for Fireside Bank are customer deposits,
repayments of consumer loans, interest on consumer loans and invest-
ment income. The primary uses of funds for Fireside Bank are loans made
to consumers, repayment of customer deposits, interest paid to depositors
and general expenses. '

Cash Flow from Operating Activities decreased by $287.4 million for the
year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the same period in 2003, due
primarily to the inclusion of KIC premiums for a full year for both periods
and the aforementioned time lag between when premiums are collected
and when policyholder benefits and insurance claims are paid. In addition,
the Company paid income taxes of $254.2 million during the year ended
December 31, 2004, compared to receiving a refund of $1.4 million in the
same period in 2003. Income taxes paid increased due to the higher operat-
ing results and higher income taxes on the sales of investments. Cash Flow
from Operating Activities increased by $189.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003, compared to the same period in 2002, due primarily to
the inclusion of premiums of KIC for a full year, premium growth in other
segments and the aforementioned time lag between when premiums are
collected and when policyholder benefits and insurance claims are paid.

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities is largely dependent on Cash Flow
from Operating Activities and to a lesser extent cash flow, if any, from
Financing Activities. Cash Flow Used by Investing Activities decreased by
$400.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the
same period in 2003 and increased by $249.6 million in 2003 compared
to 2002, due primarily to the corresponding changes in Net Cash from
Operating Activities.

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities decreased by $145.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the same period in
2003. The Company generated $198 million in proceeds in 2003 from the
issuance of its 4.875% Senior Notes, due November 1, 2010. During 2003,
the Company also reduced its outstanding borrowings under its revolving
credit agreement by $80 million. Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities
increased by $119.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared
to the same period in 2002, due to the issuance of the Company’s 4.875%
Senior Notes in 2003 and also due to higher Certificates of Deposits raised
in 2002 to support a higher level of growth in the Company’s Consumer
Finance segment.

As further discussed in Note 4 to the Company’s Consolidated Financial
Statements— Investments Other Than Investee, from time to time some of
Unitrin’s subsidiaries may hold collateral from unrelated parties pursuant
to securities lending agreements whereby unrelated parties borrow secu-
rities from the subsidiaries’ accounts. The subsidiaries are required to
return such collateral upon return of the loaned security. Accordingly,
the amount of such collateral would not be available to meet ongoing
obligations to policyholders and claimants, as well as ordinary operating
expenses. Unitrin and its subsidiaries have not formed special purpose
entities or similar structured financing vehicles to access capital and/or
manage risk or for any other purpose. The Company’s retained earnings at
December 31, 2004 includes $42.3 million representing the undistributed
equity in net income of investee.
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The Company’s management believes that it has sufficient resources to
maintain the payment of dividends to its shareholders at the present level.
Sources for future shareholder dividend payments and the payment of
interest on Unitrin’s senior notes include the receipt of dividends from
Unitrin’s operating subsidiaries, the receipt of dividends from its investments

in Northrop, borrowings under the revolving credit agreement, and mon-
etization of a portion of the Unitrin parent company’s Northrop holdings.
At December 31, 2004, the Unitrin parent company directly held invest-
ments in Northrop preferred and common stock with a market value
totaling $284.1 million.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has no material obligations under a guarantee contract
meeting the characteristics identified in paragraph 3 of Financial Account-
ing Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. (“FIN”) 45, Guarantor’s
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebtedness of Others. The Company has no material retained or contin-
gent interests in assets transferred to an unconsolidated entity. The Com-
pany has no material obligations, including contingent obligations, under

contracts that would be accounted for as derivative instruments. The
Company has no obligations, including contingent obligations, arising out
of a variable interest in an unconsolidated entity held by, and material to,
the Company, where such entity provides financing, liquidity, market risk
or credit risk support to, or engages in leasing, hedging or research and
development services with, the Company. Accordingly, the Company has
no material off-balance sheet arrangements.

CONTRACTUAL CBLIGATIONS

Projected cash disbursements pertaining to the Company’s contractual
obligations at December 31, 2004 is as follows:

JAN. 1, 2005 JAN, 1, 2006 JAN. 1, 2008
T0 TO TO AFTER

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS DEC. 31, 2005 DEC. 31, 2007 DEC. 31, 2009 DEC. 31, 2008  ToTAL
Long-Term Debt Obligations $ 05 $ 3010 § 1.0 $ 2072 | $ 509.7
Certificates of Deposits 334.8 283.6 277.6 26.4 922.4
Capital Lease Obligations 0.3 0.6 0.3 - 1.2
Operating Lease Obligations 24.8 38.2 19.8 27.0 109.8
Purchase Obligations 69.7 5.7 3.3 1.6 80.3
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, Net of Reinsurance 560.4 474.6 126.9 119.9 1,281.8
Other Contractual Obligations Reflected in Long-Term Liabilities

on the Consolidated Balance Sheet under GAAP 59.9 90.9 34.6 12.9 198.3
Total Contractual Obligations $ 1,0504 $ 1,1946 $ 4635 $ 3950 | $ 3,1035

In 2004, the Company committed to invest $100 million in a limited liabil-
ity investment company, of which $65 million was unfunded at December
31, 2004. Cash flow related to Purchase Obligations in 2005 is due primar-
ily to funding this committment. In addition, in January 2005, the Com-
pany agreed to purchase, subject to due diligence by the Company, certain
investment real estate for approximately ss7 million including the
assumption of a $12 million mortgage. In January 2005, the Company also
agreed to sell, subject to due diligence by the buyer, other investment real
estate, the proceeds of which will likely be used to fund the obligation
described in the preceding sentence.

The projected cash disbursements for Property and Casualty Insurance
Reserves are presented net of anticipated reinsurance recoveries of $228.9
million, including recoveries of $180.9 million from General Security
National Insurance Company, a subsidiary of SCOR Reinsurance Com-
pany (see Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements—Property and
Casualty Insurance Reserves). Other Contractual Obligations Reflected in
Long-Term Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet under GAAP
primarily consist of interest obligations related to Long-Term Debt Obli-
gations and Certificates of Deposits.

INTEREST AND OTHER EXPENSES

Interest and Other Expenses was $57.4 million, $45.3 million and $26.9 mil-
lion in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Interest expense was $28.3 mil-
lion, $21.4 million and $12.2 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Other Corporate Expenses were $29.1 million, $23.9 million and s14.7
million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Other Corporate Expenses

increased by $5.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared
to the same period in 2003, due primarily to higher compensation and
employee benefit costs. Other Corporate Expenses increased by $9.2 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to the same period
in 2002, due primarily to higher compensation and employee benefit costs.
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ACCOUNTING CHANGES

In May 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) FAS 106-2,
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription
Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003. FSP FAS 106-2 provides
guidance on accounting for the effects of the Medicare Prescription Drug,
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the “Modernization Act”), to
employers that sponsor postretirement health care plans which provide
prescription drug benefits and supersedes FSP FAS 106-1, Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improve-
ment and Modernization Act of 2003. FSP FAS 106-2 is effective for the first
interim or annual period beginning after June 15, 2004. The Company
adopted FSP FAS 106-2 effective July 1, 2004 and determined that prescrip-
tion benefits under its postretirement health plan were actuarially equiva-
lent to the proposed Medicare Fart D plan and, therefore, the Company’s
postretirement health plan qualifies for the employer subsidy under the
Modernization Act. The Company determined that the effect of the enact-
ment of the Modernization Act was not a significant event pursuant to
paragraph 73 of SFAS No. 106, Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement
Benefits Other Than Pensions. Accordingly, the effects of the Modernization
Act are incorporated in the next measurement date, December 31, 2004 in
the case of the Company, of the plan assets and obligations as otherwise
required by SFAS No. 106, following the effective date of FSP FAS 106-2.
The adoption of FSP FAS 106-2 resulted in a reduction of the Company’s
Accumulated Benefit Obligation for its Postretirement Health Plan and a
related actuarial gain of $6.3 million at December 31, 2004, which will be
amortized pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 106. The Company esti-
mates that annual postretirement health plan expense will decrease by $1.0
million before-tax in 2005 as a result of the adoption of FSP FAS 106-2.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Pay-
ment. SFAS No. 123(R) replaces SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation, and supersedes Accounting Principles Board (“APB”)
Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. SEAS No. 123(R)
requires compensation costs related to share-based payment transactions
to be recognized in the financial statements over the period that an
employee provides service in exchange for the award. Public companies
are required to adopt the new standard using a modified prospective
method and may elect to restate prior periods using the modified retro-
spective method. Under the modified prospective method, companies are
required to record compensation cost for new and modified awards over
the related vesting period of such awards prospectively and record com-
pensation cost prospectively for the unvested portion, at the date of adop-
tion, of previously issued and outstanding awards over the remaining
vesting period of such awards. No change to prior periods presented is
permitted under the modified prospective method. Under the modified
retrospective method, companies record compensation costs for prior
periods retroactively through restatement of such periods using the exact
pro forma amounts disclosed in the companies’ footnotes. Also, in the
period of adoption and after, companies record compensation cost based
on the modified prospective method. SFAS No. 123(R) is effective for peri-
ods beginning after June 15, 2005. Early application of SFAS No. 123(R) is
encouraged, but not required.

The Company has not yet determined the date or method of adoption.
If the Company were to adopt SFAS No. 123(R) on July 1, 2005 using the
modified prospective method, the Company estimates that total stock-
based compensation expense, net of related tax effects, will increase by
$0.1 million for the year ending December 31, 2005. If the Company elects
to adopt SFAS No. 123(R) using the modified retrospective method, it is
permitted to either retroactively restate only the 2005 interim periods or
restate all prior periods. If the Company elects to restate prior periods
using the modified retrospective method, Net Income for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003 would be restated and would decrease by
$1.0 million and $2.4 million, respectively, and Net Loss for the year ended
December 31, 2002 would increase by $6.0 million.

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the fair value recogni-
tion provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,
and as amended by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensa-
tion—Transition and Disclosure, prospectively to all awards granted, mod-
ified or settled on or after January 1, 2003. For awards granted, modified or
settled prior to January 1, 2003, the Company accounts for these plans
under the recognition and measurement principles of APB Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related Interpretations.
For the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company recognized compen-
sation expense of $2.8 million before-tax due to the adoption of SFAS
No. 123, as amended by SFAS No. 148.

On January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 143, Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations. SFAS No. 143 addresses financial accounting
and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible
long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. SFAS No. 143
applies to all entities. It applies to legal obligations associated with the
retirement of long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, construc-
tion, development and/or the normal operation of a long-lived asset,
except for certain obligations of lessees. SFAS No. 143 is effective for finan-
cial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. The ini-
tial application of SFAS No. 143 did not have an impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities. FIN 46 clarifies the application of Accounting Research Bulletin
No. 51, Consolidated Financial Statements, for certain entities in which
equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial
interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its
activities without additional subordinated financial support from other
parties. FIN 46 applies immediately to variable interest entities created
after January 31, 2003, and to variable interest entities in which an enter-
prise obtains an interest after that date. The initial adoption of FIN 46 did
not have an impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated
with Exit or Disposal Activities. SFAS No. 146 addresses financial accounting and
reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities and supersedes
Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) No. 94-3, Liability Recognition for
Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity
(including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring). SFAS No. 146 requires
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companies to recognize costs associated with exit or disposal activities
when they are incurred rather than at the date of commitment to an exit
or disposal plan. On July 1, 2002, the Company adopted the provisions of
SFAS No. 146 prospectively. The initial adoption of SFAS No. 146 did not
have an impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
In October 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 147, Acquisitions of Certain
Financial Institutions. SFAS No. 147 provides guidance on the accounting for
the acquisition of a financial institution, and applies to all acquisitions of
financial institutions except those between two or more mutual enterprises
and was effective October 1, 2002. Pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 147,
the specialized accounting guidance specified in paragraph 5 of SFAS No. 72,
Accounting for Certain Acquisitions of Banking or Thrift Institutions, does
not apply after September 30, 2002. The initial adoption of SFAS No. 147 did
not have an impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
In November 2002, the FASB issued FIN 45, Guarantor’s Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebtedness of Others (an interpretation of FASB Statements of Financial
Accounting Standards Nos. 5, 57 and 107 and rescission of FASB Interpreta-
tion No. 34). FIN 45 clarifies the requirements of SFAS No. 5, Accounting for
Contingencies, relating to a guarantor’s accounting for, and disclosure of,
the issuance of certain types of guarantees. The initial recognition and ini-
tial measurement provisions of FIN 45 are applicable to guarantees issued
or modified after December 31, 2002. The initial adoption of FIN 45 did

not have an impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation— Transition and Disclosure—an amendment of FASB
Staterment No. 123. SFAS No. 148 amends SFAS No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation to provide alternative methods of transition for
a voluntary change to the fair value-based method of accounting for stock-
based employee compensation. In addition, SFAS No. 148 amends the dis-
closure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent disclosures
in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the
method used on reported results. SFAS No. 148 is effective for fiscal years
ending after December 15, 2002.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retire-
ment Obligations. SFAS No. 143 addresses financial accounting and reporting
for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets
and the associated asset retirement costs. SFAS No. 143 applies to all enti-
ties and applies to legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-
lived assets that result from the acquisition, construction, development
and/or the normal operation of a long-lived asset, except for certain obli-
gations of lessees. SFAS No. 143 also amends SFAS No. 19, Financial
Accounting and Reporting by Oil and Gas Producing Companies. SFAS
No. 143 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning
after June 15, 2002. The initial adoption of SFAS No. 143 did not have an
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Quantitative Information About Market Risk

The Company’s consolidated balance sheet includes five types of financial
instruments subject to the material market risk disclosures required by the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”):

1) Investments in Fixed Maturities;

2) Investments in Equity Securities;

3) Consumer Finance Receivables;

4) Certificates of Deposits and Savings Accounts; and

5) Notes Payable.

Investments in Fixed Maturities, Consumer Finance Receivables, Certifi-
cates of Deposits and Savings Accounts and Notes Payable are subject to
material interest rate risk. The Company’s Investments in Equity Securities
include common and preferred stocks and, accordingly, are subject to mate-
rial equity price risk and interest rate risk, respectively.

For purposes of this disclosure, market risk sensitive financial instru-
ments are divided into two categories: financial instruments acquired for
trading purposes and financial instruments acquired for purposes other
than trading. The Company’s market risk sensitive financial instruments
are generally classified as held for purposes other than trading. The Com-
pany has no significant holdings of financial instruments acquired for
trading purposes. The Company has no significant holdings of derivatives.

The Company measures its sensitivity to market risk by evaluating the

change in its financial assets and liabilities relative to fluctuations in interest

rates and equity prices. The evaluation is made using instantaneous changes
in interest rates and equity prices on a static balance sheet to determine the
effect such changes would have on the Company’s market value at risk and
the resulting pre-tax effect on Shareholders’ Equity. The changes chosen
reflect the Company’s view of adverse changes which are reasonably pos-
sible over a one-year period. The selection of the changes chosen should
not be construed as the Company’s prediction of future market events, but
rather an illustration of the impact of such events.

For the interest rate sensitivity analysis presented below, the Company
assumed an adverse and instantaneous increase of 100 basis points in the
yield curve at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, for Investments in
Fixed Maturities. Such 100 basis point increase in the yield curve may not
necessarily result in a corresponding 100 basis point increase in the inter-
est rate for all investments in fixed maturities. For example, a 100 basis
point increase in the yield curve for risk-free, taxable investments in fixed
maturities may not result in a 100 basis point increase for tax exempt
investments in fixed maturities. For Investments in Fixed Maturities, the
Company also anticipated changes in cash flows due to changes in the
likelihood that investments would be called or pre-paid prior to their con-
tractual maturity. All other variables were held constant. For preferred
stock equity securities and Consumer Finance Receivables, the Company
assumed an adverse and instantaneous increase of 100 basis points in
market interest rates from their levels at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MAIR'KET RISK [CONTINUED]

Quantitative Information About Market Risk [continued)]

respectively. All other variables were held constant. For Certificates of
Deposits and Savings Accounts and Notes Payable, the Company assumed
an adverse and instantaneous decrease of 100 basis points in market inter-
est rates from their levels at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. All
other variables were held constant. The Company measured equity price
sensitivity assuming an adverse and instantaneous 10% decrease in the
Standard and Poor’s Stock Index (the “S&P 500”) from its levels at December
31, 2004 and 2003, with all other variables held constant. The Company’s
investments in common stock equity securities were correlated with the

S&P 500 using the portfolio’s weighted-average beta of 0.45 and 0.33 at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The portfolio’s weighted-average
beta was calculated using each security’s beta for the five-year periods
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and weighted on the fair
value of such securities at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Beta
measures a stock’s relative volatility in relation to the rest of the stock mar-
ket, with the S&P 500 having a beta coefficient of 1.00.

The estimated adverse effects on the market value of the Company’s

financial instruments at December 31, 2004 using these assumptions were:

PRO FORMA INCREASE (DECREASE)

INTEREST EQUITY TOTAL
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS FAIR VALUE RATE RISK PRICE RISK MARKET RISK
ASSETS
Investments in Fixed Maturities $ 4,1324 | $ (322.0) $ -1 % (3220
Investments in Equity Securities 1,088.0 (4.6) (45.4) (50.0)
Consumer Finance Receivables 979.2 (13.0) - (13.0)
LIABILITIES
Certificates of Deposits $ 9219 | $ 194 % - 8 194
Notes Payable 516.6 17.6 - 17.6
The estimated adverse effects on the market value of the Company’s
financial instruments at December 31, 2003 using these assumptions were:

PRO FORMA INCREASE (DECREASE)

INTEREST EQUITY TOTAL
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS FAIR VALUE RATE RISK PRICE RISK MARKET RISK
ASSETS
Investments in Fixed Maturities $ 3,6347 | $ (2547) § - | § (254.7)
Investments in Equity Securities 1,287.6 (5.9) (39.6) (45.5)
Consumer Finance Receivables 906.7 (12.0) - (12.0)
LIABILITIES
Certificates of Deposits and Savings Accounts $ 9189 | § 181 ¢ -3 18.1
Notes Payable 519.4 223 - 22.3

The market risk sensitivity analysis assumes that the composition of the
Company’s interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities, including but not
limited to, credit quality, and equity price sensitive assets existing at the
beginning of the period remains constant over the period being measured.
It also assumes that a particular change in interest rates is reflected uni-
formly across the yield curve regardless of the time to maturity. Interest
rates on certain types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of
changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other types may lag
behind changes in market rates. Also, any future correlation, either in the
near term or the long term, between the Company’s common stock equity
securities portfolio and the S&P 500 may differ from the historical cor-
relation as represented by the weighted-average historical beta of the
common stock equity securities portfolio. Accordingly, the market risk
sensitivity analysis may not be indicative of, is not intended to provide,
and does not provide, a precise forecast of the effect of changes of market
rates on the Company’s income or shareholders’ equity. Further, the com-
putations do not contemplate any actions the Company may undertake in
response to changes in interest rates or equity prices.

To the extent that any adverse 100 basis point change occurs in incre-
ments over a period of time instead of instantaneously, the adverse impact
on fair values would be partially mitigated because some of the underlying
financial instruments would have matured. For example, proceeds from
any maturing assets could be reinvested and any new liabilities would be

incurred at the then current interest rates.

Qualitative Information About Market Risk

Market risk is a broad term related to economic losses due to adverse
changes in the fair value of a financial instrument and is inherent to all
financial instruments. SEC disclosure rules focus on only one element of
market risk——price risk. Price risk relates to changes in the level of prices
due to changes in interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates or
other factors that relate to market volatility of the rate, index, or price
underlying the financial instrument. The Company’s primary market risk
exposures are to changes in interest rates and certain exposures to changes
in equity prices.
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK [CONTINUED]

Qualitative Information About Market Risk [continued]
The Company manages its interest raté exposures with respect to Invest-
ments in Fixed Maturities by investing primarily in investment-grade
securities of moderate duration. The interest rate risks with respect to the
fair value of Consumer Finance Receivables should be partially offset by
the impact of interest rate movements on Certificates of Deposits and
Savings Accounts which are issued to fund its receivables.

At December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003, $664.6 million and $854.8
million of the Company’s Investments in Equity Securities, which exclude
the Company’s Investment in Investee, was concentrated in the preferred

and common stock of Northrop. Northrop stated in its 2003 Annual
Report on Form 10-K that it “provides technologically advanced inno-
vative products, services and solutions in defense and commercial elec-
tronics, information technology, systems integration, space technology,
mission systems and nuclear and non-nuclear shipbuilding and systems.”
Additionally, Northrop stated that it “is subject to the usual vagaries of the
marketplace, it is also affected by the unique characteristics of the defense
industry and by certain elements peculiar to its own business mix.”
Accordingly, the Company’s Investments in Equity Securities is sensitive to
the nature of Northrop’s industry segments.

CAUTION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and
Financial Condition, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Mar-
ket Risk and the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements
(including the notes thereto) may contain or incorporate by reference
information that includes or is based upon forward-looking statements
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Sec-
tion 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Forward-looking state-.
ments give expectations or forecasts of future events. The reader can
identify these statements by the fact that they do not relate strictly to his-

»

torical or current facts. They use words such as “believe(s),

»

goal(s),” “tar-

plan(s)
may” and other words and terms of sim-

”» «

estimate(s),

»

get(s),” © anticipate(s),” “forecast(s),
i

“intend(s),” “expect(s),

» «

project(s);

»
)

»

might,
ilar meaning in connection with a discussion of future operating or finan-
cial performance. In particular, these include statements relating to future
actions, prospective services or products, future performance or results of
current and anticipated services or products, sales efforts, expenses, the
outcome of contingencies such as legal proceedings, trends in operations
and financial results.

Any or all forward-looking statements may turn out to be wrong, and,
accordingly, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such
statements, which speak only as of the date of this Annual Report. They
can be affected by inaccurate assumptions or by known or unknown risks
and uncertainties. Many such factors will be important in determining the
Company’s actual future results. These statements are based on current
expectations and the current economic environment. They involve a num-
ber of risks and uncertainties that are difficult to predict. These statements
are not guarantees of future performance; actual results could differ mate-
rially from those expressed or implied in the forward-looking statements.
Among factors that could cause actual results to differ materially are:

+ Changes in general economic conditions, including performance of
financial markets, interest rates, and unemployment rates and the
inflationary impact on claims;

+ Heightened competition, including with respect to pricing, entry of
new competitors and the development of new products by new and
existing competitors;

+ The number and severity of insurance claims (including those asso-
ciated with catastrophe losses) and their impact on the adequacy of
loss reserves;

» The inflationary impact of the availability of labor and materials on
repair and reconstruction costs;

¢ Changes in the pricing or availability of reinsurance;

* Changes in the financial condition of reinsurers and amounts
recoverable therefrom;

+ Changes in industry trends;

+ Regulatory approval of insurance rates, policy forms, license applica-
tions and similar matters;

+ Governmental actions (including new laws or regulations or court
decisions interpreting existing laws and regulations or policy provi-
sions) and adverse judgments in litigation to which the Company or
its subsidiaries are parties;

+ Regulatory, accounting or tax changes that may affect the cost of, or
demand for, the Company’s products or services;

+ Changes in ratings by credit rating agencies and/or A.M. Best
Co., Inc

» Realization of economies of scale;

+ Absolute and relative performance of the Company’s products or
services;

+ Ability to maintain uninterrupted operation of facilities and business
operations; and

+ Other risks and uncertainties described from time to time in the
Company’s filings with the SEC.

No assurances can be given that the results contemplated in any forward-
looking statements will be achieved or will be achieved in any particular
timetable. The Company assumes no obligation to publicly correct or
update any forward-looking statements as a result of events or develop-
ments subsequent to the date of this Annual Report. The reader is advised,
however, to consult any further disclosures the Company makes on related
subjects in filings made with the SEC.




TO THE SHAREHOLDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF UNITRIN, INC,

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Unitrin,
Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003,
and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity
and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2004. We also have audited management’s
assessment, included in the accompanying Management Report on Inter-
nal Control, that the Company maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s
management is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our respon-
sibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements, an opinion
on management’s assessment, and an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those stan-
dards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material mis-
statement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting
was maintained in all material respects. Our audit of financial statements
included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal con-
trol over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control,
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process
designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal execu-
tive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar func-
tions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management and
other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting prin-
ciples. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that: (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
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transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not
be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evalu-
ation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inade-
quate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Com-
pany as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended Decem-
ber 31, 2004, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, management’s assess-
ment that the Company maintained effective internal control over finan-
cial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, based on the criteria established in Internal Control— Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company main-
tained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on the criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Company changed its method of accounting for stock-based compensa-
tion in 2003.

! (it o Jewele Lo f

Chicago, Hlinois
February 2, 2005




2004 ANNUAL REPORT | UNITRIN, INC. & SUBSIDIARIES
45 I CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2004 2003
ASSETS
Investments:

Fixed Maturities at Fair Value (Amortized Cost: 2004—$3,994.0; 2003—$3,531.6) $ 41324 | $ 13,6347

Northrop Grumman Preferred Stock at Fair Value (Cost: 2004—$177.5; 2003—$177.5) 234.3 220.9

Northrop Grumman Common Stock at Fair Value (Cost: 2004—$341.5; 2003—$572.2) 430.3 633.9

Other Equity Securities at Fair Value {Cost: 2004-$323.7; 2003—$342.7) 423.4 432,83

Investee (UNOVA) at Cost Plus Cumulative Undistributed Earnings (Fair Value: 2004-$320.1; 2003-$290.5) 71.9 64.7

Short-term Investments at Cost which Approximates Fair Value 356.7 495.5

Other 358.5 300.4
Total Investments 6,007.5 5,782.9
Cash 82.1 65.7
Consumer Finance Receivables at Cost (Fair Value: 2004-$979.2; 2003-$906.7) 971.5 904.8
Other Receivables 819.0 899.4
Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs ) 422.0 400.2
Goodwill 344.7 © 3447
Other Assets 143.5 139.1
Total Assets ) $ 87903 | § 8,536.8
LIABILITIES AMD SHARENOLDERS' EQUITY
Insurance Reserves:

Life and Health $ 2,3333 | § 2,265.1

Property and Casualty , 1,510.7 1,426.3
Total Insurance Reserves 3,844.0 3,691.4
Certificates of Deposits and Savings Accounts at Cost (Fair Value: 2004-$921.9; 2003-$918.9) 922.4 915.2
Unearned Premiums 807.6 794.7
Accrued and Deferred Income Taxes © 2507 382.0
Notes Payable at Amortized Cost (Fair Value: 2004-$516.6; 2003—$519.4) 502.8 495.7
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities 424.1 438.9
Total Liabilities 6,751.6 6,717.9
Shareholders’ Equity:

Common Stock, $0.10 Par Value Per Share, 100 Million Shares authorized, 68,828,658 and 67,778,023

Shares Issued and Outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003 6.9 6.8

Paid-in Capital 621.4 537.8

Retained Earnings 1,160.8 1,079.8

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 249.6 194.5
Total Shareholders’ Equity 2,038.7 1,818.9
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 87903 | $ 8,536.8

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FCOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2004 2003 2002

REVENUES

Earned Premiums

Consumer Finance Revenues

Net Investment Income

Other Income

Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses)

Total Revenues

EXPEMSES »

Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses
Insurance Expenses

Consumer Finance Expenses

Interest and Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Income (Loss} before Income Taxes and Equity in Net Income (Loss) of Investee
Income Tax Expense (Benefit)

Income (Loss) before Equity in Net Income (Loss) of Investee

Equity in Net Income (Loss) of Investee

MET INCOME {LOSS)

NET INCOME {LOSS) PER SHARE

NET INCOME {LOSS) PER SHARE ASSUMING DILUTION

$ 24852 | $ 24572 | $ 1,878.0
202.8 195.7 1718
261.2 231.9 2219
13.1 25.1 39.8
78.5 339 (13.3)
3,040.8 2,943.8 2,298.2
1,668.2 1,740.9 1,432.3
824.0 844.1 730.7
155.7 154.6 132.9
57.4 453 26.9
2,705.3 2,784.9 2,322.8
335.5 158.9 (24.6)
98.9 34.1 (18.3)
236.6 124.8 (6.3)

3.6 (1.2) (1.9)

$ 2402 | $ 1236 | $ (8.2)

$ 351 | S 183 | §  (0.12)

$ 348 | S 1.82 | $  (0.12)

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.




2004 ANNUAL REPORT | UNITRIN, INC. & SUBSIDIARIES
47 I CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002
OPERATING ACTIVITIES -
Net Income {Loss) $ 240.2 | $ 123.6 $ (8.2)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to .
Net Cash Provided by Operations:
Policy Acquisition Costs Deferred (343.6) (351.0) (289.7)
Amortization of Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs 323.6 335.0 237.3
Equity in Net (Income) Loss of Investee before Taxes (5.5) 1.9 3.0
Amortization of Investments 12.6 11.4 8.3
Provision for Loan Losses 45.8 54.4 39.1
(Increase) Decrease in Other Receivables 80.5 56.4 (185.0)
Increase in Insurance Reserves and Unearned Premiums 160.8 269.4 583.5
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued and Deferred Income Taxes (153.4) 34.8 (34.4)
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities (20.4) 440 6.5
Net Realized Investment (Gains) Losses (78.5) (33.9) 13.3
Other, Net 36.1 39.6 22.2
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 298.2 585.6 395.9
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sales and Maturities of Fixed Maturities 884.4 1,346.4 1,345.6
Purchases of Fixed Maturities (1,354.2) (1,987.3) (1,349.8)
Sales of Northrop Common Stock 273.9 96.5 -
Sales of Other Equity Securities 138.3 95.7 15.8
Purchases of Other Equity Securities (87.0) (36.4) (114.5)
Repayments of Consumer Finance Receivables 525.5 466.0 426.6
Acquisitions of Consumer Finance Receivables (639.1) (594.5) (572.7)
Change in Short-term Investments 138.5 61.3 8.5
Acquisitions and Improvements of Investment Real Estate (29.8) (20.9) (14.0)
Sales of Investment Real Estate 10.8 -~ 13.9
Change in Other Investments (31.0) (20.0) (20.5)
Acquisition of Businesses, Net of Cash Acquired (17.1) (8.0) (73.9)
Other, Net (21.6) (7.5) (24.1)
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (208.4) (608.7) (359.1)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Certificates of Deposits and Savings Account Deposits 216.4 267.6 326.3
Certificates of Deposits and Savings Account Withdrawals (209.2) (210.1) (216.1)
Universal Life and Annuity Receipts from Policyholders 7.9 7.9 8.5
Universal Life and Annuity Payments to Policyholders (3.3) (3.1) (2.6)
Change in Liability for Funds Held for Securities on Loan - - (172.5)
Notes Payable Proceeds - 398.0 934.8
Notes Payable Payments (0.1) (280.0) (812.8)
Cash Dividends Paid (113.5) (112.2) (112.4)
Common Stock Repurchases - (1.4) (9.4)
Exercise of Stock Options 28.4 5.2 8.4
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities (73.4) 71.9 (47.8)
Increase (Decrease) in Cash 16.4 48.8 (11.0)
Cash, Beginning of Year 65.7 16.9 27.9
Cash, End of Year $ 82.1 | $ 657 | $ 16.9

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, 2003 ANLC 2002

ACCUMULATED
OTHER

TOTAL

NUMBER OF COMMON PAID-IN RETAINED CCMPREHENSIVE SHAREHOLDERS'
DOLLARS AND SMARES IN MILLIONS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNT SHARES STOCK CAPITAL EARNINGS INCOME (LOSS) EQUITY
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2001 67.5 $ 67 % 4888 § 1,231.0 S 190.3 $ 1,916.8
Net Loss - - - (8.2) - (8.2)
Other Comprehensive Income (note 13) - - - - 6.0 6.0
Total Comprehensive Loss (2.2)
Dividends to Shareholders: Cash ($1.66 per share) - - - (112.4) - (112.4)
Repurchases of Common Stock (0.3) - (2.2) (7.2) - (9.4)
Exercise of Stock Options,

Net of Shares Exchanged (note 11) 0.4 0.1 26.3 (16.8) - 9.6
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2002 67.6 | § 68 § 5129 $ 11,0864 % 196.3 $ 1,802.4
Net Income - - - 123.6 - 123.6
Other Comprehensive Loss (note 13) - - - - (1.8) (1.8)
Total Comprehensive Income 121.8
Dividends to Shareholders: Cash ($1.66 per share) - - - (112.2) - (112.2)
Repurchases of Common Stock (0.1) - (0.5) (0.9) - (1.4)
Stock-based Compensation Cost (notes 1, 2 and 1) - - 2.8 - - 2.8
Exercise of Stock Options,

Net of Shares Exchanged (note 11) 0.3 - 22.6 (17.1) - 5.5
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2003 67.8 | $ 68 $ 537.8 % 11,0798 $ 1945 | $ 11,8189
Net Income - - - 240.2 - 240.2
Other Comprehensive Income (note 13) - - - - 55.1 55.1
Total Comprehensive Income 2953 .
Dividends to Shareholders: Cash ($1.66 per share) - - - (113.5) - (113.5)
Stock-based Compensation Cost (notes 1, 2 and 11) - - 8.5 - - 8.5
Exercise of Stock Options,

Net of Shares Exchanged (note 11) 1.0 0.1 76.8 (45.7) - 31.2
Other - - (1.7) - - a7
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2004 688 | $ 69 $ 6214 $ 1,1608 $ 2496 | $ 2,038.7

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES

The Consolidated Financial Statements included herein have been pre-
pared on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP”), which differ from statutory insurance
accounting practices, and include the accounts of Unitrin, Inc. and its
subsidiaries (“Unitrin” or the “Company”). All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the fair value recogni-
tion provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”)

No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and as amended by
SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation— Transition and
Disclosure, prospectively to all awards granted, modified or settled on or
after January 1, 2003.

The effects on Net Income (Loss), Net Income {Loss) Per Share and Net
Income (Loss) Per Share Assuming Dilution for the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 if the fair value based method had been applied
to all awards since the effective date of SFAS No. 123 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2004 2003 2002
Net Income (Loss) as Reported $ 240.2 | $ 1236 | $ (8.2)
Add: Stock-Based Employee Compensation Expense Included in Reported Net Income,

Net of Related Tax Effects 5.5 1.8 0.2
Deduct: Total Stock-Based Employee Compensation Expense Determined under

Fair Value Based Method for All Awards, Net of Related Tax Effects (6.5) (4.2) (6.2)
Pro Forma Net Income (Loss) $ 239.2 | § 1212 | § (14.2)

Net Income (Loss) Per Share:
Basic—As Reported

Basic—Pro Forma
Diluted—As Reported

Diluted—Pro Forma

$ 3515 1.83 | §  (0.12)
$ 350 | S 179 | §  (0.21)
$ 348 | § 1.82 | §  (0.12)
$ 347 | $ 179 | §  (0.21)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP
requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
materially differ from those estimates and assumptions.

The fair values of Investments in Fixed Maturities, Investments in
Equity Securities and Senior Notes Payable are estimated using quoted
market prices where available. For securities not actively traded, fair values
were estimated using values obtained from independent pricing services
or broker dealers. The fair values of the Company’s Investment in Investee
and Investments in Northrop Grumman Corporation (“Northrop”) Pre-
ferred Stock and Northrop Common Stock are based upon quoted market
prices. The fair value of Consumer Finance Receivables is estimated by
discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which loans
would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and the same
remaining maturities. The fair values of Certificates of Deposits and Sav-
ings Accounts have been estimated by discounting the future cash flows
using the rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturi-
ties. The carrying amounts reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets
approximate fair value for Cash, Short-term Investments and certain other
assets and other liabilities because of their short-term nature.

The actual value at which such financial instruments could actually be
sold or settled with a willing buyer or seller may differ from such estimated '
fair values depending on a number of factors including, but not limited to,
current and future economic conditions, the quantity sold or settled, the
presence of an active market and the availability of a willing buyer or seller.

The Reserve for Loan Losses is estimated using the Company’s estimate
of ultimate charge-offs and recoveries of loans based on past experience
adjusted for current economic conditions. Such charge-offs and recoveries
emerge over a period of years. Accordingly, the Company’s actual ultimate
net charge-off could materially differ from the Company’s estimate due to
a variety of factors including, but not limited to, future economic condi-
tions, the timing of charge-offs and recoveries, the value of collateral and
changes in the overall credit quality of the loan portfolio.

The process of estimating and establishing reserves for losses and loss
adjustment expenses for property and casualty insurance is inherently
uncertain and the actual ultimate net cost of a claim may vary materially
from the estimated amount reserved. The reserving process is particularly
imprecise for claims involving asbestos, environmental matters, mold,
construction defect and other emerging and/or long-tailed exposures,
which may not be discovered or reported until years after the insurance
policy period has ended. Management considers a variety of factors,
including, but not limited to, past claims experience, current claim trends
and relevant legal, economic and social conditions, in estimating
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NOTE 7. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SICNIFICANT ESTIMATES [CONTINUED]

reserves. A change in any one or more factors is likely to result in the ulti-
mate net claim cost to differ from the estimated reserve. Such changes in
estimates may be material.

The process of determining whether or not an asset is impaired or recov-
erable relies on projections of future cash flows, operating results, and

market conditions. Projections are inherently uncertain and, accordingly,
actual future cash flows may differ materially from projected cash flows. As
a result, the Company’s assessment of the impairment of long-lived assets
or the recoverability of assets such as Goodwill and Deferred Policy Acqui-
sition Costs is susceptible to the risk inherent in making such projections.

NOTE 2, SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments Other Than Investee

Investments in Fixed Maturities include bonds, notes and redemptive
preferred stocks at fair value and are classified as available for sale.
Investments in Equity Securities include common and non-redemptive
preferred stocks at fair value and are classified as available for sale. Unre-
alized appreciation or depreciation, net of applicable deferred income
taxes, on Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities is included in Sharehold-
ers’ Equity. Short-term Investments include fixed maturities which mature
within one year from the date of purchase, money market mutual funds
and repurchase agreements at cost, which approximates fair value. Other
Investments primarily include loans to policyholders, real estate, invest-
ments in certain limited liability investment companies accounted for
under the equity method of accounting, and mortgage loans and are gen-
erally carried at cost, or in the case of certain investments in limited liabil-
ity investment companies, at cost plus cumulative undistributed earnings,
or unpaid principal balance. Gains and losses on sales of investments and
losses arising from other than temporary declines in fair value are
computed on the specific identification method and are recorded in the
Consolidated Statement of Income in the period in which either the

sale occurred or the decline was determined to be other than temporary.

Investment in Investee
Investment in Investee is accounted for under the equity method of account-
ing in the accompanying financial statements. The Company’s voting per-
centage and share of earnings or losses of an investee is determined using
the most recent and sufficiently timely publicly-available audited financial
statements, subsequent unaudited interim reports and other publicly-
available information which generally results in a three-month-delay basis.
The Company recognizes into income its equity share of changes in an
investee’s reported net assets resulting from an investee’s issuance of stock
that is not part of a broader corporate reorganization.

Other Than Temporary Declines in Fair Value

The Company regularly reviews its investment portfolio for factors that
may indicate that a decline in fair value of an investment is other than
temporary. Some factors considered in evaluating whether or not a decline

in fair value is other than temporary include:

1) The Company’s ability and intent to retain the investment for a
period of time sufficient to allow for a recovery in value;

2) The duration and extent to which the fair value has been less than
cost; and

3) The financial condition and prospects of the issuer.

Consumer Finance Receivables

Consumer Finance Receivables consists primarily of loans, which are
secured by automobiles, to residents of California and other western
and midwestern states. Consumer Finance Receivables is stated net of
unearned discount, loan fees and reserve for loan losses. Unearned dis-
count arises when the loan amount includes unearned precomputed inter-
est. The Reserve for Loan Losses is maintained at a level which considers
such factors as actual and expected loan loss experience and economic

conditions to provide for estimated loan losses.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Costs directly associated with the acquisition of new business, principally
commissions and certain premium taxes and policy issuance costs, are
deferred. Costs deferred on property and casualty insurance products and
health insurance products are amortized over the term of the related poli-
cies. Costs deferred on traditional life insurance products are primarily
amortized over the anticipated premium-paying period of the related
policies in proportion to the ratio of the annual premiums to the total pre-
miums anticipated, which is estimated using the same assumptions used
in calculating policy reserves.

The Company accounts for the present value of the future profits
embedded in insurance in force acquired (“VIF”) based upon actuarial
estimates of the present value of estimated net cash flows. VIF is classified
as Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs in these financial statements. VIF is
amortized using the effective interest method using interest rates consis-
tent with the rates in the underlying insurance contracts. The Company
estimates that it will record VIF amortization, net of interest, of $4.1 mil-
lion, $3.7 million, $3.3 million, $3.0 million and $2.7 million in each of the
next five years.
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Goodwill

The Company accounts for Goodwill pursuant to the provisions of SFAS
No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangibles. Accordingly, Goodwill is not
amortized, but rather is tested annually for recoverability. The Company
tests Goodwill in the first quarter of its fiscal year. During the first quar-
ters of 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company tested Goodwill for recoverabil-
ity and determined that Goodwill was recoverable.

Insurance Reserves

Reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses (“LAE”) on property and
casualty coverage represent the estimated claim cost and loss adjustment
expense necessary to cover the ultimate net cost of investigating and set-
tling all losses incurred and unpaid. Such estimates are based on individ-
ual case estimates for reported claims and estimates for incurred but not
reported losses. These estimates are adjusted in the aggregate for ultimate
loss expectations based on historical experience patterns and current eco-
nomic trends, with any change in the probable ultimate liabilities being
recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Income in the period of
change. Such changes in estimates may be material.

For traditional life insurance products, the reserves for future policy
benefits are estimated on the net level premium method based on rates
for expected mortality, lapse rates and interest rates, including provisions
for adverse mortality. These assumptions vary by such characteristics as
plan, age at issue and policy duration. Mortality assumptions reflect the
Company’s historical experience and industry standards. Interest rate
assumptions principally range from 3.0 percent to 7.0 percent. Lapse rate
assumptions are based on actual and industry experience. Benefit reserves
for universal life-type products represent policy account balances before
applicable surrender charges.

Recognition of Earned Premiums and Related Expenses

Property and casualty insurance and health insurance premiums are rec-
ognized and earned ratably over the periods to which the premiums relate.
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss Adjustment
Expenses include provisions for future policy benefits under life insurance
contracts and provisions for reported claims, estimates for claims incurred
but not reported and loss adjustment expenses.

Traditional life insurance premiums are recognized as revenue when
due. Policyholders’ benefits are associated with related premiums to result
in recognition of profits over the periods that the benefits are provided.

Premium revenues for universal life-type products consist of charges for
the cost of insurance, policy administration and policy surrenders that
have been assessed against policy account balances during the period.

Benefit payments in excess of policy account balances are expensed.

Reinsurance
In the normal course of business, the Company’s insurance subsidiaries
reinsure certain risks above certain retention levels with other insurance

enterprises. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers for benefits and losses for
which the Company’s insurance subsidiaries have not been relieved of their
legal obligations to the policyholder are included in Other Receivables.

Gains related to long-duration reinsurance contracts are deferred and
amortized over the life of the underlying reinsured policies. Losses related
to long-duration reinsurance contracts are recognized immediately. Any
gain or loss associated with reinsurance agreements for which the Com-
pany’s insurance subsidiaries have been legally relieved of their obligations
to the policyholder is recognized in the period of relief. '

Consumer Finance Revenues and Expenses .

Consumer Finance Revenues include interest on Consumer Finance
Receivables and Net Investment Income on Investments in Fixed Maturi-
ties made by the Company’s Consumer Finance operations. Interest
income on Consumer Finance Receivables is recorded as interest is earned,
using the effective yield method. Net Investment Income included in Con-
sumer Finance Revenues was $4.3 million, $5.6 million and $7.2 million in
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Consumer Finance Expenses include Interest Expense on Certificates of
Deposits and Savings Accounts, Provisions for Loan Losses and General
and Administrative Expenses. Interest Expense on Certificates of Deposits
and Savings Accounts is recorded using the effective yield method.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future
tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial state-
ment carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respec-
tive tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differ-
ences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the

period in which the change is enacted.

Stock-based Compensation

At December 31, 2004, the Company had four stock-based compensation
plans, which are more fully described in Note 11 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements—Stock Option Plans. Effective January 1, 2003, the
Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and as amended by SFAS No.
148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation— Transition and Disclosure,
prospectively to all awards granted, modified or settled on or after January
1, 2003. For awards granted, modified or settled prior to January 1, 2003,
the Company accounts for these plans under the recognition and measure-
ment principles of Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related Interpretations.
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Accounting Changes

In May 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued
FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) FAS 106-2, Accounting and Disclosure Require-
ments Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modern-
ization Act of 2003. FSP FAS 106-2 provides guidance on accounting for the
effects of the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization
Act of 2003 (the “Modernization Act”), to employers that sponsor postre-
tirement health care plans which provide prescription drug benefits and
supersedes FSP FAS 106-1, Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related
to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of
2003. FSP FAS 106-2 is effective for the first interim or annual period
beginning after June 15, 2004. The Company adopted FSP FAS 106-2 effec-
tive July 1, 2004 and determined that prescription benefits under its
postretirement health plan were actuarially equivalent to the proposed
Medicare Part D plan and, therefore, the Company’s postretirement health
plan qualifies for the employer subsidy under the Modernization Act. The
Company determined that the effect of the enactment of the Modernization
Act was not a significant event pursuant to paragraph 73 of SFAS No. 106,
Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions.
Accordingly, the effects of the Modernization Act are incorporated in the
next measurement date, December 31, 2004 in the case of the Company, of
the plan assets and obligations as otherwise required by SFAS No. 106,
following the effective date of FSP FAS 106-2. The adoption of FSP FAS
106-2 resulted in a reduction of the Company’s Accumulated Benefit
Obligation for its Postretirement Health Plan and a related actuarial gain
of $6.3 million at December 31, 2004, which will be amortized pursuant to
the provisions of SFAS No. 106. The Company estimates that annual
postretirement health plan expense will decrease by $1.0 million before-tax
as a result of the adoption of FSP FAS 106-2.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Pay-
ment. SFAS No. 123(R) replaces SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation, and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees. SFAS No. 123(R) requires compensation costs related to
share-based payment transactions to be recognized in the financial state-
" ments over the period that an employee provides service in exchange for
the award. Public companies are required to adopt the new standard using
a modified prospective method and may elect to restate prior periods
using the modified retrospective method. Under the modified prospective
method, companies are required to record compensation cost for new and
modified awards over the related vesting period of such awards prospec-
tively and record compensation cost prospectively for the unvested por-
tion, at the date of adoption, of previously issued and outstanding awards
over the remaining vesting period of such awards. No change to prior peri-

ods presented is permitted under the modified prospective method. Under
' the modified retrospective method, companies record compensation costs
for prior periods retroactively through restatement of such periods using
the exact pro forma amounts disclosed in the companies’ footnotes. Also,
in the period of adoption and after, companies record compensation cost
based on the modified prospective method. SFAS No. 123(R) is effective for

UNITRIN, INC. & SUBSIDIARIES l 2004 ANNUAL REPORT
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | 52

periods beginning after June 15, 2005. Early application of SFAS No. 123(R)
is encouraged, but not required.

The Company has not yet determined the date or method of adoption.
If the Company were to adopt SFAS No. 123(R) on July 1, 2005 using the
modified prospective method, the Company estimates that total stock-
based compensation expense, net of related tax effects, will increase by
$0.1 million for the year ending December 31, 200s. If the Company elects
to adopt SFAS No. 123(R) using the modified retrospective method, it is
permitted to either retroactively restate only the 2005 interim periods or
restate all prior periods. If the Company elects to restate prior periods
using the modified retrospective method, Net Income for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003 would be restated and would decrease by s1.0
million and $2.4 million, respectively, and Net Loss for the year ended
December 31, 2002 would increase by $6.0 million.

On January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 143, Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations. SFAS No. 143 addresses financial accounting
and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible
long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. SFAS No. 143
applies to all entities. It applies to legal obligations associated with the
retirement of long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, construc-
tion, development and/or the normal operation of a long-lived asset,
except for certain obligations of lessees. SFAS No. 143 is effective for finan-
cial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. The ini-
tial application of SFAS No. 143 did not have an impact on the Company’s
financial statements.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. {“FIN”) 46,
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities. FIN 46 clarifies the application
of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, Consolidated Financial Statements,
for certain entities in which equity investors de not have the characteris-
tics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at
risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated
financial support from other parties. FIN 46 applies immediately to vari-
able interest entities created after January 31, 2003, and to variable interest
entities in which an enterprise obtains an interest after that date. The ini-
tial adoption of FIN 46 did not have an impact on the Company’s finan-
cial statements.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated
with Exit or Disposal Activities. SFAS No. 146 addresses financial accounting
and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities and super-
sedes Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) No. 94-3, Liability Recognition for
Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity
(including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring). SFAS No. 146 requires
companies to recognize costs associated with exit or disposal activities
when they are incurred rather than at the date of commitment to an exit
or disposal plan. On July 1, 2002, the Company adopted the provisions of
SFAS No. 146 prospectively. The initial adoption of SFAS No. 146 did not
have an impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In October 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 147, Acquisitions of Certain
Financial Institutions. SFAS No. 147 provides guidance on the accounting
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Accounting Changes [continued]

for the acquisition of a financial institution, and applies to all acquisitions
of financial institutions except those between two or more mutual enter-
prises and is effective October 1, 2002. Pursuant to the provisions of SFAS
No. 147, the specialized accounting guidance specified in paragraph 5 of
SFAS No. 72, Accounting for Certain Acquisitions of Banking or Thrift Insti-
tutions, does not apply after September 30, 2002. The initial adoption of
SFAS No. 147 did not have an impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FIN 45, Guarantor’s Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebtedness of Others (an interpretation of FASB Statements of Financial
Accounting Standards Nos. 5, 57 and 107 and rescission of FASB Interpretation
No. 34). FIN 45 clarifies the requirements of SFAS No. 5, Accounting for
Contingencies, relating to a guarantor’s accounting for, and disclosure of,
the issuance of certain types of guarantees. The initial recognition and initial
measurement provisions of FIN 45 are applicable to guarantees issued or
modified after December 31, 2002. The initial adoption of FIN 45 did not
have an impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation— Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of FASB
Statement No. 123. SFAS No. 148 amends SFAS No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation to provide alternative methods of transition for

a voluntary change to the fair value-based method of accounting for
stock-based employee compensation. In addition, SFAS No. 148 amends
the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent disclo-
sures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the
method used on reported results. SFAS No. 148 is effective for fiscal years
ending after December 15, 2002. Effective January 1, 2003, the Company
adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 as amended
by SFAS No. 148 prospectively to all awards granted, modified or settled on
or after January 1, 2003. For the year ended December 31, 2003, the Com-
pany recognized compensation expense of $2.8 million before-tax due to
the adoption of SFAS No. 123, as amended by SFAS No. 148.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations. SFAS No. 143 addresses financial accounting and
reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-
lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. SFAS No. 143 applies
to all entities and applies to legal obligations associated with the retire-
ment of long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, construction,
development and/or the normal operation of a long-lived asset, except for
certain obligations of lessees. SFAS No. 143 is effective for financial state-
ments issued for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. The initial
adoption of SFAS No. 143 did not have an impact on the Company’s con-
solidated financial statements.

NOTE 3. ACQUISITICONS OF BUSINESSES

On June 28, 2002, the Company acquired the personal lines property and
casualty insurance business of the Kemper Insurance Companies (“KIC”)
in a cash transaction. Pursuant to the agreements among the parties, KIC
retained all liabilities for policies issued by Kemper Auto and Home
(“KAH”) prior to the closing, while Trinity Universal Insurance Company
(“Trinity”), a subsidiary of Unitrin, is entitled to premiums written for
substantially all policies issued or renewed by the Kemper Auto and Home
segment after the closing and is liable for losses and expenses incurred
thereon. The purchase price was $42.3 million (the “Determinable Pur-
chase Price Component”), plus 1% of premiums written over a three-year
period beginning January 1, 2003 (the “Variable Purchase Price Compo-
nent”). Due to the nature of the Variable Purchase Price Component, at
the acquisition date the Company could not reasonably determine the
contingent consideration that would be paid. Pursuant to the provisions of
SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, the Variable Purchase Price Compo-
nent was not recorded as a cost of the acquisition until such determination
was reasonably made. As further consideration under the agreements, KIC
was eligible for performance bonuses if the business met certain loss ratio
criteria over the same three years. Such performance bonuses were subject
to expense as incurred under the provisions of SFAS No. 141.

In connection with the acquisition, the Company also acquired the
stock of KIC’s direct distribution personal lines subsidiaries (“Kemper
Direct”), which sold personal automobile insurance to consumers over the

Internet. Pursuant to the provisions of the stock acquisition agreement

between the Company and KIC, KIC agreed to indemnify the Company
for 90% of any adverse loss and loss adjustment expense reserve develop-
ment for policy losses incurred by Kemper Direct prior to the acquisition
date, while KIC was entitled to 90% of any favorable development on such
policy losses.

On August 20, 2004, the Company and KIC agreed to settle and extin-
guish certain labilities and obligations arising under the acquisition
including, but not limited to, the Variable Purchase Price Component and
the performance bonus (the “KIC Settlement”). On August 31, 2004, the
Company paid to KIC $13.0 million to settle the Variable Purchase Price
Component covering the period of July 1, 2004 to December 31, 2005, $18.4
million to settle the performance bonus for all years in the three-year
period ending December 31, 2005, and $5.0 million for premium taxes and
certain other accrued costs. At the same time, KIC paid to the Company
$3.6 million to settle its obligation to reimburse the Company for the cost
of administering certain business of KIC which was excluded from the
acquisition and $o0.9 million to settle KIC's obligation under the loss
indemnification described above.

During the third quarter of 2004, the Company recorded a consolidated
charge of $14.9 million before-tax in connection with the KIC Settlement
due primarily to the performance bonus, partially offset by certain service
fee adjustments. The Variable Purchase Price Component paid in connec-
tion with the KIC Settlement was capitalized and is recorded in Other
Assets. The performance bonus paid in connection with the KIC Settlement
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was recorded in expense for the year ended December 31, 2004. For man-
agement reporting purposes, the Company has not allocated such expense
to the Kemper Auto and Home segment, and, accordingly, such expense is
included in Other Expense, Net in Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements— Business Segments. The net impact of the KIC Settlement
included in the Kemper Auto and Home segment for year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2004 was income of $3.5 million before-tax. Prior to the KIC Settle-
ment, the Company had paid to KIC and capitalized $11.9 million for the
Variable Purchase Price Component covering the period January 1, 2003
through June 30, 2004. Also, the loss ratio criteria had not been met and,
accordingly, a performance bonus had not been recorded in the Com-
pany’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

At the acquisition date, Unitrin’s property and casualty insurance sub-
sidiaries were not licensed in all the states where the KAH business is writ-
ten nor were certain computer and data processing modifications
completed to allow for the migration of the KAH business to the Com-
pany’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries. Accordingly, to facili-
tate the transition of such business to Unitrin’s property and casualty
insurance subsidiaries, KIC and Trinity entered into a quota share reinsur-
ance agreement whereby Trinity reinsured, on a 100% indemnity basis,
substantially all of the KAH business written or renewed by KIC after the
acquisition date. KIC’s financial condition deteriorated rapidly after the
acquisition and, accordingly, Unitrin accelerated its transition of the busi-
ness directly to its property and casualty insurance subsidiaries. In addi-
tion, on January 8, 2003, the reinsurance agreement was amended to
provide, in the event of KIC’s insolvency, for Trinity to make claim pay-
ments directly to insureds and insured claimants under the reinsured poli-
cies. On June 6, 2003, the reinsurance agreement was further amended and
restated to allow certain of Trinity’s affiliated insurance companies to elect
to assume on an assumption reinsurance basis (an “assumption”) some or
all of the business in the event that it appears receivership proceedings for
KIC are imminent or if KIC is in fact placed into receivership.
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Unitrin’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries have obtained all
necessary licenses and have completed all necessary computer and data
processing modifications. The transition of the business directly to
Unitrin’s property and casualty insurance companies is complete.

On December 31, 2002, Unitrin completed the acquisition of two insur-
ance companies, General Security Insurance Company and General Secu-
rity Property and Casualty Company (the “SCOR Companies”), from
SCOR Reinsurance Company in a cash transaction for a total purchase
price of approximately $31.8 million. The results of the SCOR Companies
are included in Unitrin’s results from the date of the acquisition. The seller
is responsible for liabilities of the SCOR Companies incurred prior to the
acquisition. Accordingly, in connection with the sale the seller entered into
a reinsurance agreement with the SCOR Companies whereby the seller
reinsured all of the business written by the seller using the SCOR Compa-
nies. At December 31, 2002, the Company completed a preliminary alloca-
tion of the purchase price to the net assets acquired and allocated the
entire cost in excess of the fair value of the tangible assets acquired to the
fair value of the state insurance licenses acquired. During the first quarter
of 2003, the Company received a final closing balance sheet and deter-
mined the extent to which the SCOR Companies were relieved of their
legal obligations to policyholders under the reinsurance agreement. The
allocation of the purchase price to the net assets acquired was adjusted to
reflect such obligations to policyholders as liabilities of the SCOR Compa-
nies, with an offsetting and corresponding receivable from the seller
reflected in Other Receivables, and to reflect other changes in the purchase
price resulting from changes in other assets and liabilities as reflected in
the final closing balance sheet. During 2003, the Company finalized certain
tax elections and allocations related to the acquisition. Accordingly, the
preliminary purchase price allocation was also adjusted during 2003 to

account for such tax elections and allocations.

NOTE 4. INVESTMENTS OTHER THAN INVESTEE

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of the Company’s Invest-
ments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2004 were:

GROSS UNREALIZED

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS AMORTc[ZoESZ GAINS LOSSES FAIR VALUE
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities $ 1,3927 | § 150 $ (18.2) | $ 1,389.5
States, Municipalities and Political Subdivisions 1,311.0 55.3 (2.2) 1,364.1
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and Notes 1,281.7 89.7 (1.3) 1,370.1
Redemptive Preferred Stocks 8.6 0.1 - 8.7
Investments in Fixed Maturities $ 39940 | $ 160.1 $ 21.7) | $ 4,1324
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The amortized cost and estimated fair values of the Company’s Invest-
ments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2003 were:

GROSS UNREALIZED

AMORTIZED

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS COSsT GAINS LOSSES FAIR VALUE
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities $ 1,653.5 $ 205 % (304) | $ 1,643.6
States, Municipalities and Political Subdivisions 933.0 37.2 (2.5) 967.7
Corporate Securities:

Bonds and Notes 924.6 79.4 (1.5) 1,002.5

Redemptive Preferred Stocks 20.5 0.4 - 20.9
Investments in Fixed Maturities $ 3,531.6 $ 137.5 $ (34.4) | $ 3,634.7

The expected maturities of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities
may differ from the contractual maturities because debtors may have the right
to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of the Company’s Investments
in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2004 by contractual maturity were:

AMORTIZED

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS COsT FAIR VALUE
Due in One Year or Less $ 1657 | $ 1672
Due after One Year to Five Years 541.2 551.9
Due after Five Years to Fifteen Years 694.2 730.0
Due after Fifteen Years 2,484.9 2,572.7
Asset-Backed Securities Not Due at a Single Maturity Date 108.0 110.6
Investments in Fixed Maturities $ 39940 | $ 4,1324
At December 31, 2004, gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses ~ Common Stock and Other Equity Securities were:

on the Company’s Investments in Northrop Preferred Stock, Northrop

GROSS UNREALIZED

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS COsT GAINS LOSSES FAIR VALUE
Northrop Preferred Stock $ 1775 | § 568 $ - | § 2343
Northrop Common Stock $ 3415 | § 888 § - | $§ 4303

Other Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks

$ 816 | § 104 §$ (05)] % 91.5

Common Stocks 242.1 94.5 (4.7) 331.9
Total Other Equity Securities $ 3237 | $ 1049 $ (52) | $ 4234
At December 31, 2003, gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses ~ Common Stock and Other Equity Securities were:
on the Company’s Investments in Northrop Preferred Stock, Northrop

GROSS UNREALIZED
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS COsT GAINS LOSSES ij VALUE
Northrop Preferred Stock $ 1775 | § 434 8 - | $ 220.9
Northrop Common Stock $ 5722 | $ 617 § - | $ 6339
Other Equity Securities:

Preferred Stocks $ 830 | 3 60 % (03)] $ 88.7

Common Stocks 259.7 87.4 (3.0) 344.1
Total Other Equity Securities $ 3427 | $ 934 § 33)] % 432.8
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An aging of unrealized losses on the Company’s investments in fixed matu-
rities and other equity securities at December 31, 2004 is presented below:

LESS THAN 12 MONTHS
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12 MONTHS OR LONGER TOTAL
FAIR UNREALIZED FAIR UNREALIZED FAIR UNREALIZED
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS VALUE LOSSES VALUE LOSSES VALUE LOSSES
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government .
Agencies and Authorities $ 6308 §$ 63)] $ 3712 $ (11.9)| $ 10020 § (18.2)
States, Municipalities and Political Subdivisions 87.0 (1.0) 46.1 (1.2) 133.1 (2.2)
Corporate Securities 91.8 (0.8) 26.5 (0.5) 118.3 (1.3)
Total Fixed Maturities 809.6 (8.1) 443.8 (13.6) 1,253.4 (21.7)
Other Equity Securities:

Preferred Stocks 14.9 (0.5) - - 14.9 (0.5)

Common Stocks 44,5 (4.6) 24 (0.1) 46.9 (4.7)
Total Other Equity Securities 59.4 (5.1) 2.4 (0.1) 61.8 (5.2)
Total $ 869.0 $ (13.2) | $ 446.2 $ (13.7) | $ 1,315.2 $ (26.9)
An aging of unrealized losses on the Company’s investments in fixed maturi-
ties and other equity securities at December 31, 2003 is presented below:

LESS THAN 12 MONTHS 12 MONTHS OR LONGER TOTAL
FAIR UNREALIZED FAIR UNREALIZED FAIR UNREALIZED

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS VALUE LOSSES VALUE ‘LOSSES VALUE LOSSES
Fixed Maturities:

U.S. Government and Government ‘

Agencies and Authorities $ 709.0 $ (303) | $ 20§ 011 % 7110 § (30.4)
States, Municipalities and Political Subdivisions 89.0 (2.5) 1.6 - 90.6 (2.5)
Corporate Securities 40.6 (1.2) 8.3 (0.3) 48.9 (1.5)

Total Fixed Maturities 838.6 (34.0) 11.9 (0.4) 850.5 (34.4)
Other Equity Securities:
Preferred Stock 7.6 (0.2) 4.1 (0.1) 11.7 (0.3)
Common Stock ' 12.4 (1.1 315 (1.9) 43.9 (3.0)
Total Other Equity Securities 20.0 (1.3) 35.6 (2.0) 55.6 (3.3)
Total $ 858.6 $ (35.3) | $ 47.5 $ (24) 1 $ 906.1 $ (37.7)

The Company regularly reviews its investment portfolio for factors that
may indicate that a decline in fair value of an investment is other than tem-
porary. Based on an evaluation of the prospects of the issuers, including, but
not limited to, the Company’s intentions to sell or ability to hold the invest-
ments; the length of time and magnitude of the unrealized loss; and the
credit ratings of the issuers of the investments in the above fixed maturities,
the Company has concluded that the declines in the fair values of the Com-
pany’s investments in fixed maturities at December 31, 2004 are temporary.

For substantially all equity securities with an unrealized loss that has
continued for more than 12 months, such unrealized loss was less than 10%
of the Company’s carrying value of each equity security. The Company

considers various factors when considering if a decline in the fair value of
an equity security is other than temporary including, but not limited to:

a) the length of time and magnitude of the unrealized loss;

b) the volatility of the investment;

¢) analyst recommendations and price targets;

d) opinions of the Company’s external investment managers;

e) market liquidity; and

f) the Company’s intentions to sell or ability to hold the investments.
Based on an evaluation of these factors, the Company has concluded that
the declines in the fair values of the Company’s investments in equity secu-
rities at December 31, 2004 are temporary.
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NOTE 4. INVESTMENTS OTHER THAN INVESTEE [CONT!NUED]

Some of the Company’s subsidiaries are parties to securities lending agree-
ments whereby unrelated parties, primarily large brokerage firms, borrow
securities from the subsidiaries” accounts. Borrowers of these securities
must deposit cash collateral with the subsidiaries equal to 102% of the fair
value of the securities loaned. The subsidiaries continue to receive the
interest on loaned securities as beneficial owners, and accordingly, the

loaned securities continue to be reported in Fixed Maturities when on loan.
The amount of collateral received is invested in short-term securities, and
is reported in the financial statements as Short-term Investments with a
corresponding Liability for Funds Held for Securities on Loan included in
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities during the period of the loan. No
securities were on loan at December 31, 2004 and 2003.

NOTE §. INVESTMENT iN INVESTEE

The Company’s investment in the common stock of UNOVA, Inc.
(“UNOVA”) is accounted for under the equity method of accounting and
reported as Investment in Investee in the Company’s Consolidated Balance

Sheets. The carrying value, fair value and approximate voting percentage,
based on the most recent publicly-available data, for the Company’s
Investment in Investee at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were:

DQLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003
Carrying Value $ 719 | $ 64.7
Fair Value $ 3201 | $ 290.5
Approximate Voting Percentage 20.8% 21.3%

The Company’s equity in the reported net assets of UNOVA exceeded its
carrying value of its investment in UNOVA by approximately $24.2 million
at December 31, 2004, due primarily to an adjustment recorded prior to
the periods presented to reduce the carrying value of the Company’s
investment to its then estimated realizabie value as discussed below.

Equity in Net Income (Loss) of Investee was income of $3.6 million,
a loss of s1.2 million and a loss of $1.9 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Prior to the periods presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements,
the Company determined that a decline in the fair value of its investment
in UNOVA was other than temporary under applicable accounting stan-
dards. Accordingly, the Company reduced the carrying value of its invest-
ment in UNOVA to its then current estimated realizable value and
allocated the reduction to the Company’s proportionate share of UNOVA’s
non-current assets. Accordingly, the Company’s reported equity in the net
income of UNOVA differs from the Company’s proportionate share of
UNOVA’s reported results to the extent that such results include depreciation,
amortization or other charges related to such non-current assets. The fair

value of the Company’s investment in UNOVA subsequently recovered
such that the fair value exceeded the carrying value of the Company’s
investment in UNOVA by $248.2 million and $225.8 million at December
31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. In accordance with applicable accounting
standards, such excess is not recorded in the Consolidated Financial
Statements. ‘

Three of Unitrin’s subsidiaries participated in a financing agreement
whereby the subsidiaries and other unrelated parties became participants
in a $75 million three-year term loan agreement with UNOVA. Under the
agreement, the subsidiaries initially, in July 2001, provided $31.5 million in
funding to UNOVA. During 2003, UNOVA paid the remaining unpaid
principal balance of $6.8 million to Unitrin’s subsidiaries. During 2002,
UNOVA paid $23.9 million to Unitrin’s subsidiaries.

Two of Unitrin’s subsidiaries own a portion of UNOVA’s outstanding
publicly-traded notes maturing in March 2005 with a total par value of
$5.0 million. Unitrin’s subsidiaries’ investments in UNOVA’s publicly-
traded notes are included in Investments in Fixed Maturities at December
31, 2004 and 2003.

NOTE 6. CONSUMER FINANCE RECEIVABLES AND CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSITS

Consumer Finance Receivables consists primarily of loans, which are
secured by automobiles, to residents of California and other western and
midwestern states. Consumer Finance Receivables is stated net of
unearned discount, loan fees and reserve for loan losses.

The components of Consumer Finance Receivables at December 31,

2004 and 2003 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 _3333
Sales Contracts and Loans Receivables $ 11,0746 | $ 1,016.0
Unearned Discounts and Deferred Fees (46.5) (59.4)
Reserve for Loan Losses (56.6) (51.8)
Consumer Finance Receivables $ 971.5 $ 904.8
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MOTE 6. CONSUMER FINANCE RECEIVABLES AND CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSITS [CONTINUED]

An aging of Consumer Finance Receivables at December 31, 2004 and 2003
is presented below:

AS A AS A
PERCENTAGE PERCENTAGE
OF GROSS OF GROSS
CONSUMER CONSUMER
AMOUNT RECEFII\:'AABNLEE AMOUNT RECEF:‘:JAABTEE
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS DEC. 31, 2004 DEC. 31, 2003
Current $ 675.3 65.7% | $ 621.1 64.9%
Past Due:
Less than 30 Days 243.8 23.7 233.2 244
30 Days to 59 Days 73.4 7.1 69.5 7.3
60 Days to 89 Days 25.1 2.5 23.9 2.5
90 Days and Greater 10.5 1.0 8.9 0.9
Gross Consumer Finance Receivables 1,028.1 100.0% 956.6 100.0%
Reserve for Loan Losses (56.6) (51.8)
Consumer Finance Receivables $ 971.5 B 904.8
Activity in the Reserve for Loan Losses for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 was:
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002
Reserve for Loan Losses— Beginning of Year $ 518 | § 45,1 350
Provision for Loan Losses 45.8 54.4 39.1
Net Charge-oft:
Consumer Finance Receivables Charged-off (77.9) (74.7) (62.3)
Consumer Finance Receivables Recovered 36.9 27.0 333
Net Charge-off (41.0) (47.7) (29.0)
Reserve for Loan Losses—End of Year $ 56.6 | $ 51.8 45.1
Certificates of Deposits and Savings Accounts and their related interest
rates at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were:
2004 2003
WEIGHTED WEIGHTED
AVERAGE RANGE OF AVERAGE RANGE OF
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS INTEREST RATE INTEREST RATES AMOUNT INTEREST RATE INTEREST RATES AMOUNT
Certificates of Deposits 352%  0.15-7.60% $ 9224 3.53%  0.05-7.60% 899.1
Savings Accounts - - - 0.05 0.05-0.05 16.1
Total 3.52% 0.15-7.60% $ 922.4 3.47% 0.05-7.60% 915.2
Certificates of Deposits are generally fixed in maturity. The contractual
maturities of Certificates of Deposits at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were:
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003
Due in One Year or Less $ 334.8 392.2
Due after One Year to Three Years 283.6 204.6
Due after Three Years to Five Years 277.6 255.1
Due after Five Years 26.4 47.2
Total Certificates of Deposits $ 9224 899.1
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NOTE 7. PROPERTY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE RESERVES

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserve activity for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves,

Net of Reinsurance and Indemnification— Beginning of Year $ 1,101.0 | § 8834 | $ 6398
Acquired - - 27.6
Incurred Losses and LAE related to:

Current Year 1,351.0 1,388.4 1,002.4

Prior Years : (39.0) 2.8 82.3
Total Incurred Losses and LAE 1,312.0 1,391.2 1,084.7
Paid Losses and LAE related to:

Current Year 726.0 772.0 527.2

Prior Years 405.2 401.6 341.5
Total Paid Losses and LAE 1,131.2 1,173.6 868.7
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves,

Net of Reinsurance and Indemnification—End of Year $ 1,281.8 $ 1,101.0 $ 883.4

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves are estimated based on historical
experience patterns and current economic trends. Actual loss experience and
loss trends are likely to differ from these historical experience patterns and
economic conditions. Loss experience and loss trends emerge over several
years from the dates of loss inception. The Company monitors such emerg-
ing loss trends. Upon concluding, based on the data available, that an emerg-
ing loss trend will continue, the Company adjusts its property and casualty
insurance reserves to reflect such trend. Changes in such estimates are
included in the Consolidated Statement of Income in the period of change.

In 2004, the Company reduced its property and casualty insurance
reserves by $39.0 million to record favorable development of losses and
LAE from prior accident years. The reserve reductions were primarily due
to favorable development of the 2003 accident year in most product lines.

In 2002, the Company increased its property and casualty insurance
reserves by $82.3 million to record adverse development of losses from
prior accident years. The reserve increases reflected developing loss trends
primarily related to construction defect, mold, automobile liability and
product liability loss exposures in its commercial lines of business as well
as personal automobile liability.

The Company cannot predict whether or not losses and LAE will develop
favorably or unfavorably from the amounts recorded in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements. However, the Company believes that
such development will not have a material effect on the Company’s con-
solidated financial position, but could have a material effect on the Com-
pany’s consolidated financial results for a given period.

Reinsurance Recoverables were $228.9 million, $275.3 million and $41.5
million at December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. On December
31, 2002, the Company purchased the SCOR Companies from SCOR Rein-
surance Company (see Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements—
Acquisitions of Businesses). At December 31, 2004 and 2003, Reinsurance
Recoverables included $180.9 million and $234.4 million, respectively,

from General Security National Insurance Company (“GSNIC”), a sub-
sidiary of SCOR Reinsurance Company. Under the agreement governing
the acquisition of the SCOR Companies, SCOR Reinsurance Company
and/or GSNIC are responsible for all liabilities of the SCOR Companies
incurred prior to the acquisition. Accordingly, in connection with the sale,
GSNIC entered into a reinsurance agreement with the SCOR Companies
whereby GSNIC reinsured all of the business written by the seller using the
SCOR Companies. To the extent the SCOR Companies are not fully
relieved of their legal obligations to policyholders under the reinsurance
agreement, Unitrin reflects an obligation to policyholders as a liability of
the SCOR Companies, with an offsetting and corresponding reinsurance
receivable from GSNIC. The ceding of the SCOR Companies’ insurance
liabilities does not discharge the primary liability of the SCOR Companies;
therefore, the SCOR Companies remain contingently liable should GSNIC
not be financially able to meet the obligations. Pursuant to the reinsurance
agreement, should GSNIC become unauthorized in any jurisdiction where
authorization or licensure by governmental authorities is required in
order for the SCOR Companies to take full credit on their statutory
financial statements for reinsurance ceded to GSNIC, or should GSNIC be
notified that it is required to file a risk-based capital (“RBC”) plan as a
result of its RBC falling below required levels, certain remedies are avail-
able to the Company. In either case, the reinsurance agreement requires
GSNIC to collateralize its outstanding reinsured obligation. These reme-
dies would be subject to applicable bankruptcy laws in the event GSNIC
were to become insolvent.

On December 1, 2004, A.M. Best Co., Inc., the principal insurance com-
pany rating agency, reaffirmed the “B++” (Very Good) rating of GSNIC,
assigned the rating an outlook of “stable” and removed the “under review”
status of the rating. The Company believes that its reinsurance recoverable
from GSNIC continues to be fully collectable at December 31, 2004.



NOTE 7. PROPERTY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE RESERVES [CONTINUED]

Under the agreement governing the 1999 acquisition of Valley Group, Inc.
(“VGI”), the Company was entitled to recover 90% of unfavorable devel-
opment on VGI's pre-acquisition loss and loss adjustment expense
reserves from the seller, White Mountains Insurance Group, Ltd. (“White
Mountains”) (formerly Fund American Enterprise Holdings, Inc.). Recov-
ery was subject to a maximum limit of $50 million. Such reserves experi-
enced unfavorable development, 90% of the amount of which exceeded
the maximum recovery under the agreement. Accordingly, the recoverable
had been recorded at the maximum limit.

The Company delivered a final reserve report to White Mountains on
March 7 2003. White Mountains initially disputed the amount of its
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obligation, and, accordingly, the Company began pursuing resolution of
the matter in accordance with the dispute resolution process provided in
the agreement.

On June 23, 2004, Unitrin and White Mountains entered into an agree-
ment that settled this matter for substantially all of the amount that
Unitrin had previously recorded as a recoverable. On June 25, 2004, White
Mountains paid the negotiated settlement amount to Unitrin. The effect
of the negotiated settlement was not material to the Company’s consoli-
dated financial statements.

NOTE 8. NOTES PAYABLE

Total debt outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003
Senior Notes at Amortized Cost:
5.75% Senior Notes due July 1, 2007 $ 2983 | $ 297.7
4.875% Senior Notes due November 1, 2010 198.3 198.0
Mortgage Note Payable at Amortized Cost 6.2 -
Total Debt Outstanding $ 5028 | $ 495.7
Interest Paid, including facility fees, for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002 was:
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002
Notes Payable under Revolving Credit Agreements $ 05 | $ 19 | % 3.9
Senior Notes:
5.75% Senior Notes due July 1, 2007 17.2 17.2 -
4.875% Senior Notes due November 1, 2010 9.8 - -
Mortgage Note Payable 0.2 - -
Total Interest Paid $ 277 | $ 19.1 | $ 39
Interest Expense, including facility fees and accretion of discount, for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was:
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002
Notes Payable under Revolving Credit Agreements $ 04 | § 19 | & 33
Senior Notes: .
5.75% Senior Notes due July 1, 2007 17.9 17.8 8.9
4.875% Senior Notes due November 1, 2010 10.0 1.7 -
Mortgage Note Payable 0.2 - -
Total Interest Expense $ 285 | § 214 | $ 12.2
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MOTE 8. NOTES PAYABLE [CONTINUED]

On October 30, 2003, the Company utilized the remaining capacity under
its shelf registration statement and issued $200 million of its 4.875% sen-
ior notes due November 1, 2010 (the “4.875% Senior Notes”). The 4.875%
Senior Notes are unsecured and may be redeemed in whole at any time or
in part from time to time at the Company’s option at specified redemption
prices. The Company issued the 4.875% Senior Notes in exchange for pro-
ceeds of $198.0 million, net of transaction costs, for an effective yield of
5.04%. The Unitrin parent company used the proceeds from the notes to
fund the purchase of Northrop common stock from one of its subsidiaries
and to repay borrowings outstanding under its revolving credit agreement.

On June 26, 2002, the Company commenced an initial public offering of
its 5.75% senior notes due July 1, 2007 with an aggregate principal amount
of $300 million (the “5.75% Senior Notes”). The 5.75% Senior Notes are
unsecured and may be redeemed in whole at any time or in part from time
to time at the Company’s option at specified redemption prices. On July 1,
2002, the Company issued the 5.75% Senior Notes in exchange for proceeds
of $296.8 million, net of transaction costs, for an effective vield of 5.99%.

Proceeds were used to repay borrowings under the Company’s former
revolving credit agreement.

On August 30, 2002, the Company entered into a $360 million unse-
cured revolving credit agreement, expiring August 30, 2005, with a group
of banks that provides for fixed and floating rate advances for periods of
up to 180 days at various interest rates. The agreement contains various
financial covenants, including limits on total debt to total capitalization
and minimum risk-based capital ratios for the Company’s largest insur-
ance subsidiaries. The proceeds from advances under the revolving credit
agreement may be used for general corporate purposes, including repur-
chases of the Company’s common stock. The new revolving credit agree-
ment replaced the Company’s former credit facility which was terminated
on August 30, 2002. The Company had no outstanding advances under its
unsecured revolving credit agreement at December 31, 2004 and 2003.

On June 23, 2004, the Company acquired certain investment real estate
for $5.3 million in cash and the assumption of an existing mortgage note
payable of $6.3 million.

. NOTE Q. LEASES

The Company leases certain office space under noncancelable operating
leases, with initial terms typically ranging from 1 to 10 years, along with
options that permit renewals for additional periods. The Company also
leases certain equipment under noncancelable operating leases, with

initial terms typically ranging from 1 to 5 years. Minimum rent is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Net rental expense for operating leases for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 —20_03
Minimum Rental Expense $ 242 | % 228 | $ 20.5
Contingent Rental Expense 1.3 1.0 -
Less: Sublease Rental Income - (0.1) -
Net Rental Expense $ 255 | $ 237 | § 20.5
Future minimum lease payments under capital and operating leases at
December 31, 2004 were:

CAPITAL OPERATING
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS LEASES LEASES
2005 $ 03 | % 24.8
2006 0.3 21.8
2007 0.3 16.4
2008 0.3 11.6
2009 - 8.2
2010 and Thereafter - 27.0
Total Future Payments $ 12 | § 109.8

Imputed interest for capital leases is not material.



NOTE 10. SHARENOLDERS' EQUITY

The Company is authorized to issue 20 million shares of $o0.10 par value
preferred stock and 100 million shares of $0.10 par value common stock. No
preferred shares were issued or outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003.

On August 3, 1994, the Board of Directors declared a dividend distribu-
tion of one preferred share purchase right for each outstanding share of
common stock of the Company, pursuant to a shareholder rights plan (the
“1994 Rights™).

On August 4, 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors decided to extend
for an additional 10 years the protections provided by the shareholder
rights plan previously adopted in 1994. In order to implement the exten-
sion, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a dividend distribution
of one new right for each outstanding share of Unitrin common stock to
shareholders of record at the close of business on August 16, 2004 (the
“2004 Rights”). The 2004 Rights replaced the 1994 Rights which had
expired in accordance with their terms on August 3, 2004. The description
and terms of the 2004 Rights are set forth in a rights agreement between
the Company and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as rights agent.

. At December 31, 2004, there are approximately 3.5 million shares of the
Company’s outstanding common stock that can be repurchased under the
outstanding repurchase authorization of the Company’s Board of Direc-
tors. Common stock can be repurchased in open market or in privately
negotiated transactions from time to time subject to market conditions
and other factors. The Company has repurchased and retired approxi-
mately 54.7 million shares of its common stock in open market trans-
actions at an aggregate cost of approximately s1.5 billion since 1990.
Common Stock, Paid-in Capital and Retained Earnings have been reduced
on a pro rata basis for the cost of the repurchased shares.

Various state insurance laws restrict the amount that an insurance sub-
sidiary may pay in the form of dividends, loans or advances without the
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prior approval of regulatory authorities. Also, that portion of an insurance
subsidiary’s net equity which results from differences between statutory
insurance accounting practices and GAAP would not be available for cash
dividends, loans or advances. Three of Unitrin’s subsidiaries, Trinity, Fireside
Securities Corporation (“Fireside”) and Southern States General Agency,
paid dividends of $68.8 million to the Company in 2004. In 2005, the
Company’s subsidiaries would be able to pay approximately $229 million
in dividends to the Company without prior regulatory approval. Retained
Earnings at December 31, 2004 also includes $42.3 million representing the
undistributed earnings of investee.

The Company’s insurance subsidiaries are required to file financial
statements prepared on the basis of statutory insurance accounting prac-
tices which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than GAAP.
Statutory Capital and Surplus for the Company’s Life and Health Insur-
ance subsidiaries was approximately $270 million and was $251 million at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Statutory Capital and Surplus
for the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance subsidiaries was
approximately $1,070 million and was $973 million at December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively. Statutory Net Income for the Company’s Life and
Health Insurance subsidiaries was approximately $38 million, was $2 mil-
lion and was $38 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Statutory Net Income for the Company’s Property and
Casualty Insurance subsidiaries was approximately s113 million, was
$28 million and was $82 million for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively. Statutory Capital and Surplus and Statutory
Net Income exclude the Company’s Consumer Finance and Parent
Company operations.

NOTE 11. STOCK OPTION PLANS

The Company’s shareholders have approved four stock option plans:
1) Unitrin, Inc. 1995 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (the
“1995 Director Plan”); ‘
2) Unitrin, Inc. 2002 Stock Cption Plan (the “2002 Option Plan”);

3) 1997 Stock Option Plan (the “1997 Option Plan”); and

4) 1990 Stock Option Plan (the “1990 Option Plan”).
Options outstanding and options available for future grant under the
Company’s equity compensation plans at December 31, 2004 were:

oPrions ivirace  avaname on

OUTSTANDING EXERCISE PRICE FUTURE GRANT

1995 Director Plan 148,382 | $ 34.87 208,000
2002 Option Plan 1,855,456 37.76 2,926,000
1997 Option Plan 2,623,758 38.56 330,024
1990 Option Plan 674,584 38.50 -
Total Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Shareholders 5,302,180 38.17 3,464,024
Total Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Shareholders - - -
Total Equity Compensation Plans 5,302,180 | § 38.17 3,464,024
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NOTE 11. STOCK OPTION PLANS [CONT|NUED]

Under the 1995 Director Plan, directors of the Company who are not
employees and who first became non-employee directors after November 1,
1993 and each director who has retired as an employee of the Company
will be granted an initial option to purchase 4,000 shares of the Com-
pany’s common stock. Thereafter, on the date of each of the Company’s
annual meetings of shareholders, each such eligible director automatically
receives annual grants of options to purchase the same number of shares
for so long as they remain eligible directors. Options granted under the
1995 Director Plan are exercisable one year from the date of grant at an
exercise price equal to the fair market value of the Company’s common
stock on the date of grant and expire 10 years from the date of grant.
Under the 2002 Option Plan, 1997 Option Plan and 1990 Option Plan,
options to purchase shares of Unitrin common stock may be granted to
executive and other key employees (including employee directors) and
other key persons providing services to the Company and its subsidiaries or
its affiliates (“participants”). The Compensation Committee of the Board
of Directors, at its discretion, may grant either incentive stock options,
non-qualified stock options, or stock appreciation rights pursuant to either
the 2002 Option Plan, the 1997 Option Plan or the 1990 Option Plan. The
Compensation Committee or its authorized designee, has sole discretion
to determine the persons to whom options are granted, the number of
shares covered by such options and the exercise price, vesting and expira-
tion dates of such options. Options are non-transferable and are exercis-
able in installments. Prior to 2003, only non-qualified stock options had
been granted under the 2002 Option Plan, the 1997 Option Plan and the
1990 Option Plan. Beginning in 2003, the Company granted non-qualified
stock options coupled with tandem stock appreciation rights (“Tandem
SARSs”). A Tandem SAR permits the holder to exercise either the underlying

Option or the Tandem SAR, but not both. All Tandem SARs are settled in
Unitrin common stock upon exercise.

To encourage stock ownership, the Company’s four stock option plans
include provisions to automatically grant restorative, or reload stock
options (“Restorative Options”) to replace shares of previously-owned
Unitrin common stock that an exercising option holder surrenders, either
actually or constructively, in order to satisfy the exercise price and/or tax
withholding obligations relating to the exercise. Restorative Options are
subject to the same terms and conditions as the original options, includ-
ing the expiration date, except that the exercise price of a Restorative
Option is equal to the fair market value of Unitrin common stock on the
date of its grant. Restorative Options cannot be exercised until six months
after the date of grant. The grant of a Restorative Option does not result
in an increase in the total number of shares and options held by an
employee but changes the mix of the two.

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the fair value recogni-
tion provisions of SFAS No. 123, as amended by SFAS No. 148, prospectively
to all awards granted, modified or settled on or after January 1, 2003. The
Company recognized compensation expense of $8.5 million before-tax in
2004 and $2.8 million before-tax in 2003 under SFAS No. 123, as amended.

During 2002, the term of options for 51,282 common shares was
extended. The market value of the Company’s common stock exceeded the
exercise price of the options on the date of modification. Accordingly, the
Company recorded compensation expense of $0.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002 as a result of the modification.

The following table summarizes information about stock options out-
standing at December 31, 2004:

OPTIONS QUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE

NUMBER WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED- NUMBER WEIGHTED-
QUTSTANDING AVERAGE AVERAGE EXERCISABLE AVERAGE

RANGE OF EXERCISE PRICES AT YEAR END  REMAINING LIFE EXERCISE PRICE AT YEAR END EXERCISE PRICE
$19.9481 — $24.9350 56,974 2.0 $23.3856 51,974 $23.2687
24.9351 — 29.9220 598,974 8.0 25.4067 130,724 25.5384
29.9221 — 34.9090 1,229,784 5.0 33.2171 1,206,534 33.2263
34.9091 - 395.8960 448,410 4.9 38.3393 420,410 38.2853
39.8961 — 44.8830 2,741,177 6.7 42.7190 1,631,887 42,2067
44.8831 — 49.8700 226,861 4.6 47.1732 - -

The Black-Scholes option pricing model was used to estimate the fair
value of each option on the date granted. The assumptions used in the
pricing model were as follows:
1) The expected dividend yield used was between 4.64% and 4.66% for
2004, 4.24% and 4.65% for 2003 and 4.09% for 2002;
2) The weighted-average expected volatility used was between 20.0%
and 25.3% for 2004, between 20.8% and 26.0% for 2003 and between
18.5% and 26.0% for 2002;

3) The weighted-average risk free interest rate used was the average
yield on zero coupon U.S. Government securities with a maturity
comparable to the expected life of each option; and

4) The expected lives of the options ranged between 1 to 7 years for all
grants, except grants under the 1995 Director Plan.

In the case of the 1995 Director Plan, a life of 8 years was used in 2004, 2003
and 2002.




NOTE 11. STOCK OPTION PLANS [CONTINUED]

A summary of the status of the Company’s four stock option plans as of
and for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and stock
option activity for the years then ended is presented below:
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ESTIMATED

WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE
FAIR VALUE
OF OPTIONS
WEIGHTED- OPTIONS GRANTED
NUMBER AVERAGE EXERCISABLE DURING
OF SHARES EXERCISE PRICE AT YEAR END THE YEAR
Outstanding at December 31, 2001 4,992,861 | $ 33.54 2,878,323
Granted 1,414,057 41.22 $6.62
Exercised (853,393) 32.42
Forfeited (187,147) 33.28
Outstanding at December 31, 2002 5,366,378 $ 35.74 3,917,061
Granted 1,609,430 29.18 $3.66
Exercised (875,861) 30.60
Forfeited (380,459) 35.65
Outstanding at December 31, 2003 5,719,488 $ 34.69 3,666,927
Granted 2,072,876 43.44 $4.92
Exercised (2,401,139) 34.48
Forfeited (89,045) 37.05
Qutstanding at December 31, 2004 5,302,180 | $ 38.17 3,441,529
Options granted for the year ended December 31, 2004 were comprised of:
NUMBER OF SHARES
INFTIAL RESTORATIVE TOTAL
GRANTS CRANTS GRANTS
Granted in 2004:
With Tandem SARs 817,000 172,860 989,860
Without Tandem SARs 32,000 1,051,016 1,083,016
Total Options Granted in 2004 849,000 1,223,876 2,072,876
Options granted for the year ended December 31, 2003 were comprised of:
NUMBER OF SHARES
INITIAL RESTORATIVE TOTAL
CRANTS CGRANTS GRANTS
Granted in 2003:
With Tandem SARs 991,500 115,002 1,106,502
Without Tandem SARs 32,000 470,928 502,928
Total Options Granted in 2003 1,023,500 585,930 1,609,430
Options granted for the year ended December 31, 2002 were comprised of:
NUMBER OF SHARES
INITIAL RESTORATIVE TOTAL
CRANTS GRANTS GRANTS
Granted in 2002:
With Tandem SARs - - _
Without Tandem SARs 1,024,000 390,057 1,414,057
Total Options Granted in 2002 1,024,000 390,057 1,414,057
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MOTE 12. NET INCOME {LOSS) PER SHARE

Net Income (Loss) Per Share and Net Income (Loss) Per Share Assuming

Dilution for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were:

DOLLARS AND SHARES IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2004 2003 2002
Net Income (Loss) $ 2402 | § 123.6 $ (8.2)
Dilutive Effect on Net Income (Loss) from Investee’s Equivalent Shares (0.1) - -
Net Income (Loss) Assuming Dilution $ 240.1 $ 123.6 $ (8.2)
Weighted-Average Common Shares Outstanding 68.4 67.6 67.7
Dilutive Effect of Unitrin Stock Option Plans 0.5 0.1 -
Weighted-Average Common Shares and Equivalent Shares Outstanding Assuming Dilution 68.9 67.7 67.7
Net Income (Loss) Per Share $ 351 | $ 1.83 | $ (0.12)
Net Income (Loss) Per Share Assuming Dilution $ 348 | S 1.82 $ (0.12)

Options to purchase 0.4 million common shares were excluded from the
compufation of Weighted-Average Equivalent Shares in 2002 because the
effect of inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

Options outstanding at December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 to purchase

0.2 million, 2.0 million and 4.6 million common shares, respectively,
of Unitrin common stock were excluded from the computation of Net
Income Per Share Assuming Dilution in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively,

because the exercise price exceeded the average market price.

NOTE 13. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002
Gross Unrealized Holding Gains (Losses) Arising During Year from: o
Fixed Maturities $ 364 | $ 2191 % 78.9
Northrop Preferred Stock 13.4 2.0 (1.2)
Northrop Common Stock 70.3 (13.2) (29.1)
Other Equity Securities 41.9 60.7 (61.6)
Other (0.5) 4.9 1.4
Gross Unrealized Holding Gains (Losses) Arising During Year 161.5 32.5 (11.6)
Income Tax Benefit (Expense) (56.5) (11.3) 4.1
Unrealized Holding Gains (Losses) Arising During Year, Net 105.0 21.2 (7.5)
Reclassification Adjustment for Gross (Gains) Losses Realized in Net Income:
Fixed Maturities (1.1) (10.3) 6.2
Northrop Common Stock (43.2) (7.2) -
Other Equity Securities (32.3) (17.9) 14.6
Reclassification Adjustment for Gross (Gains) Losses Realized in Net Income (76.6) (35.4) 20.8
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) 26.7 12.4 (7.3)
Reclassification Adjustment for (Gains) Losses Realized in Net Income, Net (49.9) (23.0) 13.5
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) $ 551 | $ 1.8) | $ 6.0

Investment in Investee is accounted for under the equity method

of accounting and, accordingly, unrealized changes in the fair value of

Investment in Investee is excluded from the determination of Total Com-
prehensive Income (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income (Loss).



NOTE 14, [(NCOME FROM INVESTMENTS

Net Investment Income for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and

2002 was:
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DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002
Investment Income:
Interest and Dividends on Fixed Maturities $ 196.9 171.1 159.0
Dividends on Northrop Preferred Stock 12.4 12.4 12.8
Dividends on Northrop Common Stock 8.7 12.3 12.3
Dividends on Other Equity Securities 12.7 12.3 13.0
Short-term 5.2 5.0 9.0
Real Estate 24.8 24.3 21.7
Other 20.0 13.0 11.3
Total Investment Income 280.7 2504 239.1
Investment Expenses:
Real Estate 18.3 17.2 15.8
Other 1.2 1.3 1.4
Total Investment Expenses 19.5 18.5 17.2
Net Investment Income $ 261.2 231.9 2219
The components of Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were:
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002
Fixed Maturities;
Gains on Dispositions $ 1.8 13.6 5.5
Losses on Dispositions (0.6) (0.7) (1.3)
Losses from Write-downs (0.1) (2.5) (10.9)
Northrop Common Stock:
Gains on Dispositions 43.2 7.2 -
Other Equity Securities:
Gains on Dispositions 39.0 38.6 2.7
Losses on Dispositions (0.9) (2.5) (0.7)
Losses from Write-downs (5.8) (18.0) (16.5)
Other Investments:
Gains on Dispositions 2.3 0.3 8.4
Losses on Dispositions (0.4) (0.3) (0.5)
Losses from Write-downs - (1.8) -
Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) $ 78.5 339 (13.3)
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NOTE 14. INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS [CONTINUED]

Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) for the year ended December 31,
2004 includes pre-tax gains of $43.2 million from sales of a portion of the
Company’s investment in Northrop common stock, pre-tax gains of $27.0
million resulting from sales of a portion of the Company’s investment in
Baker Hughes, Inc. (“Baker Hughes”) common stock, and pre-tax gains of
$3.9 million from sales of a portion of the Company’s investment in Hart-
ford Financial Services Group, Inc. (“Hartford”) common stock. The fair
values of the Company’s remaining investments in Northrop’s common
stock, Baker Hughes’ common stock and Hartford’s common stock were
$430.3 million, $48.4 million and $20.6 million, respectively, at December
31, 2004. The other gains and losses from sales of equity securities included
in Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) were due to sales of investments
in 32 different issuers.

Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) for the year ended December 31,
2003 includes Gains on Dispositions of Fixed Maturities of $13.6 million,
including recoveries from sales on fixed maturities written down in prior
years. Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) for the year ended December

31, 2003 includes pre-tax gains of $12.0 million resulting from the sale of
the Company’s investment in ITT Industries, Inc. common stock,
pre-tax gains of $7.2 million from sales of a portion of the Company’s
investment in Northrop common stock, pre-tax gains of $6.6 million from
sales of the Company’s investment in Insurance Services Office, Inc. com-
mon stock, pre-tax gains of $5.7 million from sales of a portion of the
Company’s investment in Hartford common stock, and pre-tax gains of
$4.4 million resulting from sales of a portion of the Company’s investment
in Baker Hughes common stock. The other gains and losses from sales of
equity securities included in Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) were
due to sales of investments in 54 different issuers. Net Realized Investment
Gains (Losses) for the year ended December 31, 2003 includes a pre-tax loss
of $1.8 million to write down investment real estate.

Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) for the year ended December 31,
2002 includes a pre-tax gain of $8.1 million due to the sale of certain invest-
ment real estate and pre-tax gains of $1.5 million resulting from sales of a
portion of the Company’s investment in Baker Hughes common stock.

NOTE 15. INSURANCE EXPENSES

Insurance Expenses for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002 were:

DOLLARS (N MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002
Commissions $ 4470 | $ 4525 | $ 4058
General Expenses 347.0 357.6 3320
Taxes, Licenses and Fees 50.0 50.0 45.3
Total Costs Incurred 844.0 860.1 783.1
Policy Acquisition Costs:

Deferred (343.6) (351.0) (289.7)

Amortized 323.6 335.0 237.3
Net Policy Acquisition Costs Deferred (20.0) (16.0) (52.4)
Insurance Expenses $ 8240 | $ 844.1 | § 730.7

Policy Acquisition Costs Deferred for the year ended December 31, 2003
increased by $61.3 million, compared to the same period in 2002, due pri-
marily to premium volume from the Kemper Auto and Home segment.

Policy Acquisition Costs Amortized for the year ended December 31, 2003
increased by $97.7 million, compared to the same period in 2002, due
primarily to premium volume from the Kemper Auto and Home segment.



NOTE 16. INCOME TAXES
The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant por-
tions of the Company’s Net Deferred Tax Liability at December 31, 2004

and 2003 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS
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2004 2003

Deferred Tax Assets:
Insurance Reserves
Unearned Premium Reserves
Tax Capitalization of Policy Acquisition Costs
Reserve for Loan Losses
Payroll and Employee Benefit Accruals
Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions
Other
Total Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs
Fixed Maturities
Northrop Preferred Stock
Northrop Common Stock
Other Equity Securities
Investee (UNOVA)
Pension
Other
Total Deferred Tax Liability
Net Deferred Tax Liability
Current Tax Liability
Accrued and Deferred Income Taxes

S 685 (% 431
53.7 53.3

66.0 63.5

23.6 218

180 | 13.6

26.9 27.7

25.3 23.1

282.0 246.1
148.1 140.4

51.7 40.8

79.9 71.1

146.5 215.7

36.6 45.0

21.3 20.0

3.5 12.2

29.3 25.4

516.9 570.6
234.9 3245

15.8 57.5

$ 2507 | § 3820

A deferred tax asset valuation allowance was not required as of December
31, 2004 and 2003. Income taxes paid were $254.2 million and $12.2 million
in 2004 and 2002, respectively. Income taxes recovered were $1.4 million
in 2003.

The Company has not provided Federal income taxes on approximately
$192 million of income earned prior to 1984 by certain of the Company’s
life insurance subsidiaries. Under tax laws applicable to years 2004 and
prior, such income would not be subject to Federal income taxes under
certain circumstances. Federal income taxes could have been incurred on

such income if it was distributed to shareholders or if other limitations
were not met. The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (“AJCA”) has effec-
tively suspended the taxation of this income for years 2005 and 2006. Fur-
thermore, to the extent qualifying distributions can be made out of the
affected life insurance subsidiaries, the Company can eliminate any or all
of this income that would possibly be subject to tax in years after 2006.
The Company is in process of evaluating these AJCA provisions. The eval-
uation is expected to be substantially complete by the end of 2005.
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NOTE 16, INCOME TAXES [CONTINUED]

Comprehensive Income Tax Expense (Benefit) included in the Consoli-
dated Financial Statements for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002

Income Tax Expense (Benefit) $ 98.9 | $ 34.1 $ (18.3)
Equity in Net Income (Loss) of Investee 2.0 (0.7) (1.1)
Equity in Other Comprehensive Income of Investee 0.6 0.6 0.9

Unrealized Appreciation on Securities 29.2 (1.7) 24

Tax Effects from Exercise of Stock Options included in Paid-in Capital (6.7) (1.5) (2.2)
Other Tax Effects included in Paid-in Capital (0.9) - -

Comprehensive Income Tax Expense (Benefit) $ 123.1 $ 30.8 $ (18.3)
The components of Income Tax Expense (Benefit) for the years ended

December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002

Current Tax Expense (Benefit) $ 2194 | § 65.5 $ (946)
Deferred Tax Expense (Benefit) (120.5) (31.4) (8.7)
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) $ 98.9 $ 34,1 $ (18.3)
A reconciliation of income taxes calculated using the Statutory Federal

Income Tax rate to the Company’s reported Income Tax Expense (Benefit)

for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002

Income Tax Expense (Benefit) at Statutory Federal Rate $ 1174 | $ 556 | $ (8.4)
Tax Exempt Income and Dividends Received Deduction Effect (21.0) (17.8) (12.2)
State Income Taxes Effect 3.7 2.9 1.8

Other, Net (1.2) (6.6) 0.5

Income Tax Expense (Benefit) $ 989 | % 34.1 $ (18.3)

For the year ended December 31, 2004, all of the Company’s subsidiaries
will be eligible to file a consolidated Federal income tax return with the
Company. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company
filed a consolidated Federal income tax return with all of its subsidiaries
except for The Reliable Life Insurance Company and its subsidiaries, and
NationalCare Insurance Company and its subsidiaries.

During 2004, an income tax benefit of $0.9 million was recorded for
Federal income tax adjustments related to the tax year that ended on
December 31, 2000. During 2004, the statute of limitations expired for the
tax year that ended on December 31, 2000. The statute of limitations is
open for all other subsequent years.

While the Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) recently completed its
fieldwork related to its examination of the Company’s 2001 and 2002 tax
years, there can be no assurance that the IRS will not perform additional
fieldwork until the examination is finalized or the statutes of limitations
expire. The Company believes that it is adequately accrued for any possible

adjustments that may result from the finalization of these examinations
and, accordingly, expects the resolution of these examinations will not
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or
results of operation. However, the ultimate resolution of these tax years
could result in a tax benefit to the Company, the effects of which could be
material to the Company’s results for a given period.

During 2003, an income tax benefit of $6.5 million was recorded for
Federal income tax adjustments primarily related to tax years ending on
or before December 31, 1999. During 2003, the Company either reached
agreement with the IRS or the statute of limitations expired for all tax
years ending on or before December 31, 1999.

During 2004, Fireside, a subsidiary of Unitrin, received and paid a final
assessment from the California Franchise Tax Board regarding its
California franchise tax returns for 1998, 1999 and 2000. The impact of
this assessment was not material to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.
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NQOTE 17. PENSION BENEFITS AND POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

The Company sponsors two defined benefit pension plans (the “Pension
Plans”) covering most of its employees. Certain participation in one of the
Pension Plans requires or required employee contributions of 3 percent of
pay, as defined, per year. Benefits for the contributory plan are based on
compensation during plan participation and the number of years of partici-
pation. Benefits for the non-contributory plan are based on years of service
and final average pay, as defined. The Company funds the Pension Plans in
accordance with the requirements of the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”).

The Company sponsors several postretirement benefit plans (the
“Other Postretirement Plans”) that provide medical and life insurance

benefits to approximately 1,000 retired and 1,200 active employees. The
Company is self-insured and the plans are not funded. The medical plans
generally provide for a limited number of years of medical insurance ben-
efits at retirement based upon the participant’s attained age at retirement
and number of years of service until specified dates and are generally con-
tributory, with most contributions adjusted annually.

Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets and Changes in Projected Benefit
Obligations for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were:

POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS
OTHER THAN PENSIONS

FENSION BENEFITS

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2004 2003
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Beginning of Year $ 288.7 | $ 2775 | 8 -1 $ -
Actual Return on Plan Assets 18.5 23.0 - -
Contributions by the Company - - 5.3 5.4
Contributions by Plan Participants 0.7 1.0 1.0 1.1
Benefits Paid (14.7) (12.8) (6.3) (6.5)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at End of Year 293.2 288.7 - -
Projected Benefit Obligations at Beginning of Year 313.7 290.9 55.9 61.8
Service Cost Benefits Earned During the Year 12.9 16.7 0.2 0.6
Interest Cost on Projected Benefit Obligations 17.6 17.9 3.6 3.4
Contributions by Plan Participants 0.7 1.0 1.0 1.1
Benefits Paid (14.7) (12.8) (6.3) (6.5)
Impact of Plan Change (1.6) - - -
Actuarial (Gains) Losses (19.0) - (0.3) (4.5)
Projected Benefit Obligations at End of Year 309.6 313.7 54.1 55.9
Plan Assets in (Deficit) of Projected Benefit Obligations $ (16.4) | $ (25.0) | $ (54.1) | § (55.9)
Plan Assets in Excess (Deficit) of Projected Benefit Obligations:
Amounts Recognized in the Balance Sheet:
Prepaid (Accrued) Benefit Cost $ 96 | $ 195  § (76.1) | $ (78.5)
Amounts not Recognized in the Balance Sheet:

Unrecognized Net Actuarial Gain (Loss) (27.4) (44.3) 22.0 22.6

Unrecognized Prior Service Cost 1.4 (0.2) - -
Plan Assets in (Deficit) of Projected Benefit Obligations $ (164) | % (25.0) | $ 54.1) | $ (55.9)
Accumulated Benefit Obligations at End of Year $§ 2786 | $ 2600 | § 541 | § 55.9
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NOTE 17. PENSION BENEFITS AND POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS [CONTINUED]

The measurement dates of the assets and liabilities of all plans presented
above for 2004 and 2003 were December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003,
respectively.

In 2004, the Company’s actuaries performed an analysis of the key
assumptions used to estimate the Company’s Pension Benefits and Postre-
tirement Benefits Other than Pensions labilities and expenses. The Com-
pany’s outside actuaries conducted an experience study to analyze the
current demographic qualities of the Company’s eligible participants com-
pared to existing assumptions. The purpose of the experience study was to
determine to what extent the actuarial assumptions have matched past expe-
rience and to determine the actuarial assumptions that will best estimate
the future experience of the Pension Plans and Other Postretirement Plans.
The key assumptions analyzed were the rate of increase in Future Com-
pensation Levels, termination rates, retirement rates and mortality rates.

Prior to the study, the Company had a single percentage assumption for
its expected Rate of Increase in Future Compensation Levels for all ages.
Under the current assumptions, the Company stratifies the assumed com-
pensation increases into bands representing a participant’s attained age.
The Rate of Increase in Future Compensation Levels presented for 2004 is
a weighted-average percentage calculated from the range of compensation
assumptions for the Company’s two pension plans. Similar stratifications
were made to its termination rate and retirement rate assumptions. Addi-
tionally, the Company moved to a common mortality table assumption for
all its participants.

Effective August 1, 2004, the Company made several changes to its Pen-
sion Plans and its defined contribution benefit plans to provide common
benefits across its Career Agency companies. The August 1, 2004 plan
changes resulted in a reduction of the Company’s Projected Benefit Obli-
gation and a related actuarial gain of $1.6 million, which will be amortized
pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 87, Employers’ Accounting for Pen-
sions. The Company estimates that the August 1, 2004 plan changes will
initially decrease the 2005 pension expense by approximately $1.4 million,
offset by an increase in the Company’s defined contribution benefit plan
expense of $1.8 million.

During 2004, the Company determined that the Other Postretirement
Plans qualify for the employer subsidy provided by the Modernization Act
(see Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements—Summary of
Accounting Policies). The Company determined that the effect of the
enactment of the Modernization Act was not a significant event pursuant
to paragraph 73 of SFAS No. 106. Pursuant to FSP FAS 106-2, the effects of
the Modernization Act were incorporated in the December 31, 2004 meas-
urement of the Other Postretirement Plans’ obligation and will affect net
periodic postretirement benefit cost for periods subsequent to December
31, 2004. The adoption of FSP FAS 106-2 resulted in a reduction of the
Company’s Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation and a related
actuarial gain of $6.3 million, which will be amortized pursuant to the pro-
visions of SFAS No. 106. The Company estimates that annual postretire-
ment expense will decrease by $1.0 million as a result of the initial
adoption of FSP FAS 106-2.

The assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the Postre-
tirement Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2004 was 10.0 percent in 2004,
gradually declining to 5.0 percent in the year 2009 and remaining at that
level thereafter for medical benefits and 12.0 percent in 2004, gradually
declining to 5.0 percent in the year 2011 and remaining at that level there-
after for prescription drug benefits. The assumed health care cost trend
rate used in measuring the Postretirement Benefit Obligation at December
31, 2003 was 9.0 percent in 2003, gradually declining to 5.0 percent in the
year 2007 and remaining at that level thereafter.

A one percentage point increase in the assumed health care cost trend
rate for each year would increase the Postretirement Benefit Obligation at
December 31, 2004 by approximately $4.4 million and 2004 postretirement
expense by $0.3 million. A one percentage point decrease in the assumed
health care cost trend for each year would decrease the Postretirement
Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2004 by approximately $4.0 million
and 2004 postretirement expense by approximately $o.2 million.

The Other Postretirement Plans were unfunded at December 31, 2004
and 2003. Weighted-average asset allocations for the Company’s
Pension Plans at December 31, 2004 and 2003, by asset category were:

ASSET CATEGORY 2004 . 7270—92
Cash and Short-term 10% 9%
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities 29 38
Corporate Bonds and Notes 21 21
Equity Securities 33 25
Other Assets 7 7
Total 100% 100%
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NOTE 17. PENSION BENEFITS AND POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS [CONTINUED]

The investment objective of the Pension Plans is to produce current
income and long-term capital growth through a combination of equity
and fixed income investments which, together with appropriate employer
contributions and any required employee contributions, is adequate to
provide for the payment of the Pension Plans’ benefit obligations. The
Pension Plans may be invested in both fixed income and equity invest-
ments. Fixed income investments may include cash and short-term instru-
ments, U.S. Government securities, corporate bonds, mortgages and other
fixed income investments. Equity investments may include various types
of stock, such as large cap, mid cap and small cap stocks, and may also
include venture capital investments and Unitrin common stock (subject to
Section 407 and other requirements of ERISA). The Pension Plans have
not invested in Unitrin common stock.

The Pension Plans’ investment committee periodically reviews the per-
formance of the Pension Plans’ investments and asset allocation. The Pen-
sion Plans principally use two external investment managers, one of which

is Fayez Sarofim & Co., (“FS&C”) to manage its equity investments. One of
Unitrin’s directors, Mr. Fayez Sarofim, is Chairman of the Board, President
and the majority shareholder of FS&C, a registered investment advisory
firm (see Note 21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements— Related Par-
ties). Each manager is allowed to exercise investment discretion, subject to
limitations, if any, established by the Pension Plans’ Trust Investment com-
mittee. All other investment decisions are made by the Company, subject to
general guidelines as set by the Pension Plans’ Trust Investment committee.

The Company determines its Expected Long-term Rate of Return based
primarily on the Company’s expectations of future returns for the Pension
Plans’ investments, based on target allocations of the Pension Plans’
investments. Additionally, the Company considers historical returns on
comparable fixed income investments and equity investments and adjusts
its estimate as deemed appropriate.

The components of Pension Expense for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002
Service Cost Benefits Earned During the Year $ 129 | $ 167 | $ 11.4
Interest Cost on Projected Benefit Obligation 17.6 17.9 16.4
Expected Return on Plan Assets (20.5) (17.6) (18.9)
Net Amortization and Deferral (0.1) - -
Total Pension Expense $ 99 | § 170 | § 8.9
The components of Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions Expense
for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were:
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002
Service Cost Benefits Earned During the Year $ 02 | $ 06 | $ 0.6
Interest Cost on Projected Benefit Obligation 3.7 3.4 3.7
Net Amortization and Deferral (0.9) (1.5) (1.8)
Total Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions Expense $ 30 | § 25 | § 2.5
The actuarial assumptions used to develop the components of both Pen-
sion Expense and Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions Expense
for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were:

2004 2003 2002
Discount Rate 6.25% 6.25% 6.75%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation Levels 4.07 4.00 4.00
Expected Long-term Rate of Return on Plan Assets 7.00 6.00 6.50
The actuarial assumptions used to develop the components of both Pen-
sion Projected Benefit Obligation and Postretirement Benefit Obligation
at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were:

2004 2003

Discount Rate 6.00% 6.25%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation Levels 4.07 4.00




2004 ANNUAL REPORT [ UNITRIN, INC. & SUBSIDIARIES
73 | NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 17. PENSION BENEFITS AND POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS [CONTINUED]

Due to new actuarial assumptions, the Company’s Pension Expense for the
year ended December 31, 2004 decreased by approximately $5 million and
the Company’s Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions Expense for
the year ended December 31, 2004 increased approximately $0.5 million.

The Company does not expect to contribute to its Pension Plans in 2005 but
expects to contribute $5.8 million to its Other Postretirement Plans in 200s.

The following benefit payments (net of participant contributions), which
reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

YEARS ENDING DECEMBER 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2008 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010-2014
Pension Benefits $ 138 | % 144 | § 151 | § 160 | $ 172 | § 103.7
Other Postretirement Benefits:
Other Postretirement Benefits
(excluding Modernization Act Subsidy) $ 58 | $ 59 1 % 59 | % 58 | % 57 | % 26.0
Expected Modernization Act Subsidy - 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5 2.6
Other Postretirement Benefits $ 58 | $ 55 ] 8§ 5.4 53 | § 52 | % 23.4

The Company also sponsors several defined contribution benefit plans
covering most of its employees. The Company made contributions to
those plans of $6.0 million, $5.0 million and $4.2 million in 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively. Under these plans the participants have several
investment alternatives, including the Company’s stock and the Dreyfus
Appreciation Fund. FS&C is a sub-investment advisor of the Dreyfus
Appreciation Fund. One of Unitrin’s directors, Mr. Fayez Sarofim, is the

Chairman of the Board, President and majority shareholder of FS&C (see
Note 21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements—Related Parties). Par-
ticipants invested $22.3 million, or 10%, of the total investments in the
defined benefit contribution plans in the Company’s stock and $26.9 mil-
lion, or 12%, of the total investments in the defined benefit contribution
plans in the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund at December 31, 2004.

MOTE 18, BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company is engaged, through its subsidiaries, in the property and
casualty insurance, life and health insurance and consumer finance busi-
nesses. The Company conducts its operations through six operating seg-
ments: Multi Lines Insurance, Unitrin Specialty, Kemper Auto and Home,
Unitrin Direct, Life and Health Insurance and Consumer Finance.

Insurance provided by the Multi Lines Insurance segment consists of
preferred and standard risk automobile, homeowners, fire, commercial
liability and workers compensation and other related lines. Multi Lines
Insurance products are marketed to individuals and businesses with favor-
able risk characteristics and loss histories and are sold by independent
agents.

The Unitrin Specialty segment primarily consists of automobile insur-
ance sold to individuals and businesses in the non-standard and specialty
market through independent agents. The non-standard automobile insur-
ance market consists of individuals and companies that have difficulty
obtaining standard or preferred risk insurance, usually because of their
driving records.

Kemper Auto and Home provides preferred and standard risk personal
automobile and homeowners insurance through independent agents.

Unitrin Direct markets personal automobile insurance through direct
mail and the Internet through web insurance portals, click-thrus and its
own website, Unitrin Direct, as a direct marketer, typically incurs higher
up-front acquisition costs associated with marketing products and acquiring
new policies but is expected to experience lower renewal costs than

traditional insurance providers.

The Life and Health Insurance segment includes individual life, acci-
dent, health and hospitalization insurance. The Company’s Life and
Health Insurance employee-agents also market property insurance prod-
ucts under common management.

The Consumer Finance segment makes consumer loans primarily for
the purchase of pre-owned automobiles and offers Certificates of Deposits.

The Company’s premium and consumer finance revenues are derived
from the United States. The accounting policies of the segments are the
same as those described in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial State-
ments—Summary of Accounting Policies. Capital expenditures for long-
lived assets by operating segment are immaterial. As discussed in Note 3 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements— Acquisitions of Businesses, dur-
ing the third quarter of 2004 the Company expensed the $18.4 million per-
formance bonus paid to KIC in connection with the KIC Settlement. For
management reporting purposes, the Company does not allocate
such expense to the Kemper Auto and Home segment. Accordingly, such
expense is included in Other Expense, Net for management reporting pur-
poses. The Company does not allocate reserves from its 2002 acquisition
of General Security Insurance Company and General Security Property
and Casualty Company to its business segments (see Note 3 to the Consol-
idated Financial Statements— Acquisitions of Businesses and Note 7 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements—Property and Casualty Insurance
Reserves). It is also the Company’s management practice to allocate cer-
tain corporate expenses to its operating units. The Company considers the
management of certain investments, including Northrop preferred and



NOTE 18, BUSINESS SEGMENTS [CONTINUED]

common stock, Baker Hughes common stock and UNOVA common
stock, to be a corporate responsibility. Accordingly, the Company does not
allocate dividend income from these investments to its operating seg-
ments. The Company does not allocate Net Realized Investment Gains to
its operating segments. In the first quarter of 2004, the Company began
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allocating income taxes to its operating segments. Income taxes have also
been allocated to the Company’s operating segments in 2003 and 2002 to
conform to the current presentation.

Segment Assets at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS _ 2004 2003
SEGMENT ASSETS

Multi Lines Insurance $ 1,0280 | $ 1,168.7
Unitrin Specialty 667.5 584.3
Kemper Auto and Home 1,055.3 777.7
Unitrin Direct 236.0 162.7
Life and Health Insurance 3,695.9 3,501.8
Consumer Finance 1,104.2 1,079.5
Corporate and Other, Net 1,003.4 1,262.1
Total Assets $ 87903 | $ 85368
Amortization of Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs by Operating Segment

for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 20C2
Multi Lines Insurance $ 69.0 | $ 867 | $ 84.9
Unitrin Specialty 72.8 77.5 69.4
Kemper Auto and Home 121.3 109.4 20.9
Unitrin Direct 6.7 3.1 1.4
Life and Health Insurance 53.8 58.3 60.7
Total Amortization $ 3236 | $ 3350 | $ 237.3
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NOTE 18. BUSINESS SEGMENTS [CONTINUED]

Segment Revenues for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 _ A?(,)P,Z
REVEMUES
Multi Lines Insurance:

Earned Premiums $ 4678 | $ 5334 | $ 584.2

Net Investment Income 38.1 34.2 31.6
Total Multi Lines Insurance 505.9 567.6 615.8
Unitrin Specialty:

Earned Premiums 486.8 512.0 452.9

Net Investment Income 18.0 15.9 14.8
Total Unitrin Specialty 504.8 527.9 467.7
Kemper Auto and Home:

Earned Premiums 674.0 600.4 114.1

Net Investment Income 27.2 16.2 2.8

Other Income 7.0 17.8 31.9
Total Kemper Auto and Home 708.2 634.4 148.8
Unitrin Direct:

Earned Premiums 188.6 149.9 73.6

Net Investment Income 6.9 3.3 0.9
Total Unitrin Direct 195.5 153.2 74.5
Life and Health Insurance:

Earned Premiums 668.0 661.5 653.2

Net Investment Income 150.0 134.9 151.6

Other Income 3.6 44 43
Total Life and Health Insurance 821.6 800.8 809.1
Consumer Finance 202.8 195.7 171.8
Total Segment Revenues 2,938.8 2,879.6 2,287.7
Unallocated Dividend Income 21.9 25.9 26.5
Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) 78.5 339 (13.3)
Other 1.6 4.4 (2.7)
Total Revenues $ 3,040.8 $  2,943.8 $  2,298.2




NOTE 18. BUSINESS SEGMENTS [CONTINUED]

Segment Operating Profit (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002 was:

UNITRIN, INC, & SUBSIDIARIES | 2004 ANNUAL REPORT
NOTES TO THE CONSOL!DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS I 76

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002
SEGMENT OPERATING PROFIT (1.OSS)
Multi Lines Insurance $ 614 | $ 245 | $ (93.2)
Unitrin Specialty 44.8 38.9 (0.6)
Kemper Auto and Home 342 (33.3) (19.0)
Unitrin Direct (5.1) (19.4) (35.1)
Life and Health Insurance 97.3 68.9 87.8
Consumer Finance 47.1 41.1 38.9
Total Seg'ment Operating Profit (Loss) 279.7 120.7 (21.2)
Unallocated Dividend Income 21.9 25.9 26.5
Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) 78.5 33.9 (13.3)
Other Expense, Net (44.6) (21.6) (16.6)
Income (Loss) before Income Taxes and Equity in Net Income (Loss) of Investee $ 3355 | $ 1589 | $ (24.6)
Segment Net Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002 was:
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 2002
SEGMENT NET iNCOME {LOSS)
Multi Lines Insurance $ 470 | $ 207 | $ (56.3)
Unitrin Specialty 319 27.5 1.2
Kemper Auto and Home 26.7 (18.9) (12.4)
Unitrin Direct (1.6) (11.3) (23.0)
Life and Health Insurance 63.0 46.1 57.3
Consumer Finance 27.4 23.9 23.3
Total Segment Net Income (Loss) 194.4 88.0 (9.9)
Net Income (Loss) From:

Unallocated Dividend Income 19.3 22.2 224

Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) 51.0 22.1 (8.6)

Other Expense, Net (28.1) (7.5) (10.2)
Income (Loss) before Equity in Net Income (Loss) of Investee 236.6 124.8 (6.3)
Equity in Net Income (Loss) of Investee 3.6 (1.2) (1.9)
Net Income (Loss) $ 240.2 | $ 1236 | $ (8.2)
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NOTE 18. BUSINESS SEGMENTS [CONTINUED]

Earned Premiums by product line for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2004 2003 o 2002
EARNED PREMIUMS -
Life $ 401.7 | $ 4023 | $ 403.3
Accident and Health 161.3 158.9 155.6
Property and Casualty:
Personal Lines:
Automobile 1,201.4 1,194.2 759.6
Homeowners 369.4 329.8 190.0
Other Personal 45.5 35.4 13.6
Total Personal Lines 1,616.3 1,559.4 963.2
Commercial Lines:
Automobile 181.4 178.5 161.1
Property and Commercial Liability 100.5 123.4 139.7
Other Commercial 24.0 347 55.1
Total Commercial Lines 305.9 336.6 355.9
Total Earned Premiums $ 2,485.2 $  2,457.2 $ 1,878.0

NOTE 19. REINSURANCE

The Company’s insurance subsidiaries utilize reinsurance arrangements
to limit their maximum loss, provide greater diversification of risk and to
minimize exposures on larger risks. The ceding of insurance does not dis-
charge the primary liability of the original insurer, and accordingly the
original insurer remains contingently liable. Amounts recoverable from
reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the insurance reserve
liability and are included in Other Receivables in the balance sheet.

Earned Premiums assumed and ceded on long-duration policies were
not material for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. Cer-
tain insurance subsidiaries assume business from other insurance compa-
nies and involuntary pools. Earned Premiums assumed on short-duration

policies for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS . 2004 ___%_0_0_3,7 o R 2002
Earned Premiums Assumed From:
Kemper Insurance Companies $ 1004 | § 5257 | § 117.1
Milwaukee Insurance Company 45.8 51.0 56.1
Capitol County Mutual Fire Insurance Company 50.9 49.1 44.0
Other 11.9 9.2 12.4
Total Earned Premiums Assumed $ 2090 | $ 6350 | % 229.6

Trinity and the KIC are parties to a quota share reinsurance agreement
whereby Trinity reinsures 100% of certain personal lines business issued or
renewed by KIC (see Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements—
Acquisitions of Businesses).

Trinity and Milwaukee Insurance Company (“MIC”) are parties to a
quota share reinsurance agreement whereby Trinity assumes 95% of the
business written or assumed by MIC. MIC is owned by Mutual Insurers
Holding Company (“MIHC”), which in turn is owned by MIC’s policy-
holders. Effective July 1, 2001, MIC and First Nonprofit Insurance Com-
pany (through its predecessor, First Nonprofit Mutual Insurance
Company) (“FNP”) are parties to a quota share reinsurance agreement

whereby MIC assumes 80% of the business written or assumed by FNP.
Pursuant to an amendment to the MIC/FNP reinsurance agreement,
which became effective January 15, 2003, FNP agrees to arrange for its par-
ent company, First Nonprofit Mutual Holding Company (“FNMHC”), to
nominate a simple majority to the FNMHC Board of Directors selected by
MIC. On January 15, 2003, FNMHC elected five employees of the Com-
pany, as selected by MIC, to the FNMHC Board of Directors pursuant to
the terms of the amendment. Such employees continue to serve as Direc-
tors of FNMHC at December 31, 2004. FNP is owned by FNMHC, which
in turn is owned by FNP’s policyholders. Five employees of the Company
also serve as directors of MIHC’s nine-member Board of Directors.



NOTZ 7Q, REINSURANCE [CONTINUED]

Two employees of the Company also serve as directors of MIC, but
together do not constitute a majority of MIC’s Board of Directors. The
quota share agreements above can be terminated at any time by each of the
parties to the respective agreements, subject to the notice requirements in
such agreements.

Trinity and Capitol County Mutual Fire Insurance Company (“Capitol”)
are parties to a quota share reinsurance agreement whereby Trinity assumes
95% of the business written by Capitol. Capitol is a mutual insurance
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company and, accordingly, is owned by its policyholders. The Reliable Life
Insurance Company (“Reliable”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Unitrin,
provides certain administrative services to Capitol and its subsidiary, Old
Reliable Casualty Company (“ORCC”). In addition, agents employed by
Reliable are also appointed by Capitol and ORCC to sell property insurance
products. Union National Life Insurance Company, a wholly-owned sub-
sidiary of Unitrin, also provides claims administration services to Capitol.

NOTE 20. CONTINGENCIES

The Company and its subsidiaries are defendants in various lawsuits inci-
dental to their businesses. The Company believes that there are meritori-
ous defenses to these lawsuits and is defending them vigorously. Certain of
the lawsuits are pending in jurisdictions that have a history of awarding
damages, including punitive damages, that are disproportionate to the
actual economic damages alleged to have been incurred. Additionally,
some of these lawsuits seek class action status that, if granted, could expose

the Company to potentially significant liability by virtue of the size of the
purported classes. The Company believes that resolution of its pending lit-
igation will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
position. However, given the unpredictability of litigation, there can be no
assurance that one or more of these lawsuits will not produce a damage
award which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s finan-
cial results for any given period.

XNOTE 21, RELATED PARTIES

One of Unitrin’s directors, Mr. Fayez Sarofim, is the Chairman of the
Board, President and the majority shareholder of Fayez Sarofim & Co.
(“FS&C”), a registered investment advisory firm. Certain of the Com-
pany’s insurance company subsidiaries and FS&C are parties to agree-
ments under which FS&C provides investment management services to
these subsidiaries. In addition, FS&C provides investment management
services with respect to certain funds of the Company’s Pension Plans. The
agreements governing those arrangements are terminable by either party
at any time on 30 days advance written notice.

Under these investment advisory arrangements, FS&C is entitled to a
fee calculated and payable quarterly based upon the fair market value of
the assets under management. At December 31, 2004, the Company’s sub-
sidiaries and the Company’s Pension Plans had approximately $171.7 mil-
lion and $75.7 million, respectively, in assets with FS&C for investment
management. During 2004, the Company’s subsidiaries and the Com-
pany’s Pension Plans paid $0.6 million in the aggregate to FS&C.

With respect to the Company’s 4o1(k) Savings Plan, one of the
alternative investment choices afforded to participating employees is the
Dreyfus Appreciation Fund, an open-end, diversified managed investment
fund. FS&C provides investment management services to the Dreyfus

Appreciation Fund as a sub-investment advisor. According to published
reports filed by FS&C with the SEC, the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund pays
monthly fees to FS&C according to a graduated schedule computed at an
annual rate based on the value of the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund’s average
daily net assets. The Company does not compensate FS&C for services
rendered to the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund. As of December 31, 2004,
Company employees participating in the Company’s 401(k) Savings Plan
had allocated approximately $26.9 million for investment in the Dreyfus
Appreciation Fund, representing approximately 12% of the total amount
invested in the Company’s 401(k) Savings Plan.

In January 2005, the Company’s Life and Health Insurance segment agreed
to hire Intermec, a subsidiary of UNOVA, to develop the software for the
next generation of the segment’s handheld computers.

The Company believes that the transactions described above have been
entered into on terms no less favorable than could have been negotiated
with non-affiliated third parties.

As described in Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements—
Reinsurance, the Company also has certain relationships with mutual insur-
ance holding companies which are owned by the policyholders of their
insurance subsidiaries.
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NMOTE 22, QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

THREE MONTHS ENDED {UNAUDITED)

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS MARCH 21 JUNE 30; SEPT. 30, DES;}JL- B DECA?_L .
2004
Earned Premiums 614.2 $ 617.6 630.7 622.7 $ 2,485.2
Consumer Finance Revenues 49.6 49.9 51.1 52.2 202.8
Net Investment Income 60.2 63.0 65.9 72,1 261.2
Other Income 2.8 2.6 6.3 14 13.1
Net Realized Investment Gains 18.5 24.0 24.7 11.3 78.5
Total Revenues 745.3 $ 757.1 778.7 759.7 $ 3,040.8
Net Income 48.0 $ 62.4 56.5 73.3 $ 240.2
Net Income Per Share 071 $ 0.91 0.82 1.07 | $ 3.51
Net Income Per Share Assuming Dilution® 070 §$ 0.91 0.82 1.06 | $ 3.48
Cash Dividends Paid to Shareholders (per share): 0415 §$ 0.415 0.415 0415 | $ 1.66
Common Stock Market Prices:

High 4495 % 44.29 44.48 4999 | § 49.99

Low 39.50 36.72 40.20 39.77 36.72

Close 42.90 42.60 41.57 45.45 45.45
2003
Earned Premiums 581.1 $ 617.7 634.3 624.1 $ 24572
Consumer Finance Revenues 46.6 48.4 50.1 50.6 195.7
Net Investment Income 51.7 57.2 58.3 64.7 231.9
Other Income 10.3 6.7 4.4 3.7 25.1
Net Realized Investment Gains 5.9 10.8 8.8 8.4 339
Total Revenues 695.6 % 740.8 755.9 751.5 | $ 2,943.8
Net Income 134  § 22.7 43,1 444 | $ 123.6
Net Income Per Share® 0.20 $ 0.34 0.64 0.66 $ 1.83
Net Income Per Share Assuming Dilution 020 § 0.33 0.64 065 | § 1.82
Cash Dividends Paid to Shareholders (per share): 0415 $ 0.415 0.415 0.415 $ 1.66
Common Stock Market Prices:

High 30.75 3 27.78 32.00 42.50 S 42.50

Low 21.50 23.01 28.31 30.20 21.50

Close 23.17 27.12 30.46 41.41 41.41

YEAR ENDED

“The cumulative sum of quarterly Net Income Per Share and Net Income Per Share Assuming Dilution amounts may not equal Total Net Income Per Share

and Toral Net Income Per Share Assuming Dilution for the year due to differences in weighted-average shares and equivalent shares outstanding for each of

the periods presented.
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